
 AGENDA 
CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Motto:  "Opportunity Through Diversity; Unity Through Cooperation." 

Mission Statement: "The City of Watsonville is dedicated to improving the economic vitality, safety & living environment for the culturally 

rich Watsonville community, by providing leadership for the achievement of community goals & high quality, responsive public services."

Mayor Karina Cervantez, District 2 

Mayor Pro Tempore Felipe Hernandez, District 1

Lowell Hurst, Council Member, District 3
 Eduardo Montesino, Council Member, District 4 

Daniel Dodge, Council Member, District 5 

Trina Coffman-Gomez, Council Member, District 6 

Dr. Nancy A. Bilicich, Council Member, District 7 

Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

Alan J. Smith, City Attorney 

Beatriz Vázquez Flores, City Clerk 

CIVIC PLAZA COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

275 MAIN STREET, 4
th

 FLOOR, 6
TH

 LEVEL PARKING
WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 

Americans with Disabilities Act 

The Council Chambers is an accessible facility.  If you wish to attend a meeting and you will require 
assistance in order to attend and/or participate, please call the City Clerk's Office at least five (5) days 
in advance of the meeting to make arrangements. The City of Watsonville TDD number is (831) 763-
4075. 

Meetings are televised live on Charter Cable Communications Channel 70 and AT&T 

Channel 99. 

For information regarding this agenda or interpretation services, please call the City Clerk's Office at (831) 768-3040. 

INTERPRETATION SERVICES 
Spanish language interpretation is available 



1 
P:\Agendas\2014\CC062414.Docx 
6/19/2014 4:26 PM 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

 
June 24, 2014         City Council Chambers  
    275 Main Street, 4th Floor 

 
4:30 P.M. 

 
1.0 ROLL CALL 
 
3.0 PRESENTATIONS & ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 
3.1 PRESENTATION OF UPDATE ON FREEDOM BLVD WATER MAIN 

REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
 
4.0 CONSENT AGENDA 

All items appearing on the Consent Agenda are recommended actions which are considered to be routine & will be 
acted upon as one consensus motion. Any items removed will be considered immediately after the consensus motion. 
The Mayor will allow public input prior to the approval of the Consent Agenda. 

 
Public Input on any Consent Agenda Item 

 
4.1 MOTION APPROVING MINUTES OF MAY 27, 2014 

 
4.2 RESOLUTION REJECTING CLAIM OF MARIA M. RAMIREZ FOR DAMAGES 

(Date of Occurrence 5/8/14) 
 

4.3 RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS & SPECIFICATIONS & CALLING FOR BIDS 
FOR SIGNAL UPGRADES & PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS, PROJECT NO. ST-
13-02 (ESTIMATED COST OF $510,000: $305,400 WILL INITIALLY BE FUNDED 
FROM STATE GAS TAX FUND & WILL BE REIMBURSED FROM FEDERAL 
HIGHWAY SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (HSIP) (Recommended by Public 
Works & Utilities Director Palmisano) 
--Staff Report 
--Resolution 
 

4.4 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF GRANT APPLICATION(S) TO 
CALRECYCLE (FORMERLY CALIFORNIA INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT 
BOARD) FOR ALL CALRECYCLE GRANT PROGRAMS (USED OIL PAYMENT 
GRANT, LOCAL GOVERNMENT WASTE TIRE AMNESTY GRANT, 
CITY/COUNTY PAYMENT PROGRAM-CRV-BEVERAGE CONTAINER 
RECYCLING PROGRAM, & RUBERRIZED ASPHALT CONCRETE CHIP SEAL 
PROGRAM) (Recommended by Public Works & Utilities Director Palmisano) 
--Staff Report 
--Resolution 
 

4.5 RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT TO TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, A 
DELAWARE CORPORATION, FOR THE PURCHASE & IMPLEMENTATION OF 
AN ELECTRONIC RESOURCE PLANNING SYSTEM (ERP) IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE REQUIRMENTS OF THE CITY’S REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 2014-
001 (RFP) IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $665,984 & AUTHORIZING A 
$602,061 BUDGET APPROPRIATION FOR FY 2014-2015 ($289,416 FROM THE 
GENERAL FUND, $39,457 FROM THE LIBRARY FUND, $88,716 FROM THE 
WASTEWATER FUND, $101,684 FROM THE WATER ENTERPRISE FUND, & 



2 
P:\Agendas\2014\CC062414.Docx 
6/19/2014 4:26 PM 

$82,787 FROM THE SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND) (Recommended by 
Administrative Services Director Vega) 
--Staff Report 
--Resolution  

 
4.6 RESOLUTION APPROVING AGREEMENT WITH BIG CREEK LUMBER 

COMPANY, A CORPORATION, FOR THE SELECTIVE HARVEST & MILLING OF 
TIMBER ON THE GRIZZLY FLATS PROPERTY (Recommended by Public Works 
& Utilities Director Palmisano) 
--Staff Report 
--Resolution  
 

4.7 RESOLUTION APPROVING PROPOSED FY 2014-2015 SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 
FLOOD CONTROL & WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT ZONE 7 BUDGET AS 
APPROVED BY THE ZONE 7 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
(Recommended by Public Works & Utilities Director Palmisano) 
--Staff Report 
--Resolution  

 
4.8 MOTION DESIGNATING VOTING DELEGATES & ALTERNATES FOR LEAGUE 

OF CALIFORNIA CITIES ANNUAL CONFERENCE—SEPTEMBER 3-5, 2014, LOS 
ANGELES 
 

5.0 ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 

 
8.0 NEW BUSINESS 

 
8.1 CONSIDERATION OF POSSIBLE SALE OF BUENA VISTA FUTURE PARK SITE 

LOCATED AT 617 BUENA VISTA DRIVE WITH PROCEEDS TO BE DEPOSITED 
IN THE PARKS IMPACT FEE FUND FOR FUTURE RAMSAY PARK SOCCER 
FIELD IMPROVEMENTS (Recommended by Parks & Community Services Director 
Espinoza) 
(a) Staff Report 
(b) City Council Questions 
(c) Public Input 
(d) City Council Discussion 
(e) Appropriate Motion  
 

 

5:30 P.M. 
 
10.0 CLOSED SESSION 

(City Council Conference Room, 275 Main Street, 4th Floor) 
(a) Public Comments regarding the Closed Session agenda will only be accepted by the City 

Council at this time. 
(b) Closed Session Announcement 
 The City Council will now recess to discuss those items listed on the Closed Session 

Statement attached to the Agenda. 
  
 



3 
P:\Agendas\2014\CC062414.Docx 
6/19/2014 4:26 PM 

6:30 P.M. 
 
1.0 ROLL CALL 
 
2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3.0 PRESENTATIONS & ORAL COMMUNICATIONS (Continued) 

 
3.2 ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC & CITY COUNCIL 

(This time is set aside for members of the general public to address the Council on any item not on the 
Council Agenda, which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council. No action or 
discussion shall be taken on any item presented except that any Council Member may respond to 
statements made or questions asked, or may ask questions for clarification.  All matters of an 
administrative nature will be referred to staff. All matters relating to Council will be noted in the minutes 
& may be scheduled for discussion at a future meeting or referred to staff for clarification & report. Any 
Council Member may place matters brought up under Oral Communications on a future agenda. ALL 
SPEAKERS ARE ASKED TO FILL OUT A BLUE CARD & LEAVE IT AT THE TABLE DESIGNATED 
NEAR THE PODIUM, GO TO THE PODIUM & ANNOUNCE THEIR NAME & ADDRESS IN ORDER 
TO OBTAIN AN ACCURATE RECORD FOR THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING.) 

 
3.3 REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 

 
6.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES, & APPEALS  

 
6.1 CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATION (PP2013-243) FOR A PLANNED 

DEVELOPMENT, SPECIAL USE PERMIT WITH DESIGN REVIEW & 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW, TO CONSTRUCT 20 AFFORDABLE APARTMENT 
UNITS, AT 56 ATKINSON LANE (APN:  019-226-42), FILED BY MIDPENINSULA 
THE FARM, INC., APPLICANT/PROPERTY OWNER & FUNDING COMMITMENT 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $1 MILLION TO MIDPENINSULA THE FARM, INC. TO 
ASSIST IN THE CONSTRUCTION OF PROJECT (Recommended by Community 
Development Director Tavantzis)—Continued from June 10, 2014 
(a) Staff Reports 
(b) City Council Questions & Discussion 
(c) Public Hearing 
(d) Resolution Approving Notice of Determination Indicating that Environmental 

Impact Report Addendum Complies with California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) for Environmental Review for Construction of Twenty Affordable 
Apartment Units Located at 56 Atkinson Lane, Watsonville (APN: 019-226-
42) 

(e) Resolution Approving Application No. PP2013-243 for Special Use Permit 
with Design Review Application Filed by Mid-Peninsula the Farm, Inc., to 
Construct Twenty Affordable Apartment Units, Located At 56 Atkinson Lane 
(APN: 019-226-42)  

(f) Resolution Approving Memorandum of Understanding with County of Santa 
Cruz & Mid-Peninsula the Farm, Inc., to Address Services & Financing for 
Entire 46-Unit Mid-Peninsula Development Project, Located at 56 Atkinson 
Lane 

(g) Uncodified Ordinance Approving Rezoning to Establish Planned 
Development Overlay District on Assessor’s Parcel Number 019-226-42 
Now Classified R-1 (Single Family Residential District) with General Plan 
Designation of R-HD (Specific Plan) to R-1/PD for Application No. PP2013-
243 Filed by Mid-Peninsula the Farm, Inc., to Construct 20 Affordable 
Apartment Units on a 1.3-Acre Vacant Parcel Located at 56 Atkinson Lane, 
Watsonville, & Directing Changes Be Made on Zoning Map of City of 
Watsonville  



4 
P:\Agendas\2014\CC062414.Docx 
6/19/2014 4:26 PM 

(h) Resolution (1) Approving Funding Commitment in the Amount of $1,000,000 
to Mid-Peninsula the Farm, Inc. (Mid-Pen) for Construction of 46 Units of 
Affordable Housing, Located at 56 Atkinson Lane (APNs: 019-226-42 & 048-
211-25), Contingent Upon Approval of their Low Income Housing Tax 
Credits (“LIHTC”) Application & Compliance with all Requirements from the 
City’s Community Development Department; (2) Authorizing & Directing City 
Manager to Negotiate & Execute a Loan Agreement which will Contain 
Terms of Use of Loan for Project, in Form Developed & Approved by City 
Attorney; & (3) Authorizing Budget Appropriation of $1,000,000 from the 
City’s Inclusionary Housing Fund 

 
6.2 DETERMINATION OF APPEAL OF PLANNING COMMISSION'S DECISION TO 

APPROVE SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (PP2014-5) FOR THE 
CONVERSION OF AN EXISTING RETAIL COMMERCIAL SPACE TO A 94 BED 
WOMEN & CHILDREN'S SHELTER & REHABILITATION FACILITY WITH RETAIL 
SPACE AT 55 BRENNAN STREET (APN: 018-151-20), FILED BY APPELLANT 
TIMOTHY WALSH (Recommended by Community Development Director Tavantzis) 
(a) Staff Report 
(b) Appellant Presentation 
(c) Applicant Presentation  
(d) Appellant Reply 
(e) Applicant Reply 
(f) Public Hearing 
(g) City Council Questions & Deliberation 
(h) [Proposed] Resolution Denying an Appeal filed by Timothy J. Walsh & 

Upholding the Planning Commission’s Decision to Approve Special Use 
Permit (PP2014-5) for the Conversion of an Existing Retail Commercial 
Space to a 94 Bed Women & Children’s Shelter & Rehabilitation Facility with 
Retail Space Located at 55 Brennan Street (APN: 018-151-20) 

 
6.3 CONSIDERATION OF (1) RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENT TO FEES, 

RATES, & CHARGES FOR CITY SERVICES FOR THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT (2) ORDINANCE INTRODUCTION AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NO. 986-95 TO DELETE SECTION 11 REGARDING EXEMPTION 
OF INDUSTRIAL USES FROM CITYWIDE TRAFFIC IMPACT FEES; (3) 
ORDINANCE INTRODUCTION ESTABLISHING A DENSITY BONUS FEE IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $14,500 AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 14-47.140 OF WATSONVILLE 
MUNICIPAL CODE (Recommended by Community Development Director 
Tavantzis)  
(a) Staff Report 
(b) City Council Questions 
(c) Public Hearing  
(d) City Council Discussion 
(e) Resolution Establishing & Setting Fees, Rates, & Charges for City Services 

for Building & Safety 
(f) Resolution Establishing & Setting a Density Bonus Fee in the Amount of 

$14,500 Pursuant to Watsonville Municipal Code Section 14-47.100(e) 
(g) Introduction of Uncodified Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 986-95 (CM) 

Repealing Section 11 which Currently Exempts Collection of Citywide Traffic 
Impact Fees from all Development, Reconstruction & Remodeling Projects 
Designated Industrial or Marketing within the Entire City for Use of Mitigating 
Traffic Impactions 
 



5 
P:\Agendas\2014\CC062414.Docx 
6/19/2014 4:26 PM 

10.1 EMERGENCY ITEMS ADDED TO AGENDA  
 
10.2 INFORMATION ITEMS—Written Report(s) Only  

(a) Report of Disbursements 
(b) Miscellaneous Documents 
 

11.0 ADJOURNMENT 

 
Pursuant to Section 54954.2(a)(1) of the Government Code of the State of California, this agenda was posted at least 72 hours in 
advance of the scheduled meeting at a public place freely accessible to the public 24 hours a day & on the City of Watsonville 
website at www.cityofwatsonville.org. 
 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 
public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office (275 Main Street, 4

th
 Floor) during normal business hours. Such documents are also 

available on the City of Watsonville website at www.cityofwatsonville.org subject to staff’s ability to post the document before 
the meeting. 
 
 
 

http://www.ci.watsonville.ca.us/
http://www.cityofwatsonville.org/




Vol 61 Min-CC052714 

195 

MINUTES 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

May 27, 2014 City of Watsonville 
Council Chambers 
275 Main Street, 4th Floor 

CONTENTS 

4:07 P.M. Session 
8.1 Social & Community Svces Grants 

5:31 P.M. Session 
10.0 Closed Session 

6:31 P.M. City Council Meeting 
1.0 Roll Call 
2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 
3.1 Oral Communications 
3.2 Report out of Closed Session 
3.3 Proclamation May Strawberry Month 
4.1 Motion Approve Minutes 
4.2 Reso 56-14 Reject Claim of Sandro 

Vega 
4.3 Reso 57-14 SEC Contract for 

Broadband Project 

4.4 Reso 58-14 NEF Contract for 
Broadband Project 

4.5 Reso 59-14 JAG Grant 
5.0 Items Removed from Consent 

Agenda-None 
6.1 LLMADS 

a) Reso 60-14 Gonzales
b) Reso 61-14 Bay Breese
c) Reso 62-14 Vista Montana

8.2 Budget Study 2014-2015 
10.1 Emergency Items Added-None 
10.2 Information Items 

(a) Report of Disbursements 
(b) Miscellaneous Documents 

11.0 Adjournment

4:07 P.M. 

1.0 ROLL CALL 
Mayor Cervantez, Mayor Pro Tempore Hernandez, and Council Members Bilicich, 
Coffman-Gomez, Dodge, Hurst, and Montesino were present.  

8.0 NEW BUSINESS 

8.1 SOCIAL SERVICE & COMMUNITY SERVICE GRANTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 

(a) City Council Subcommittee Report 
The report was given by Assistant City Manager Tavantzis. 

(b) Human Care Alliance (HCA) Presentation 
Gerardo Sandoval, Volunteer Center of Santa Cruz County, spoke as a 
representative of the Human Care Alliance.  

Laura Segura, Executive Director for Women’s Crisis Support, spoke as a 
representative of the Human Care Alliance.  

The following people spoke in support of maintaining or increasing funding for 
their respective agencies: 

Brian Davis, Si se Puede 
Rachel Glenn, Watsonville Volunteer Center 

CITY COUNCIL 4.1



 

Vol 61 Min-CC052714  

196 

Jorge Gutierrez, Si Se Puede Coordinator, spoke representing Patricia 
Castagnola from Project SCAP. 
Jan Shirchild, Project Scout Program Coordinator 
 
Klay Kempf, Seniors Council Executive Director, representing Companions for Life 
and Association of Watsonville Area Seniors (AWAS), requested that Council 
consider a Cost of Living Adjustment for funding for Human Care Alliance 
Programs. He also requested that there be more City involvement in the 
maintenance of the Senior Center and asked for the City to give direction to staff 
to evaluate the condition of the building and address maintenance issues.  
 
Ronald Japinga, Dientes Board Member 
Deutron Kebebew, CASA Board Member and PAPAS Director 
 
Alicia Hernandez Sanchez, Central Coast Center for Independent Living, 
requested that Human Care Alliance Programs receive a 2.6% increase in funding 
through a COLA, reserve funding for social service funding only, and increase 
funding to social service programs aside from COLA.  
 

(c) Social Services Presentation by Non-HCA Members 
The following people spoke in support of maintaining or increasing funding for 
their respective agencies: 
 
Willy Elliott-McCrea, Second Harvest Food Bank CEO. 
Kimberly Fern, Pájaro Valley Shelter Services Executive Director 
 

 (d) Community Services Presentation 
 
The following people spoke in support of maintaining or increasing funding for 
their respective agencies: 
 
Richard Vazquez, Pajaro Valley Performing Arts Association Director 
Emelia Leon, Teen Program Coordinator for YWCA 
 

(e) Public Input 
 
The following people spoke in support of maintaining or increasing funding for 
their respective agencies: 
 
Helen Ewan-Storey, Community Action Board Assistant Director 
Rachel Ellis,  Alcance  
Sherry Storm, Dientes 
 

 (f) City Council Questions & Discussion 
Member Coffman-Gomez asked staff for a larger print report and a more thorough 
explanation of why the funds were distributed in such manner. She asked to be 
included in the social service grants process in the future.  
 
Member Bilicich stated her concerns regarding a decrease in funding for several 
social service and community service agencies. 
 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC052714  

197 

Member Montesino explained for the public why the social service and community 
service providers were receiving less funding. He stated the City was working to 
provide more funding for youth related programs in the summer as well as 
providing more free summer lunch programs. 
 
Mayor Cervantez explained how the members of the committee who review the 
social service and community service grant applications were selected. She spoke 
about the importance of funding social service and community service agencies.  
 
Member Dodge stated funding was very limited and the City could not afford to 
give any more money to social service and community service agencies. He 
stressed the importance of offering opportunities for youth as they composed 1/3 
of the population in Watsonville. 
 
Member Hurst spoke about the challenges of serving on the committee that 
reviews social service and community service funding. He thanked the members 
that composed the committee. He stated there was not enough funding to serve 
everyone in the City and there would be many challenges in the future. 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Hernandez stressed the importance of providing free summer 
lunch programs and providing opportunities for youth locally. 
 
Member Montesino stressed the importance of providing jobs for youth during the 
summer.  He listed the efforts the City was making to help social service and 
community service agencies aside from funding.  
 
Member Bilicich stated the City was working to help fund social service and 
community service agencies as well as the Parks and Community Services 
Department. She stated lack of money was the main issue and said the City would 
look for solutions in the future. 
 
Member Coffman-Gomez stated she would like staff to work on addressing 
maintenance issues at the Senior Center. Member Coffman-Gomez stated she 
would like descriptions for the social service or community service agencies as 
well as any in-kind contributions made to them. 
 
Member Dodge stated the City was dealing with very limited funding and spoke 
about the challenges of providing funding for the many social service agencies.  
He stressed the importance of providing youth with new opportunities.  
 
MOTION: It was moved by Mayor Cervantez, seconded by Member Bilicich, and 
carried by the following vote to allocate $12,316.00 for summer youth programs 
and maintain the level of funding for social services and community services: 
 
AYES: MEMBERS: Bilicich, Coffman-Gomez, Hurst, Cervantez 
NOES:  MEMBERS: Dodge, Hernandez, Montesino 
ABSENT: MEMBERS: None 
 

Mayor Cervantez recessed to Closed Session at 5:31 PM. 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC052714  

198 

5:31 P.M. 
 

10.0 CLOSED SESSION 
 

(City Council Conference Room, 275 Main Street, 4th Floor) 
(a) Public Comments regarding the Closed Session agenda were only accepted by the City 

Council at that time. 
  
(b) Closed Session Announcement 
 The City Council recessed the regular Council Meeting to discuss those items listed on the 

Closed Session Statement attached to the Agenda. 

 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Government Code Section 54956.9)  

 
1. Pending litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1): 

 
a) Name of case:  Ethnobotanica v. City of Watsonville — Santa Cruz County 

Superior Court (Case No. CV173820) 

 
JOINT CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY  
FOR FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 
B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION 

(Government Code Section 54956.9)  
 

1. Pending litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1): 
 

a) Name of case:   City of Watsonville v. Cohen et al. — Third District Court of 
Appeal - Sacramento (Case No. C076296) 

 
6:31 P.M. 

 
1.0 ROLL CALL 

Mayor Cervantez, Mayor Pro Tempore Hernandez, and Council Members Bilicich, 
Coffman-Gomez, Dodge, Hurst, and Montesino were present.  
 
Staff members present were City Manager Palacios, City Attorney Smith, City Clerk 
Vázquez Flores, Assistant City Manager Tavantzis, Public Works & Utilities Director 
Palmisano, Administrative Services Director Vega, Fire Chief Bisbee, Parks & Community 
Services Director Espinoza, Library Director Heitzig, Human Resources Manager 
Manning, Assistant Parks & Community Services Director Blachly, Assistant Finance 
Officer Hays, Administrative Services Manager Reta, Acting Deputy Police Chief Traub,  
Sergeant McKinley, Sergeant Gonzalez, Audio/Visual Technician Hernandez, and 
Interpreter Landaverry. 
 

2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3.0 PRESENTATIONS & ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC052714  

199 

3.1 ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC & CITY COUNCIL 
Gary Richard Arnold urged the Council to maintain local control as he had seen a pattern 
of large entities absorbing political power nationwide. He stressed the importance of 
keeping the public informed. 
 

 Rhea DeHart reminded the public of the election date and hours. She encouraged the 
public to vote yes on Measures H, I, & J. 
 
Member Bilicich invited the public to attend the Zone 7, Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District meeting on June 16, 2014 in the Watsonville Council Chambers. 
She spoke about her attendance at the Annual Down to Earth Women’s Luncheon, the 
Phil Rather Awards, and an informational meeting at Starlight Elementary School 
regarding the operational improvements at the intersection of Pennsylvania and Clifford. 
 
Member Coffman-Gomez encouraged the public to vote during the June 3, 2014, 
Statewide Primary Election. She commended all Council Members for their involvement 
in community events. 
 
Member Dodge spoke about the teardown of the bowling alley and the retail stores to 
take its place. He spoke about his attendance at the informational meeting at Starlight 
Elementary School regarding the operational improvements at the intersection of 
Pennsylvania and Clifford. He encouraged the public to vote during the Statewide 
Primary Election. 
 
Member Hurst commended the veterans that participated in the placing of the flags on 
Freedom Blvd for Memorial Day. He invited the public to the National Trails Day event on 
May 31st at the Watsonville Nature Center in Ramsay Park. He congratulated all 
graduating students and encouraged the public to vote during the Statewide Primary 
Election. 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Hernandez thanked the American Legion members and members of 
the Veterans of Foreign Wars for raising flags all along Freedom Boulevard for Memorial 
Day. He thanked the Watsonville Youth Council and Mariposa Arts for their organization 
of Teen Day. He spoke about the Teacher’s Day Celebration and the importance of 
honoring educators. 
 
Mayor Cervantez commended the Youth Council as well as other organizers for their 
involvement in the Watsonville Teen Day.  
 

3.2 REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 
City Attorney Smith reported that Council received a report on the first item on the Closed 
Session Agenda, but took no action. He stated the second item on the Closed Session 
Agenda was not discussed.  
 

3.3 PRESENTATION OF MAYOR’S PROCLAMATION CELEBRATING MAY AS 
NATIONAL STRAWBERRY MONTH & PRESENTATION BY STRAWBERRY 
COMMISSION ABOUT THE LOCAL STRAWBERRY INDUSTRY AND ITS 
CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE CITY, CENTRAL COAST, & STATE 

 
4.0 CONSENT AGENDA 

 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC052714  

200 

 Public Input on any Consent Agenda Item (None) 
Member Coffman-Gomez asked staff to explore creating a “dig once” ordinance that 
would set guidelines for underground work and prevent separate occasions of digging. 
 
Member Dodge thanked Joel Staker for his work on the Broadband Consortium project.  
 
MOTION: It was moved by Member Dodge, seconded by Member Hurst, and carried by 
the following vote that Consent Agenda be approved:  
 
AYES: MEMBERS: Bilicich, Coffman-Gomez, Dodge, Hernandez, Hurst, 

Montesino, Cervantez 
NOES: MEMBERS: None 
ABSENT: MEMBERS: None 
 

4.1 MOTION APPROVING COUNCIL MINUTES OF MAY 13,  2014  
 

4.2 RESOLUTION NO. 56-14 (CM): 
RESOLUTION REJECTING CLAIM OF SANDRO VEGA FOR DAMAGES (Date of 
occurrence: March/April 2014) 

 
4.3 RESOLUTION NO. 57-14 (CM): 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CONTRACT WITH SEC CONSULTING GROUP, LLC., A 
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, FOR WEB DEVELOPMENT & GEOGRAPHICAL 
INFORMATION SYSTEM SERVICES, FOR CENTRAL COAST BROADBAND 
CONSORTIUM’S BROADBAND PROJECT FOR SANTA CRUZ, SAN BENITO & 
MONTEREY COUNTIES, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $60,000, OF WHICH 
AMOUNT, PLUS AN ADDITIONAL 15% ALLOWANCE FOR THE CITY’S OVERHEAD 
COST, WILL BE FULLY REIMBURSED BY A GRANT FROM THE CALIFORNIA 
PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

 
4.4 RESOLUTION NO. 58-14 (CM): 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CONTRACT WITH NEW ENGLAND FIBER, INC., A 
MASSACHUSETTS CORPORATION, FOR BROADBAND ASSET DISCOVERY 
SERVICES, FOR CENTRAL COAST BROADBAND CONSORTIUM’S BROADBAND 
PROJECT FOR SANTA CRUZ, SAN BENITO & MONTEREY COUNTIES, IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $50,000, OF WHICH AMOUNT, PLUS AN ADDITIONAL 
15% ALLOWANCE FOR THE CITY’S OVERHEAD COST, WILL BE FULLY 
REIMBURSED BY A GRANT FROM THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES 
COMMISSION  
 

4.5 RESOLUTION NO. 59-14 (CM): 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION TO UNITED STATES 
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, BUREAU OF JUSTICE ASSISTANCE, FOR EDWARD 
BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2014 LOCAL SOLICITATION IN AMOUNT OF $23,498 TO PURCHASE EQUIPMENT, 
SOFTWARE & TRAIN POLICE OFFICERS TO USE EQUIPMENT THAT ENABLES 
THE EXTRACTION, DECODING, ANALYSIS & REPORTING OF MOBILE DATA 

 
5.0 ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA—None  

 
6.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES, & APPEALS  



 

Vol 61 Min-CC052714  

201 

 
6.1 CONFIRMING DIAGRAMS & ASSESSMENTS & LEVYING ASSESSMENTS FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 FOR: GONZALES STREET LANDSCAPING & LIGHTING 
MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. PK-94-01; BAY BREEZE 
SUBDIVISION LANDSCAPING & LIGHTING MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT NO. PK-03-02; & VISTA MONTAÑA SUBDIVISION LANDSCAPING & 
LIGHTING MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. PK-03-03 

  
(a) Staff Report 

The report was given by Assistant Parks & Community Services Director Blachly. 
 

(b) City Council Questions 
Administrative Services Director Vega, Assistant Parks & Community Services 
Director Blachly, and Mayor Cervantez answered questions from Member Bilicich 
regarding the reserve funds, expenditures, costs associated with maintenance, 
and plans to correct overspending at Vista Montana.  
 
Member Coffman-Gomez stated that the LLMAD fees for Vista Montana needed 
to be adjusted so that the City was not subsidizing maintenance costs for that 
district.  
 

(c) Public Hearing (None) 
 

(d) City Council Discussion 
In answering Member Dodge, Assistant Parks & Community Services Director 
Blachly stated that 50% of homeowners within a set district needed to vote in 
favor of the LLMAD in order for the LLMAD to be created.  
 
Member Bilicich said residents needed to know if they are going over budget. 
 

(e) RESOLUTION NO. 60-14 (CM): 
 RESOLUTION CONFIRMING DIAGRAM & ASSESSMENT & LEVYING 

ASSESSMENT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 FOR GONZALES STREET 
ALLEYWAY LANDSCAPING & LIGHTING MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT 

 
(f) RESOLUTION NO. 61-14 (CM):  
 RESOLUTION CONFIRMING DIAGRAM & ASSESSMENT & LEVYING 

ASSESSMENT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 FOR BAY BREEZE 
SUBDIVISION LANDSCAPING & LIGHTING MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT 

 
(g) RESOLUTION NO. 62-14 (CM): 
 RESOLUTION CONFIRMING DIAGRAM & ASSESSMENT & LEVYING 

ASSESSMENT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 FOR VISTA MONTAÑA 
LANDSCAPING & LIGHTING MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 
 
MOTION: It was moved by Member Coffman-Gomez, seconded by Member 
Hurst, and carried by the following vote to approve the above resolutions (e 
through g) and re-evaluate the costs associated with the LLMADS as well as 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC052714  

202 

create more outreach to homeowners within districts to inform them of 
expenditures and the LLMAD budget: 
AYES: MEMBERS: Bilicich, Coffman-Gomez, Dodge Hernandez, Hurst, 

Montesino, Cervantez 
NOES:  MEMBERS: None 
ABSENT: MEMBERS: None 

 
JOINT CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY  

FOR THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING 
 

8.0 NEW BUSINESS (Continued)  
 

8.2 BUDGET STUDY SESSION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015  
 

(a) Staff Report 
 The report was given by Administrative Services Director Vega and City Manager 

Palacios.  
 
(b) City Council Questions 

Administrative Services Director Vega and City Manager Palacios answered 
questions from Member Montesino regarding the proposed loan to the Airport and 
the repayment period. They clarified that the Airport budget would be balanced 
moving forward. 
 
Member Dodge stressed the importance of restoring salaries for City employees 
and reopening City services on Fridays. He spoke about the challenges of 
expanding the City and generating revenue. He stated the Airport budget needed 
to be revised and adjusted so that it did not hinder the City.  
 
City Manager Palacios stated that the Airport budget was balanced and some 
Airport positions were frozen. He added that there was a proactive plan to get the 
Airport out of debt. 
 
Member Dodge asked that reduction of services at the Airport be explored to help 
with the deficit. He stated he wanted the deficit at the Airport to end.  
 
Assistant Public Works and Utilities Director Rodriguez, in answering Member 
Montesino, stated that Airport staff was working reduced hours, but was open all 
days of the week.  
 
Administrative Services Director Vega answered questions from Member 
Coffman-Gomez regarding the liabilities to assets ratio of the general fund, the 
repayment plan for the proposed Airport loan and its liabilities, specialty sales tax, 
and grant funding. 
 
Administrative Services Director Vega answered questions from Member Bilicich 
regarding impact fees.  
 

(c) Public Input (None) 
 

(d) City Council Discussion 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC052714  

203 

Member Dodge stated his disagreement with balancing the budget by continuing 
furloughs and pay reductions. Member Dodge requested that staff examine 
alternatives for the loan to the Airport, explore reduction of services that would 
substantially reduce costs on the City, and would like a report on economic effects 
Airport projects have had on the City. 
 
Member Montesino requested that the City explore adding lighting to the Ramsay 
Park Soccer Field. City Manager Palacios stated that the City would be repairing 
lighting at the softball field at Ramsay Park and would show Council costs for 
adding lighting to the soccer field at the following Council Meeting. 
 
Administrative Services Director Vega explained for Member Coffman-Gomez that 
Extraordinary Items listed on the budget were Redevelopment Agency Items. 
 
Administrative Services Director Vega answered questions from Member Bilicich 
regarding reasoning for reducing services for each department, balancing the 
budget, capital improvements, and grant funding. 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Hernandez asked staff to research other comparable airports 
and try to improve revenue at the Watsonville Airport. 
 
Administrative Services Director Vega answered questions from Member 
Coffman-Gomez regarding capital improvement projects and funding for them. He 
added that the City was working to improve reserve funds and prepare for 
changes such as CalPERS cost increases.  
 
Administrative Services Director Vega answered questions from Mayor Cervantez 
regarding reduction of City services and the budget. Mayor Cervantez requested 
that staff bring more information related to social service grants and youth 
summer programs to the following Council meeting.  
 
Member Dodge spoke about the challenges the City had in expanding and 
generating jobs in the City. He also spoke about the Airport’s deficit and the 
proposed loan. 
 
Mayor Cervantez spoke about changes the Airport has made to fees and leases. 
She requested that staff bring a report about fee increases and plans to increase 
revenue in the airport.  Administrative Services Director Vega stated he would add 
more detailed information about the airport to the budget report at the following 
meeting.  
 

10.1 EMERGENCY ITEMS ADDED TO AGENDA (None) 
 
10.2 INFORMATION ITEMS—Written Report(s) Only  

(a) Report of Disbursements 
(b) Miscellaneous Documents 
 

11.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 8:49 P.M. 
 

 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC052714  

204 

___________________________________ 
 Karina Cervantez, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________  

Beatriz Vázquez Flores, City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. _______ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE REJECTING CLAIM OF MARIA M. RAMIREZ FOR 
DAMAGES 

(Date of Occurrence: May 8, 2014) 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

That the claim of Maria M. Ramirez for damages, which was filed with the City 

Clerk on June 3, 2014, be and the same is hereby rejected. 

******************************* 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the Council of 

the City of Watsonville, held on the  day of        , 2014, by Council 

Member    , who moved its adoption, which motion being duly seconded 

by Council Member  , was upon roll call carried and the resolution 

adopted by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

   ______________________________ 
Karina Cervantez, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
  City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

____________________________ 
      City Attorney 

Reso No.           (CM)  
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\RC 14-16 Ramirez.docx 
ri 6/17/2014 12:16:53 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ 

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.2

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



CITY CLERK’S DATE STAMP: 

 CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
LIABILITY 

CLAIM FOR DAMAGES 
TO PERSON OR PROPERTY 

CLAIM NO. _________ 

RETURN TO: DISTRIBUTION: 
CITY MANAGER 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE CITY ATTORNEY 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK FINANCE DEPARTMENT (2) 
275 MAIN STREET, 4TH FLOOR  POLICE DEPARTMENT 
WATSONVILLE CA 95076          PUBLIC WORKS 

 SAFETY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER 
DEPARTMENT:  ______________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. Claims for death, injury to person, or to personal property must be filed not later than six (6) months after the occurrence
(Gov. Code §911.2).

2. Claims for damages to real property must be filed not later than one (1) year after the occurrence (Gov. Code §911.2).
3. READ ENTIRE CLAIM FORM BEFORE FILING.
4. ATTACH SEPARATE SHEETS, IF NECESSARY, TO GIVE FULL DETAILS.

NAME OF CLAIMANT DATE OF BIRTH OF CLAIMANT 

 (_________)_______________________________ 
HOME ADDRESS OF CLAIMANT CITY/STATE/ZIP HOME TELEPHONE NO. 

 (__________)______________________________ 
BUSINESS ADDRESS OF CLAIMANT CITY/STATE/ZIP BUSINESS TELEPHONE NO. 

ADDRESS TO WHICH CLAIMANT DESIRES NOTICES OR COMMUNICATIONS SENT REGARDING THIS CLAIM 
(If different from home address): 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEN DID DAMAGE OR INJURY OCCUR? 
DATE: 
TIME: ڤ A.M.   ڤ  P.M. 

PLACE OF ACCIDENT (OCCURRENCE) – BE SPECIFIC – Describe fully. Where appropriate, give street names and 
addresses for landmarks. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

HOW DID DAMAGE OR INJURY OCCUR? 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

WERE POLICE AT SCENE?      ڤ YES    ڤ NO    WERE PARAMEDICS AT SCENE?     ڤ YES    ڤ NO  

WHAT PARTICULAR ACT OR OMISSION DO YOU CLAIM CAUSED THE INJURY OR DAMAGES?  (Give name of 
City employee causing the injury or damage, if known.) 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

GIVE TOTAL AMOUNT OF CLAIM:  (Include estimate of amount of any prospective injury or damage) $_______________ 

Claim submitted in Spanish 
by claimant which is attached.

roxanna.ibarra
Highlight



CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
LIABILITY CLAIM FOR DAMAGES TO PERSON OR PROPERTY   Page 2 
 
HOW WAS THE AMOUNT OF CLAIM COMPUTED?  (Be specific, provide copies of doctor bills, repair estimates, etc.) 
PLEASE ATTACH TWO (2) ESTIMATES. 
 
DAMAGES INCURRED TO DATE: 
 
 ITEM/DATE  AMOUNT: $  
 ITEM/DATE  AMOUNT: $  
 TOTAL AMOUNT CLAIMED AS OF PRESENTATION OF THIS CLAIM: $  
 
ESTIMATED PROSPECTIVE DAMAGES AS FAR AS KNOWN: 
 
 ITEM/DATE  AMOUNT: $  
 ITEM/DATE  AMOUNT: $  
 TOTAL ESTIMATED PROSPECTIVE DAMAGES:   $  
 
 
 
 
WITNESSES TO DAMAGE OR INJURY:  (List all persons known to have information.  (Use attachment if necessary.) 
 
NAME: NAME:    
ADDRESS: ADDRESS:  
TELEPHONE: (_____)  TELEPHONE: (_____)   
   
 
IF INJURY, GIVE NAME, ADDRESS, TELEPHONE, DATE & TIME OF DOCTOR(S) OR HOSPITAL(S) VISITED: 
 
DOCTOR: TELEPHONE: (_____)   
ADDRESS: DATE/TIME:  
HOSPITAL: TELEPHONE: (_____)   
ADDRESS: DATE/TIME:  
   
 
Other Information:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
SIGNATURE OF CLAIMANT OR AGENT  TYPE OR PRINT NAME  DATE 
ACTING ON BEHALF OF CLAIMANT 
 
 
 
 
  
RELATIONSHIP TO CLAIMANT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTE: PRESENTATION OF A FALSE CLAIM IS A FELONY 
  (CALIFORNIA PENAL CODE §72) 







Page 1 of 2

ND 6/11/2014 3:39:57 PM 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\06-24-14\Signal Upgrades & Pedestrian Improvements\Signal Upgrades & Pedestrian Improvements Bid Final.doc 

City of Watsonville 

Public Works and Utilities Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: June 9, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Steve Palmisano, Director of Public Works and Utilities 
Natalie Diaz, Assistant Engineer  

SUBJECT: Approval of Plans and Specifications and Calling for Bids for 
the Signal Upgrades and Pedestrian Improvements Project, 
Project No. ST-13-02. 

AGENDA ITEM: June 24, 2014 City Council

RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution approving plans and specifications 
and a call for bids for the Signal Upgrades and Pedestrian Improvements Project.  

DISCUSSION:  
Staff has prepared plans and specifications to upgrade 23 signalized intersections throughout 
the City. The project will include the installation of countdown and audible pedestrian signals; 
installation of new opticom units for emergency vehicle preemption; modifications to existing 
placement of pedestrian pushbuttons and, where necessary, to curb ramps to ensure ADA 
compliance. Upgrading City signalized intersections will increase safety and awareness of 
pedestrians and motorists. 

The City received federal grant funds in the amount of $305,400 for this project.  Federal 
authorization to proceed with construction is required prior to soliciting bids.  This  
authorization has been requested and is anticipated to be received in July 2014.   

With prior City Council approval, the project advertisement period can begin immediately after 
the City receives the federal authorization to proceed with construction.  Bid opening and 
award of a construction contract are anticipated to take place in August 2014.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
The engineer’s estimate for the Signal Upgrades and Pedestrian Improvements Project is 
$510,000. The project will initially be funded by the Gas Tax fund, and $305,400 of the project 
cost will be reimbursed to the City through a Federal grant from the Highway Safety 
Improvement Program (HSIP).  This project is included in the Capital Improvement Projects in 
the City’s adopted budget. 

CITY COUNCIL 4.3

angela.paz
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 2 

 

ND 6/11/2014 3:39:57 PM 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\06-24-14\Signal Upgrades & Pedestrian Improvements\Signal Upgrades & Pedestrian Improvements Bid Final.doc 

 

 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN:   
This action is consistent with the strategic plan goal of improving infrastructure. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
City Council may decide not to approve the plans and specifications and not issue a call for 
bids for the project. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
None 
 
 
cc: City Attorney 



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS AND 
CALLING FOR BIDS FOR THE SIGNAL UPGRADES AND 
PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS, PROJECT NO. ST-13-02 
(ESTIMATED COST OF $510,000: $305,400 WILL INITIALLY BE 
FUNDED FROM STATE GAS TAX FUND AND WILL BE REIMBURSED 
FROM FEDERAL HIGHWAY SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
(HSIP)  

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the plans and specifications for the Signal Upgrades and Pedestrian

Improvements, Project No. ST-13-02, copies of which are on file in the Office of the City 

Clerk, are hereby ratified and approved. 

2. That the Purchasing Officer is hereby authorized and directed to call for

public competitive sealed bids for the above named project, and that the bids are to be 

opened in the “Old City Council Chambers,” 250 Main Street, Watsonville, California, on 

a date and time set by Public Works & Utilities Department staff, and the City Clerk is 

hereby directed to give notice inviting such sealed bids in the time, form, and manner 

provided by law. 

3. That hand-carried bids should be delivered to the City of Watsonville, 250

Main Street, Watsonville, California, c/o Purchasing Officer. Bidders may mail bids at 

their own risk to the City of Watsonville, c/o Purchasing Officer, 250 Main Street, 

Watsonville, California 95076. 

4. That after the bids are opened, they shall be tabulated and analyzed and a

report submitted to the City Manager, who shall recommend the awarding, or other 

action, to the Council at its next regular meeting, or as soon thereafter as possible. 

*********************************** 
Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\CB ST-13-02 Signal Upgrades & Pedestrian Improvements.docx 
ri 6/17/2014 12:55:11 PM AJS  ______ CJP ______ PWU ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.3

erika.sanchez
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 1 of 2

City of Watsonville 
Public Works & Utilities Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: June 11, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Steve Palmisano, Public Works & Utilities Director  
Nancy Lockwood, Sr. Environmental Projects Manager 
Clara Cawaling, Administrative Analyst 

SUBJECT: Authorization of City Manager to Execute Agreements and 
Submit Applications on behalf of the City of Watsonville for all 
CalRecycle Grants for which the City of Watsonville is eligible. 

AGENDA ITEM: June 24, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION:   
It is recommended that the City Council approve a resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute 
agreements with CalRecycle, formerly known as the California Integrated Waste Management Board, 
and submit applications for all CalRecycle Grants for which the City of Watsonville is eligible. These 
authorizations are effective for five (5) years from the date of adoption of this resolution. 

DISCUSSION:   
Funding received from CalRecycle Programs help the Public Works & Utilities Department to continue 
its efforts with the community to recycle used motor oil, tires, litter removal from city streets/roads and 
to fund a portion of the City’s Pavement Maintenance Program to keep our city streets safe and well 
maintained.  Below is a list of only a few of the grants given to the City of Watsonville by CalRecycle: 

1. Used Motor Oil (approximately $14,000 per year)
2. Local Government Waste Tire Amnesty (approximately $10,000 per year)
3. City/County Payment Program (CRV-Beverage Container Recycling Program) (approximately

$14,000 per year)
4. Rubberized Asphalt Concrete Chip Seal ($250,000 from the 2011/2012 grant period)

The City of Watsonville’s Public Works & Utilities Department applies for CalRecycle funding on an 
annual basis. The Resolution currently in place will expire in August of 2014 and will need to be 
renewed to apply for future CalRecycle Grants. 

STRATEGIC PLAN:   
The proposed authorization meets the goals and objectives outlined in the Strategic Plan for Enhancing 
the Community’s Image. 

CITY COUNCIL 4.4

erika.sanchez
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 2  

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
There are no costs associated with this authorization. It will, however, allow City staff to continue to 
secure grant funding to further the City’s efforts to recycle. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Council can choose not to approve the authorization. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
None 
 
 
Cc: City Attorney 



RESOLUTION NO.  (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER 
ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE TO SUBMIT GRANT 
APPLICATION(S) TO CALRECYCLE (FORMERLY CALIFORNIA 
INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT BOARD) FOR ALL 
CALRECYCLE GRANT PROGRAMS (USED OIL PAYMENT GRANT, 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT WASTE TIRE AMNESTY GRANT, 
CITY/COUNTY PAYMENT PROGRAM-CRV-BEVERAGE CONTAINER 
RECYCLING PROGRAM, AND RUBERRIZED ASPHALT CONCRETE 
CHIP SEAL PROGRAM); AND IF AWARDED, TO EXECUTE A 
STANDARD AGREEMENT AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO; AND 
ANY NECESSARY DOCUMENTS 

WHEREAS, Public Resources Code sections 40000 et seq. authorizes the 

Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle), formerly known as the 

California Integrated Waste Management Board, to administer various Grant Programs 

(grants) in furtherance of the State of California’s (State) efforts to reduce, recycle and 

reuse solid waste generated in the State thereby preserving landfill capacity and 

protecting public health and safety and the environment; and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of this authority CalRecycle is required to establish 

procedures governing the application, awarding, and management of the grants; and 

WHEREAS, CalRecycle grant application procedures require, among other 

things, an applicant’s governing body to declare by resolution certain authorizations 

related to the administration of CalRecycle grants. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City of Watsonville City Council hereby authorizes the submittal of

application(s) to CalRecycle for all grants for which the City of Watsonville is eligible. 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\CALRecycle Grant Applications.docx 
ri 6/18/2014 5:07:51 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ PWU______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.4

angela.paz
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



2. That the City Manager, or his/her designee is hereby authorized and 

empowered to execute in the name of the City of Watsonville all grant documents, 

including but not limited to, applications, agreements, amendments and requests for 

payment, necessary to secure grant funds and implement the approved grant project. 

3. That these authorizations are effective for five (5) years from the date of 

adoption of this resolution.   

 
******************************* 

Reso No.                (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\CALRecycle Grant Applications.docx  
ri 6/18/2014 5:07:51 PM 

2 



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 1 of 19
\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

City of Watsonville 

Finance Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: June 17, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Ezequiel Vega, Administrative Services Director 

SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the Award of RFP 2014-001 to Implement a 

New Electronic Resource Planning System (ERP) and Award 

Contract to Tyler Technologies 

AGENDA ITEM: June 24, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council of the City of Watsonville 

approves a resolution authorizing: 

a. The City Manager to enter into an agreement with Tyler Technologies, the successful

proposer of the City’s RFP 2014-002, for an amount not to exceed $665,984 for the

purchase and implementation of an Electronic Resource Planning (ERP) system in

accordance with the requirements of the City’s RFP 2014-001; and

b. Increase of appropriations in the FY 2014-15 budget in the amount of $602,061 from the

funds shown in Exhibit A below

Exhibit A 

DISCUSSION:   

The City of Watsonville uses many different systems to perform its financial, operational, and 

governance duties. Among these systems, MS Govern (GEMS) is the primary financial and 

payroll system. Some other key systems include RAS for cash receipting, Inhance for utility 

billing, PTWin for permitting and planning, and RecWare for parks and community services 

functions. 

The GEMS system was implemented in 1996 and it currently performs many of the basic 

financial reporting functions for the City well, but it has several limitations from an operational 

and technological perspective. It has limited or no support for many of today’s technologies such 

as paperless workflows, citizen portals, and modern banking practices such as positive pay. 

These system limitations have led the City to implement manual processes to achieve some of its 

essential business processes such as budgeting, financial statement preparation, and time sheets 

Fund Amount

General Fund 289,416$  

Library 39,457$   

Waste Water 88,716$   

Water 101,684$  

Solid Waste 82,787$   

Totals 602,061$  

CITY COUNCIL 4.5

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 2 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

workflows. Although these manual systems have worked for the City, they are labor intensive 

time consuming and frequently introduce errors in the process. 

 

The companies who developed the permits and the parks systems are no longer in existence so 

there is no technical support for those systems. If the systems were to fail, the City would be left 

with a difficult situation to deliver important services in those two areas.  

 

Given the current state of the City’s systems, the City Council approved a resolution (CM 135-

13) on September 10, 2013 moving forward with the issuance of a Request for Proposals (RFP) 

and authorizing appropriations from various funds for the purchase and implementation of a new 

Financial System. Since the modules to purchase the system have now been determined, the 

original resolution approving appropriations for this purchase is being rescinded with the new 

action recommended under this staff report. 

 

As City staff researched the available technology, it was evident the best option to upgrade the 

City’s financial system was to request proposals for a comprehensive integrated system. Getting 

such a system would enable the City to better serve its constituents by providing timely and 

accurate financial and programmatic information more easily when compared to the many of the 

existing old systems. Accordingly, the City issued RFP 2014-001 which requested responses 

from interested software firms to provide an integrated software solution which encompassed the 

following elements: 

 

 General Ledger 

 Accounts Payable 

 Accounts Receivable 

 Purchasing and Procurement 

 Budgeting 

 Fixed Assets 

 Business Licensing 

 Payroll and Human Resources 

 Permits and Planning  

 Parks and Community Services, and 

 Utility Billing and Cash Receipting 

 

The City received responses from three interested organizations and evaluated all three options. 

The first two options offered a comprehensive system which would offer a solution to all of the 

City’s needs. One of the respondents offered a solution for the Parks and Community Services 

component only. 

 

As part of the evaluation process, the City reviewed the response provided by each respondent 

which included the following components: 

 A cover letter 

 Company information 

 Project Schedule 

 Qualifications  

 Response to scope of services covering over 1,200 system requirements 

 Price 

 



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 3 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

Additionally, the City organized formal two day presentations from each of the two 

organizations offering the comprehensive solution to the City (Tyler Technologies and New 

World Systems) and a separate presentation was scheduled for the respondent offering a solution 

for the Parks department. A sample presentation schedule is attached to this staff report for your 

reference (Attachment 1). As you can see, the evaluation involved multiple staff from different 

departments. The evaluation of both systems was done consistently by the using a scripted form 

prepared by the Finance Department (Attachment 2) which included a demonstration of over 120 

key system functionalities. Staff scored each system and provided feedback to the Finance 

Department who tabulated the results and analyzed the overall functionality of the system. 

 

The City also checked at least five references for each system and visited at least one site where 

each system is currently operational. This comprehensive analysis resulted in the selection of 

Tyler Technologies and its Munis system. This system is currently operational in 50 cities in 

California and 800 nationwide.  Additionally, more cities have signed an agreement to 

implement Munis and are in some phase of implementation, this list includes the following 

cities: 

 Santa Barbara 

 Beverly Hills 

 Hayward 

 Tracy 

 Pasadena 

 Ukiah 

 Culver City 

 Lodi 

 

The total cost for the software licensing and implementation is $665,984. It is estimated these 

funds will be spent over the next couple of fiscal years as shown in the table below. 

Project Budget FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 Totals

Software License Fees 218,370$      -$          218,370$ 

Professional Services 

(Implementation) 215,560$      111,290$  326,850$ 

Tyler Travel Costs 56,775$        28,122$    84,897$   

Contingencies 21,316$        10,559$    31,875$   

Hardware 3,992$          -$          3,992$     

Annual Fiscal Impact 516,014$      149,970$  665,984$  
 

In addition to these project costs, the City will spend significant staff time and other resources to 

implement the Financial System. The City has incorporated $50,000 in the FY 2014-15 budget to 

account for additional temporary staff costs associated with the implementation of this system. 

 

The overall project costs will be shared by multiple funds. Costs were distributed among these 

funding sources based on the following methodologies: 

General Ledger   Budget Size by Fund 

Accounts Payable   Budget Size by Fund 

Purchasing    Budget Size by Fund 

Fixed Assets    Budget Size by Fund 

Contract Management   Budget Size by Fund 

Cash Management   Budget Size by Fund 



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 4 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

Payroll and HR   # of FTE’s by Fund 

Utility Billing    Divided Equally Among three utility funds 

Permits and Code Enforcement 100% to the General Fund 

Business Licensing   100% to the General Fund 

Accounts Receivable   # of Invoices by Fund 

GIS Integration   ¼ each utility fund and General Fund 

Parks and Recreation   100% to the General Fund 

Citizen Self Service   Equally among all funds 

 

Based on this methodology, implementation costs for the system would be broken down as 

follows:   

 
 

Tentative Schedule. As of the date of this staff report, the City is negotiating the 

implementation time frame for this project; however, City staff developed this tentative 

implementation table as a guide for key implementation dates. 

 

Description Date 

Issue Intent of Award April 24, 2014 

Contract Negotiations April 24 to May 30 2014 - 

City Council Approval and Contract Execution June 24, 2014 

Project Start Date July 16-24, 2014 

Go Live Date (G/L, A/R, A/P, Cash Receipts, Purchasing, Budget)  July 1, 2015 

Go Live (Payroll, HR) September 1, 2015 

Go Live (Fixed Assets, Business License, Contract Management, 
CAFR Statement Builder) 

September 1, 2015 

Go Live (Parks and Community Services ) September 1, 2015 

Go Live (Planning and Permits)  December 1, 2015 

Go Live (Utility Billing) July 1, 2016 

 

If the contract is approved by the City Council, the City Manager would execute the contract as 

soon as practicable and the City would begin to replace the outdated software systems following 

the implementation schedule above. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN: 

The recommendation supports the principles used to develop the 2013-14 Strategic Plan by 

focusing in the most effective utilization of resources and protecting public safety.  

 

Fund Amount Funding Source

General Fund 289,416$         One time Grizzly Flats Revenue

Library 39,457$           Cash Reserves

Waste Water 88,716$           Cash Reserves

Water 101,684$         Cash Reserves

Solid Waste 82,787$           Cash Reserves

Airport 63,923$           Current Year Revenues

Totals 665,984$         



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 5 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
The total cost for the implementation of this system is $665,984 over two years. The ongoing 

maintenance for the system is estimated at $72,000 for the second year with a maximum 5% 

increase each year. Additional budget appropriations would be necessary to complete this project 

for the following funds: 

 
The Airport fund will also contribute $63,923 for the completion of this project but no additional 

appropriations are required for that fund. 

 

ALTERNATIVES:   

The City Council can deny the authority to enter into a contract. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

Attachment 1:  Sample Software Presentation Schedule 

Attachment 2:  Sample Demonstration Scoring Sheet 

 

cc: City Attorney 

 

Fund Amount

General Fund 289,416$  

Library 39,457$   

Waste Water 88,716$   

Water 101,684$  

Solid Waste 82,787$   

Totals 602,061$  



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 6 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

Attachment 1 
Financial System Presentation Schedule 

City of Watsonville 

Day 1 

Ses. # Times Topic Location Core Staff Other Dept. 

Staff 

1 9:00 – 9:15  Introduction  275 Main Street, Council 

Chambers conference room 4
th

 

floor 

Ezequiel, Bill, 

Marissa D., 

Patricia, Kevin, 

Liz Reta, Rosie 

 

2 9:15 – 

10:00  

General 

Requirements  

275 Main Street, Council 

Chambers conference room 4
th

 

floor 

Ezequiel, Bill, 

Marissa D., 

Patricia, Kevin, 

Liz Reta, Rosie 

 

3 10:00 – 

11:00  

General Ledger   275 Main Street, Council 

Chambers conference room 4
th

 

floor 

Ezequiel, Bill, 

Marissa D., 

Patricia, Kevin, 

Liz Reta, Rosie 

 

4 11:00 – 

12:00  

Budgeting  275 Main Street, Council 

Chambers conference room 4
th

 

floor 

Ezequiel, Bill, 

Marissa D., 

Patricia, Kevin, 

Liz Reta, Rosie 

Any 

Department 

Director who 

wants to attend 

5 12:00 – 

1:15  

Lunch    

6 1:15 – 2:00  Purchasing 275 Main Street, Council 

Chambers conference room 4
th

 

floor 

Ezequiel, Bill, 

Marissa D., 

Patricia, Kevin, 

Liz Reta, Rosie 

Christine, Leti 

7 2:00 – 2:45  Accounts Payable  275 Main Street, Council 

Chambers conference room 4
th

 

floor 

Ezequiel, Bill, 

Marissa D., 

Patricia, Kevin, 

Liz Reta, Rosie 

Christine, Leti 

8 2:45 – 3:05 Business License 275 Main Street, Council 

Chambers conference room 4
th

 

floor 

Ezequiel, Bill, 

Marissa D., 

Patricia, Kevin, 

Liz Reta, Rosie 

Ilda 

9 3:05 – 3:20 Break    

10 3:20 – 5:00 Cash Receipts and 

Utility Billing 

275 Main Street, Council 

Chambers conference room 4
th

 

floor 

Ezequiel, Bill, 

Marissa D., 

Patricia, Kevin, 

Liz Reta, Rosie 

Gabe Gordo 

Leitica H, Mike 

Wolf, Maria 

Carranco 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 7 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

Attachment 1 

Financial System Presentation Schedule 

City of Watsonville 

Day 2 

Sessi

on 

Times Topic Location Core Staff Other Dept. 

Staff 

1 9:00 – 9:45  Accounts 

Receivable  

275 Main Street, Council 

Chambers conference room 4
th

 

floor 

Ezequiel, Bill, 

Marissa D., 

Patricia, Kevin, 

Liz Reta, Rosie 

Mary 

Stepovich, 

Maria Carranco 

2 9:45 – 10:30  Fixed Assets  275 Main Street, Council 

Chambers conference room 4
th

 

floor 

Ezequiel, Bill, 

Marissa D., 

Patricia, Kevin, 

Liz Reta, Rosie 

 

3 10:30 – 10:45  Break    

4 10:45 – 12:00 

 
Parks and 

Community 

Services  

275 Main Street, Council 

Chambers conference room 4
th

 

floor 

Ezequiel, Bill, 

Marissa D., 

Patricia, Kevin, 

Liz Reta, Rosie 

Brad Blachly, 

Marco, Desiree, 

Ana 

5 12:00 – 1:15  Lunch    

6 1:15 -  2:30  Permits, Planning, 

and Code 

Enforcement  

Services  

275 Main Street, Council 

Chambers conference room 4
th

 

floor 

Ezequiel, Bill, 

Marissa D., 

Patricia, Kevin, 

Liz Reta, Rosie 

Keith, Richard, 

Sofia 

7 2:30 – 2:45  Break    

8 2:45 – 5:00 Payroll and HR  275 Main Street, Council 

Chambers conference room 4
th

 

floor 

Ezequiel, Bill, 

Marissa D., 

Patricia, Kevin, 

Liz Reta, Rosie 

Marisa B. 

Nathalie M 

Frances 

Tamara 

Ilda 

 



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 8 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

Attachment 2 
Proof of Capabilities Demonstration  

RFP 2014-001 Financial System – City of Watsonville 
Scoring Guide 

4 = Fully demonstrated all aspects of requirements, 

3 = Demonstrated most of the essential requirements 

2 = Customization is required in order to perform the task 

0 = Did not meet the requirements 

 
Accounts Payable 

Req# Description Score Notes 

AP-1 Demonstrate one example of a travel advance from beginning to end 

1. Employee requesting the travel advance (electronically) 

attaches documents supporting the request by scanning. 

2. Approval Process as follows: 

a. Employee submits the request to supervisor 

b. Request is approved by supervisor and forwarded to 

department head 

c. Department head approves and sends to 

a. Finance if request is less than $250, or 

b. City Manager Designee if request is greater 

than $250 

1. Then send to Finance, final approval 

occurs 

2. What happens to the travel advance 

in the system, what standard reports 

and notifications are available in the 

system? 

d. If the request is denied at any point, demonstrate what 

happens to the request 

 

  

AP-2 Demonstrate how the system can generate a payment register to include 

at least the following fields: 

 Invoice Number, Vendor Name, Invoice Date, description of 

services (supplies) purchased, PO number, account number 

distribution (if applicable) and Invoice Total. 

 

Demonstrate how this file can be exported to Excel and sorted within the 

system by any field 

  

AP-3 Demonstrate data entry for multiple invoices by multiple locations 

simultaneously or in a central location and the following approval 

process: 

 Employee requesting the payment, ( attach supporting 

documentation for request) 

o Demonstrate how the system flags an item which is 

taxable (sales tax and a report showing all sales due 

for the period) 

 The invoice must have at least five accounting lines for 

distribution 

 Demonstrate the system’s ability to warn or stop the processing 

of invoice if the invoice has exceeded the purchase order 

amount 

Approval Process as follows: 

 Employee submits the request to supervisor 

 Supervisor sends the request back to employee for additional 

documentation, how is employee notified? Via e-mail? 

 Request is approved by supervisor and forwarded to 

department head 

  



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 9 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

 Department head approves and sends to Finance for final 

approval 

 Finance Approves the request 

 How the system calculates discount terms entered into the 

system is payment is issued within the discount period 

 How can requester track status of payment request 

 

AP-4 Demonstrate data entry of vendor which includes a special field to mark 

the vendor as a 1099 vendor 

  

AP-5 Demonstrate the Accounts payable system master file link to the 

purchasing master system to avoid duplication of vendors in the system 

 

  

AP-6 Demonstrate integration with the Accounts Receivable module by 

showing a scenario where the vendor is also a customer and there is an 

amount due and the system can allow for offsetting of account balances 

 

  

AP-7 Demonstrate a sample file to be used for positive pay transmission to a 

banking institution 

 

  

AP-8 Demonstrate the connection and established file to generate 1099’s and 

transmit the electronic file to the IRS 

 

  

AP-9 Demonstrate how to issue a manual check (outside of the payables 

cycle, the city currently prints checks bi-weekly) AND how a check run 

can be done.  

  

 

Purchasing 

 

Req# Description Score Notes 

PU-1 Demonstrate the following: 

 Enter a PO and provide all procedural functions of an 

encumbrance system including verification of budget 

availability before accepting invoice and purchase order 

transactions (require authorization when funds are not 

available), and ability to enter expenditures not previously 

encumbered. 

 Purchase order number should be numbered automatically 

and be different from purchase requisition 

 Also, demonstrate how retentions and escrow amounts are 

handled in the system 

  

PU-2 Demonstrate the following: 

 Demonstrate what type of changes can be done to a 

purchase order before any payments have been applied 

against that PO 

 Demonstrate what type of changes can be done to a 

purchase order AFTER any payments have been applied 

against that PO 

 

  

PU-3 Provide the ability to partially or fully liquidate encumbrances at 

time of payment vouching. 

  

PU-4 Provide the ability to enter / encumber new fiscal year purchase 

orders while current fiscal year is still open. 

  

PU-5 At fiscal year-end, roll outstanding encumbrances into the next fiscal 

year, after proper reviews and approvals. 

  

PU-6 Ability to automatically flag fixed assets at the time when the 

purchase order is encumbered. 

  

PU-7 Allow optional printing of Purchase Orders one at a time, all at once, 

within date range, department range, or account number range for a 

  



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 10 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

specific vendor. 

PU-8 Ability to provide up-to-the-minute purchasing reports showing 

goods requested versus goods ordered and available balance. 

  

PU-9 Demonstrate how the system prevents duplicate entries in the vendor 

master file 

  

PU-

10 

Demonstrate how the system provides the ability to calculate taxes 

automatically based on taxability of line item and pre-established 

Sales Tax rate from Vendor File. 

  

 

Accounts Receivable 

Req# Description Score Notes 

AR-1 Demonstrate how the system prevents duplicate entry of customer 

accounts and allows multiple addresses for one account 

 

  

AR-2 Demonstrate a full billing cycle which demonstrates the following: 

 Ability to print invoices by individual customer or by 

batch 

 Generate recurring invoices 

 Ability to invoice selected accounts based on a schedule 

selected by the user 

 Ability to add notes to the invoices 

 Ability for calculation of late fees and penalties either by 

system defined fields or as selected by the user 

  

AR-3 Demonstrate how payments can applied to include: 

 Multiple payments against a single invoice 

 Single payments against multiple invoices 

 

  

AR-4 Demonstrate how the system is integrated with the General Ledger, 

 What is posted to the General Ledger? 

 Drill down capability from the General Ledger to the 

detail in the A/R module 

 

  

AR-5 Demonstrate an example of an aging report and a breakdown by 

 Fund, customer, and date 

Demonstrate an outstanding balances summary report by customer, 

fund, and date 

  

 

Budget 

Req# Description Score Notes 

BU-1 Demonstrate the full cycle of preparation of a budget 

 Department requests the budget 

 Finance Reviews the budget, makes changes to the budget, 

and recommends a new budget 

 The City Council or City Council can make changes to the 

recommended budget, making it the adopted budget 

 Demonstrate how these separate budgets can be stored in 

the system and a standard report which can be used for 

viewing all these budgets side by side. 

 

  

BU-2 Demonstrate the System’s ability to import a budget from Excel 

(see the attached budget document (OR a file already prepared 

by vendor) and indicate if your system can import the data from 

this file with minimal manipulation or major changes to the 

format). The City is looking at using the FY 2013-14 and 2014-15 

as a sample. 

 

  



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 11 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

Demonstrate the system’s capability for accepting two fiscal year 

budgets with a base budget in year 1 and a modified budget for 

year 2 with specific increases to certain budget lines based on 

selected criteria such as a percentage increase. Plus a 5 year 

projection based on percentage increases to specific line items on 

the budget. AND ensuring only one budget is the active one, 

approved budget at any time. 
 

BU-3 Demonstrate the system’s capability of allowing for modification of 

the adopted budget if an error was made in initial data entry (with 

appropriate approval controls in place). 

 

  

BU-4 Demonstrate the system’s ability to provide for position budgeting 

and how the human resources module is linked to the budget 

module for this purpose. 

 

  

BU-5 Demonstrate the system’s ability to produce "what if" analysis for 

labor negotiation and budget projection purposes (e.g., Impact of 

5% pay increase) as well as worksheets by Department containing: 

Position name, employee name, employee number, employee 

group, pay range, pay step, next scheduled increase, rate of pay 

after increase, date of hire, number of months in position, hourly 

rate, monthly salary, annual salary, fringe benefits, and totals. 

 

  

BU-6 Demonstrate available budget monitoring reports that show the 

following: 

 Summary revenues and expenditures by fund and their 

variance from budget 

 Drill down capabilities from these reports to the detailed 

transactions 

 Summary Reports within a fund by major expense 

category, i.e. salaries and benefits, services and supplies, 

capital, etc. and drill down capabilities. 

 Detail reports for budget reporting to include at a 

minimum: 

o Fund 

o Department 

o Object (Revenue) 

o Object (Revenue) Description 

o Project # 

o Fund Name 

o Department Name 

o Current Modified Budget 

o Actual Expenditures (revenues) period to date 

and year to date 

 

  

 

 

Business License 

Req# Description Score Notes 

BL-1 Demonstrate the process of issuing a business license to include: 

 Numbering of licenses by the system 

 Correction of business license application information 

before and after issuance. 

 

Demonstrate how the system can accommodate charging a prorated 

amount of a business license fee if a fee is received at ¾ of the 

fiscal year of ½ of a fiscal year. 

  



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 12 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

 The system can charge for business license fees and 

administrative fees, both of which are prorated  

 Penalties, how does the system handle them? 

BL-2 Demonstrate reports that shows the following: 

 Total new business licenses acquired for a specific period 

of time which includes the name of the business, date 

license acquired and business contact information 

 # of employees for each business and the business address 

  

BL-3 Demonstrate how the system can protect access to sensitive data, 

i.e. social security numbers  

  

BL-4 Demonstrate the system’s querying capabilities by wildcard and 

other time saving techniques 

  

BL-5 Demonstrate how the system interacts with the cash receipting 

system, and the general ledger and drill down capabilities from the 

G/L to the business license module 

  

BL-6 Demonstrate the systems capabilities of showing online information 

to applicants while protecting confidential data. 

  

 

Cash Receipts 

Req# Description Score Notes 

CR-1 Demonstrate the system’s ability to make cash receipts from 

multiple sources including: 

 Utility accounts, 

 Receivables 

 Business license 

 Planning and permits 

 Fee payments 

 Fines payments 

The system must be integrated with the other modules. 

Demonstrate the integration of all the systems and how the user can 

drill down from the G/L to the original transaction and what the 

system shows in the other modules. 

 

Also, demonstrate the type of receipts the system generates for each 

type of transaction. 

  

CR-2 Demonstrate the system’s ability to Print Cash Receipts Journal by 

cashier and total with Bank Account, G/L account number, 

Receivable Type, Payment type, Customer Account, Date, Site 

(address), Time, Cashier, Dollar Amount and Description. 

  

CR-3 Demonstrate how the system can post to the general ledger: 

 A batch and its related entry to the G/L 

  

CR-4 Demonstrate examples of the following reports: 

 Cash entry edit report 

 Cash posting summary report 

 G/L journal report 

 G/L Detail report 

And demonstrate the system’s ability to export any of these reports 

to Excel 

  

CR-5 Demonstrate how the cash receipting system could accept batch 

payments via Infosend system (or other system already tested by 

vendor) 

  

CR-6 Demonstrate the end of the day and shift and initiating the 

following day’s business. 

  

 

Fixed Assets 

Req# Description Score Notes 

CA-1 Demonstrate how the system provides ability to track and report   



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 13 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

 real property (e.g., land and buildings) by parcel number 

and street address location. 

CA-2 Demonstrate the system’s capability to track additions and 

deletions of components to an asset - transfers, repairs, location, 

and 'attached-to' equipment. 

  

CA-3 Demonstrate the system’s capability to track asset from “cradle to 

grave”; tracing a fixed asset back to the transactions by which it 

was acquired, such as purchase orders, capital-project charges, etc.   

  

CA-4 Demonstrate how the system automatically generates journal 

entries associated with transfer of assets between General Ledger 

accounts. 

  

CA-5 Demonstrate how the system assigns assets to specific people, 

departments, programs, projects, activities, etc., so that the various 

costs associated with those assets (including maintenance) are 

tracked and charged back. 

 Demonstrate the funding used to acquire the asset if 

multiple funds were used to acquire it 

  

CA-6 Demonstrate the system’s ability to track depreciation of assets 

using the straight line method or other methods available in the 

system 

  

CA-7 Provide a sample report which can be used for financial audit 

reporting purposes. 

  

CA-8 Demonstrate if the system will accept an Excel file with assets’ 

specific data to be imported into the system 

  

 

General Ledger 

Req# Description Score Notes 

GL-1 Demonstrate how the detail general ledger transactions can drill 

down to the each component of the system including: 

 Purchase order system 

 Journal Entries 

 Payroll charges 

 Show if the drill down will show the employees charges 

which make up the general ledger expense amount for that 

period. 

 Accounts Payable Module  

 Utilities Module 

 Accounts Receivable module 

 Cash receipting module 

 

  

GL-2 Demonstrate at a minimum the basic year end reports available for 

closing the fiscal year AND indicate if these reports are standard or 

the City would have to create: 

 Trial Balance 

 Revenue and Expenditure Reports 

 Balance Sheet 

 Statement of Net Position 

 GASB 34 statements  

 Statement of Cash Flows 

 Account details summary reports 

 

  

GL-3 Demonstrate the cash management reports available (in particular) 

 Cash balances by fund 

Cash reconciliation reports to be used for bank reconciliation (the 

report must have the type of transaction affecting cash, i.e. JE, CR, 

or other) 

  

GL-4 Demonstrate the system’s capacity to accept project numbers which   



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 14 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

cross multiple funds, departments, and objects. 

GL-5 Demonstrate system’s ability to view, query, and report on 

historical and current financial and budgetary revenue and 

expenditure data at both a detailed and summary level. 

  

GL-6 Demonstrate the system’s ability to block chart of accounts 

elements which are not active or are restricted due to system 

security.  Show this while performing a journal entry. 

  

GL-7 Demonstrate how the system handles recurring and manual journal 

entries 

  

GL-8 Demonstrate how the system handles reversal of accruals and the 

use of reporting periods 13 and 14. 

  

 

General Requirements 

Req# Description Score Notes 

GE-1 Demonstrate how your system can provide an user configurable 

dashboard 

  

GE-2 Demonstrate how the system  tracks audit trail for transactions in 

the system 

  

GE-3 Demonstrate the system’s ability to have multiple screens and / or 

modules open simultaneously for inquiry, update, or data entry, 

with the ability to toggle from one to another at any time. 

  

GE-4 Demonstrate the system’s ability to make real-time online queries 

or view reports electronically (as opposed to printed reports) on any 

combination of data fields and display any combination of data 

fields, from all data tables. 

  

GE-5 Demonstrate the system’s ability to utilize attached or referenced 

images (jpg, gif, bmp, etc.) and files (Word, Excel, etc) in 

reporting. 

  

GE-6 Demonstrate the system’s ability to set up rules for multiple levels 

of approval, based on the chain of command that shows who 

supervises whom and other parameters ,such as dollar amount of 

the item requested, the dollar limit of the user’s position, the type of 

commodity being requested, etc. 

  

GE-7 Demonstrate the system’s standard reporting tool and in general 

provide an overview of system standard reports in the G/L system 

  

 

Payroll 

Req# Description Score Notes 

PR-1 Run a full payroll cycle by loading at least one employee from each 

bargaining unit using the attached payroll file (or a file the 

vendor has already prepared which accounts for at least one 

police officer, one fire fighter, and three other miscellaneous  

groups). After running the payroll run reports which demonstrate 

the following 

 Payroll Calculations are accurate for a biweekly payroll 

 Fire personnel work 56 hour weeks 

 Police personnel work 40 hour weeks 

 All other personnel works 36 hour weeks  

 All special pays for all bargaining groups are calculated 

appropriately 

o  (some special pays are calculated as a percentage 

of pay, others have a fixed amount, while others 

are a percentage of a percentage) 

 All deductions per employee are calculated correctly 

o Demonstrate voluntary vs. statutory deductions 

(i.e. medicare vs. AFLAC) 

 PERS contributions are calculated correctly and the PERS 

contribution amounts are exported to a report which could 

  



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 15 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

be uploaded meeting the CalPERS requirements. 

 Update payroll to the G/L  - payroll summary report and 

payroll register 

 Simulate printing of payroll checks 

 Demonstrate reprinting capabilities of a paystub 

 

PR-2 Demonstrate Quarterly reports could be run and calculate 

appropriately  

 DE9c,  

 DE9 

 941 report (show how this report ties to the G/L) 

 

  

PR-3 Demonstrate W-2 work correctly when pulling information from 

the system Demonstrate the process for running W-2s. 

 

  

PR-4 Demonstrate the system’s ability to provide multiple, user-defined 

leave type accrual rate categories with ability to set maximum 

accruals and automatic accrual rate changes based on user-defined 

criteria for individual employees or groups of employees. 

  

PR-5 Demonstrate the system’s ability to allow employment date to be 

used for accrual calculation purposes; it should provide the ability 

to reflect an adjusted hiring date. 

  

PR-6 Demonstrate the system’s ability to track and report on long term 

leave (e.g., family and medical leave, maternity, time off without 

pay) and reason for leave without pay. 

  

PR-7 Demonstrate the system’s ability to adjust (either add or subtract) 

accrual balances (within security constraints), for example sick, 

vacation, or administrative leaves. Include an audit trail of 

adjustments. 

  

PR-8 Demonstrate the system’s ability to provide for accrual of leave 

hours and other accrual-based benefits, based on complex formulas 

and rules that may be unique to each bargaining unit. 

  

PR-9 Demonstrate the system’s ability to maintain employee pay history 

including (at a minimum) date of hire, pay change dates, position 

change dates, special assignments pay, leave without pay, out of 

classification, etc. 

  

PR-10 Demonstrate the system’s ability, through General Ledger; provide 

drill down access to related Payroll data. 

  

PR-11 Demonstrate the system’s ability to change wage or benefit 

amounts individually or by groups by a stated percentage or a 

specified amount or table by category (e.g. married or single, 

management, etc.) with effective dates to allow for entry previous 

to the required date. If limited, vendor to indicate maximum 

number. 

  

PR-12 Demonstrate the system’s ability  for certain groups of employees 

or individuals to be included / excluded from Social Security, 

Medicare, and / or PERS. 

  

PR-13 Demonstrate the system’s ability to provide calculations for 

Overtime required by FLSA regulations, MOUs and personnel rules 

and regulations. 

  

PR-14 Demonstrate the system’s ability to provide for the calculation of 

retroactive pay, taxes, benefits deductions and PERS calculation 

(with ability to add notes / reasons). 

  

PR-15 Demonstrate the system’s ability to provide for direct deposit of 

payroll checks (for any amount up to and including net pay) to 

employee's financial institutions. 

  

PR-16 Demonstrate generation of a payroll manual check outside of the 

payroll cycle 

  



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 16 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

PR17 Demonstrate a standard state controller report and how to add fields 

to the report based on user specifications 

  

PR-18 Demonstrate time sheet entry from a remote location and the 

approval process with two levels of approval: 

 Also provide a summary report, summarizing the hours 

entered 

  

HR-9 Demonstrate a system report which provides the number of 

positions hired and terminated (resigned, retired, or asked to leave) 

for a range of dates. 

  

 

Human Resources 

Req# Description Score Notes 

HR-1 Demonstrate the system’s ability to provide for the projection of 

salaries (including vacant positions) in a variety of ways, including 

but not limited to: by individual, classification, department and / or 

Citywide, based on the projected awarding of salary increases and 

bonuses.  

  

HR-2 Demonstrate setup of hiring for a new employee; 

 Salary or pay rate 

 Marital status 

 Dependents 

 Health elections 

 Life insurance elections 

 Optional benefits such as AFLAC 

 Emergency contacts 

 Cost center for payroll reporting purposes 

 Department 

 supervisor 

  

HR-3 Demonstrate  

 how the system works for approval of leave requests 

through workflow 

 how employees can update their personal information to 

include: 

o mailing address 

o change in marital status 

o Change in number of dependents and other 

dependent information, etc. 

 

  

HR-4 Demonstrate the system’s ability to provide a maximum accrual of 

leave benefits with ability to alert for employees that are 

approaching the maximum. 

  

HR-5 Demonstrate how the system integrates of Human Resources with 

Payroll application, including the sharing of some data fields (e.g., 

when adding a new employee, system must not require re-keying of 

name and address information). 

  

HR-6 Demonstrate how the system provides for mass or cross updating to 

the employee master file based on changes made to other system 

files. For example, when a class title or salary range changes for a 

class, the system should be able to update this information in all 

relevant files. 

  

HR-7 Demonstrate the system’s ability to track hours and related dollars 

worked, on worker’s compensation, on light-duty modified time by 

employee and or injury. 

  

HR-8 Demonstrate the system’s ability to record information related to 

training and education, including but not limited to: highest level of 

education attained, degree level, field of degree, date of degree, 

schools attended, certification information, course name, date of 

expenditure for tuition, number of hours completed, tuition costs, 

  



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 17 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

beginning and ending dates of course, and course grade. 

HR-9 Demonstrate a summary screen which shows all the pay 

information to use for verification of employment 

  

    

 

Parks and Community Services 

Req# Description Score Notes 

PS-1 Demonstrate the system’s ability to capture registration program 

information such as name, number of participants, address, income 

levels, and activity numbers for each program or sport. It will also 

capture date of enrollment in a program and amount paid for 

enrollment, and payee. 

  

PS-2 The system will generate reports with all data fields including the 

total number of participants per program and rosters for 

registrations. 

  

PS-3 

 

The system will generate reports with all data fields including the 

total number of participants per program and rosters for 

registrations. 

 

  

PS-4 The system will be integrated with cash receipts to avoid duplicate 

data entry 

 

  

PS-4 The system will have the ability to look up and view enrollees in 

the program by any available field, including last name, first name, 

address, etc. 

 

  

PS-5 The system will have the ability to record fees for each program, 

and calculate amount due to instructors based on the fees collected 

for each program 

 

  

PS-6 It will track deposits for specific rentals and refunds of such 

deposits and will provide the ability to generate a report for this 

activity 

 

  

PS-7 It will provide the ability for staff to  void a transaction with 

specific workflow approvals as determined by City 

 

  

PS-8 The system will allow for transfers of enrollees from one program 

to another based on a workflow approval system designed by the 

City 

 

  

PS-9 The system will provide end of the day activity reports 

summarizing cash receipts and activity by program (i.e. # of 

customers enrolled in a program, rentals, etc) 

 

  

PS-10 The system will provide the ability to register online for specific 

programs and will link to the City's portal for registration 

  

PS-11 The system will allow for assignment of participants into teams 

 

  

PS-12 The system will allow for generation of reports which can include 

specific fields selected by City staff. 

 

  

 

Permits, Planning, and Code Enforcement 

Req# Description Score Notes 

CD-1 Demonstrate how the system must tracks all permits/activities 

(Building, Fire and Planning) through each stage of their lifecycle 

in a way that all staff can easily view pertinent data about a 

  



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 18 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

permit/activity. 

CD-2 Demonstrate how the system handles review and approval by 

multiple disciplines (i.e. Fire and Building) and the status of the 

review process at any stage up to final approval. Also demonstrate 

how the system handles correction of  a permit that was issued or 

finaled in error. 

  

CD-3 Demonstrate how the  system allows the public to access permit 

status or other pertinent information via the Internet 

  

CD-4 Demonstrate how consumers can apply for and pay for their permits 

online 

  

CD-5 Demonstrate how the system provides a facility for the creation of 

operational documents including but not limited to permits, letters, 

and receipts from system data. 

  

CD-7 Demonstrate how the system payments interact with the cash 

receipting system and the general ledger 

  

CD-8 Demonstrate a sample of documents stored in the system for 

archiving 

  

CD-9 Demonstrate how the system supports employee resource 

management, including tracking employee labor effort, employee 

assignment and utilization, management reporting and performance 

goals, full support for industry-standard reporting and querying 

tools, and the ability to customize reports as required. 

  

 

Utility Billing 

Req# Description Score Notes 

UB-1 Demonstrate how a full billing cycle is handled in the system. The 

City currently sends a billing file to Infosend. Demonstrate how 

your system would handle this and show the system being able to 

handle multiple billing cycles in the same month. 

  

UB-2 Demonstrate how payments are applied in the system and how the 

system interacts with the cash receipting system in the following 

scenario: 

 A customer is paying the full amount of the bill due.  

 A customer is making a partial payment and the account 

has only the current balance due. Demonstrate the ability 

of the system to automatically apply payments to each 

utility based on the proportion of the bill to each utility 

 A customer makes a partial payment where past due 

amounts exist in the account. The payment amount cannot 

cover the full amount due, how does the system handle 

this payment? 

 How is each scenario handled in the cash receipting 

system and posted to each utility fund separately; 

o Water 

o Sewer 

o Solid Waste 

 Demonstrate how the system would handle acceptance of 

bank draft  

  

UB-3 Demonstrate a system generated bill which shows the following: 

 A flat fee for a water line (billed based on the size of the 

water connection) 

 A variable fee based on water consumption 

 A one-time billing for a bulky item, garbage dumps, 

containers, etc. 

  

  

UB-4 Demonstrate the system’s ability to keep inventory of meters and 

other devices for the three utilities: 

 Including garbage trucks and other items 

  



EV 06/18/2014 7:35 AM Page 19 of 19 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\RFP\Financial System\06 24 2014 SR ERP System D3.docx 

UB-5 Demonstrate how the system accepts automatic reading from 

Sensus. 

  

UB-6 Demonstrate the Drill down capabilities and full integration with 

Cash Receipting, G/L and other modules within the system 

  

UB-7 Demonstrate the system’s ability to produce delinquent or late 

notices along with door hangers based on a predetermined set of 

rules set by the City 

  

UB-8 Demonstrate ability to access accounts by scanning bar code on 

printed bill, or manually by entering several attributes such as 

service address, account holder name, account number, etc. 

  

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE AWARDING CONTRACT TO TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, A 
DELAWARE CORPORATION, FOR THE PURCHASE AND 
IMPLEMENTATION OF AN ELECTRONIC RESOURCE PLANNING 
SYSTEM (ERP) IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIRMENTS OF THE 
CITY’S REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 2014-001 (RFP) IN AN AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $665,984; AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE SAME, AND AUTHORIZING A $602,061 
BUDGET APPROPRIATION FOR FY 2014-2015 ($289,416 FROM THE 
GENERAL FUND, $39,457 FROM THE LIBRARY FUND, $88,716 FROM 
THE WASTEWATER FUND, $101,684 FROM THE WATER ENTERPRISE 
FUND, AND $82,787 FROM THE SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND)  

Rescinds Resolution No. 135-13 (CM) 

WHEREAS, on or about September 10, 2013, the City Council, authorized the 

Request for Proposals (RFP) for the acquisition of a new financial system; and 

WHEREAS, a (RFP) was issued on January 1, 2014, asking for interested software 

firms to provide an integrated software solution to all of the City’s needs; and 

WHEREAS, Finance Department staff ranked the proposals received for 

consideration by the City Manager and submission to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has recommended that the proposal from Tyler 

Technologies, a Delaware corporation, be accepted as the best response. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the proposal from Tyler Technologies, a Delaware corporation, is hereby

accepted. 

2. That the Agreement for the purchase and implementation of an Electronic

Resource Planning (ERP) system, commencing June 25, 2014, between the City of 

Watsonville and Tyler Technologies, a Delaware corporation, a copy of which Agreement is 

Reso No.           (CM)   1 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\AWARDING TYLER TECHNOLOGIES FOR ERP SYSTEM.DOCX 
ri 6/18/14 (4:56PM)      AJS _______ CJP _______ Finance _______ 

CITY COUNCIL 4.5

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, is fair and equitable and is 

hereby ratified and approved. 

3. That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute 

such Agreement on behalf of the City of Watsonville. 

4. That the budget appropriation of $602,061 for FY 2014-2015 ($289,416 from 

the General Fund, $39,457 from the Library Fund, $88,716 from the Wastewater Fund, 

$101,684 from the Water Enterprise Fund and $82,787 from the Solid Waste Enterprise 

Fund) is hereby authorized. 

5. That all other proposals are hereby rejected. 

****************************** 

Reso No.           (CM)        2 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\AWARDING TYLER TECHNOLOGIES FOR ERP SYSTEM.DOCX 
ri 6/18/14 (4:56PM)  































































































Page 1 of 2

M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\06-24-14\Timber Harvest contract\Staff Report_Harvest Contract.docx 

City of Watsonville 
Public Works & Utilities 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: June 17, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Steve Palmisano, Public Works & Utilities Director 
Liz Reta, Administrative Services Manager for PW&U 

SUBJECT: Contract for Selective Timber Harvest of the Grizzly Flats 
Property 

AGENDA ITEM: June 24, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION:   
It is recommended that the City Council approve a contract with Big Creek Lumber 
Company for the selective harvest and milling of timber on the Grizzly Flats property. 

DISCUSSION:    
In April 2014, a Timber Harvesting Plan (THP) was approved by CAL FIRE for the City 
owned Grizzly Flats property near Corralitos. This THP is designed to be part of a long-
term sustainable forest management plan, whereby additional timber harvests can be 
performed approximately every 10 to 12 years while still allowing a long-term increase 
in the volume of timber on the property.  Similar to the last harvest in 1995-1996, this 
harvest would include 30% to 40% of the redwood and fir trees in excess of 18 inches in 
diameter.   

Forester Bill Vaughan is under contract with the City to assist with solicitation of request 
for proposals and the selection of and contract negotiations with a logger and log 
purchaser for the timber harvest.  Three local loggers and two mills responded to the 
recent proposal request.  The Big Creek Lumber Company is being recommended for 
this project based on their extensive experience, reputation and ability to provide all 
services (logging, transportation and milling operations) required by the City.   

Once the contract is approved, the harvesting and milling process can begin in late 
June and end in mid October 2014.  Logging during these months affords the least 
disruption to the many schools and other organizations which currently use the Grizzly 
Flats property for environmental programs and recreation.  Staff recommends that the 
City Council approve a contract with Big Creek Lumber Company for the selective 
harvest and milling of timber on the Grizzly Flats property. 

CITY COUNCIL 4.6

erika.sanchez
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 2 
 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\06-24-14\Timber Harvest contract\Staff Report_Harvest Contract.docx 

 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN:   
The recommended action supports the Strategic Plan objectives by providing additional 
revenue to the City. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
It is estimated that this timber harvest would generate net revenue to the City’s General 
Fund of approximately $280,000 after deductions for contracted forestry costs and 
required construction and maintenance items.   
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
The Council could choose to delay or cancel the timber harvest. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
None 
 
cc: City Attorney 



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE AND BIG CREEK LUMBER COMPANY, A 
CORPORATION, FOR THE SELECTIVE HARVEST AND MILLING OF 
TIMBER ON THE GRIZZLY FLATS PROPERTY, AND AUTHORIZING 
AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE SAME 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the Agreement between the City of Watsonville and Big Creek Lumber

Company, a corporation, for the selective harvest and milling of timber on the Grizzly 

Flats property, a copy of which Agreement is attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

this reference, is fair and equitable and is hereby ratified and approved. 

2. That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute

said Agreement for and on behalf of the City of Watsonville. 

***************************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\Agrmt Big Creek Lumber Company.docx 
ri 6/18/2014 5:06:59 PM AJS ______ CJP ______  PWU ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.6

angela.paz
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp































City Council _______ 

Page 1 of 3
TOM SHARP   5/28/2013 11:43 AM 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\06-24-14\Approve Zone 7 2014-15 FY Budget\Zone 7 Budget Staff Report 
2014-15-SP.doc 

City of Watsonville 
Public Works & Utilities 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: June 10, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Resolution Approving the FY 2014/2015 Budget for Santa Cruz 
County Zone 7 Flood Control and Water Conservation District 
(Zone 7) 

AGENDA ITEM: June 24, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that City Council adopt a resolution approving the proposed FY 2014/2015 
budget for the Santa Cruz County Zone 7 Flood Control and Water Conservation District (Zone 
7). 

DISCUSSION: 
The Zone 7 Board of Directors, which includes Council Member Bilicich as the Board Chair, is 
scheduled to consider the proposed FY 2014/2015 Zone 7 budget at its meeting on June 16, 
2014.  The Zone 7 budget also requires approval by the Santa Cruz County Flood Control and 
Water Conservation District Board of Directors and the Watsonville City Council before it can 
be implemented by Zone 7. 

The Zone 7 District was established to provide funding for maintaining the existing Army Corps 
of Engineers flood control projects and implementing the improvements to the flood control 
projects on the Pajaro River, Salsipuedes Creek and Corralitos Creek. Zone 7 staff 
coordinates with the Corps to ensure local needs are addressed, provides assistance to the 
Corps as necessary in project evaluation, administrative and engineering drainage services, 
and is responsible for the replacement, upgrading, and maintenance of drainage and flood 
control facilities in the levee system. The budget presents the projects and programs included 
in the proposed 2014/2015 Capital Improvement Program. 

The Zone 7 FY 2014/2015 budget prepared by Santa Cruz County staff is presented below 
along with an estimate of FY 2013/2014 expenditures. 

FROM: Steve Palmisano, Director of Public Works & Utilities
  Tom Sharp, Senior Engineering Associate

4.7

erika.sanchez
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 3
TOM SHARP   5/28/2013 11:42 AM 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\06-24-14\Approve Zone 7 2014-15 FY Budget\Zone 7 Budget Staff Report 2014-15-
SP.doc 

Expenditures 2013/2014 
Estimated 

2014/2015 
Proposed 

Maintenance & Operations on the Levee System $451,007 $445,000 
Public Safety Cleanup 0 $5,000 
Pajaro River 1601/404 Maintenance Applications $30,000 $30,000 
General Engineering & Public Service $240,000 $240,000 
Permit and Monitoring Requirements $309,427 $265,000 
County Counsel Service $25,000 $15,300 
ALERT Monitoring Requirements  $45,000 $35,000 
Pajaro River Watershed JPA $35,000 $35,000 
Army Corps Flood Control Projects (Prop 1E) 
Contributions to Army Corps 

$511,353 
$350,000 

$3,607,632 
$200,000 

Prop 1E Stormwater Management (incl. in Prop1E) $3,319,155 0 
Flood Control Project Advocacy $71,000 $71,000 
Bank Stabilization 0 $50,000 
Bench Excavation Project 
Contributions to Other Agencies 
Shell Road Pumps Reconstruction 

$5,950,786 
$2,100,000 

 $5,000 

$3,040,000 
0 
0 

Salsipuedes Creek Levee Restoration Project $2,016,638 0 
Sediment maintenance on Salsipuedes Creek  0 $80,000 
Levee Pump Station Upgrade 0 $150,000 
Maintenance Vehicles  0 $80,000 
Contingencies $206,086 $79,464 
Liquidate Prior Year Encumbrances $263,962 _____  0 

TOTAL $15,929,414 $8,428,396 

The recommended financing includes an estimated June 30, 2014 fund balance of $314,350, 
assessments of $1,824,651, and grant revenues of $6,289,395.   The recommended 
appropriations total $8,428,396, leaving an estimated $0 in unappropriated fund balances.  

A copy of the proposed 2014-2015 Zone 7 Budget, the Supplemental Budget and the budget 
narrative prepared the County Administrative Officer is attached for information. 

STRATEGIC PLAN: 
Approving Zone 7 budget supports the Strategic Plan goal of improving the City’s 
infrastructure. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
There will be no direct financial impact to the City. Zone 7 budget expenditures will be paid 
from existing Zone 7 funds, bond proceeds and services charge revenues for FY 2014/2015. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Alternatives include not approving the Zone 7 budget or approving the budget with conditions. 



Page 3 of 3
TOM SHARP   5/28/2013 11:42 AM 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\06-24-14\Approve Zone 7 2014-15 FY Budget\Zone 7 Budget Staff Report 2014-15-
SP.doc 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Proposed 2014/2015 Zone 7 Budget, supplemental budget and budget narrative

cc: City Attorney 



Attachment 1
Page 1 of 6



Attachment 1
Page 2 of 6



Attachment 1
Page 3 of 6



Attachment 1
Page 4 of 6



Attachment 1
Page 5 of 6



Attachment 1
Page 6 of 6



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING THE PROPOSED FY 2014-2015 SANTA 
CRUZ COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT ZONE 7 BUDGET AS APPROVED BY THE ZONE 7 BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS 

WHEREAS, funding needs to be provided in the FY 2014-2015 Zone 7 Budget to 

pay for proposed work; and 

WHEREAS, this action requires the concurrence by the Zone 7 Board of 

Directors, the City Council of the City of Watsonville, and the Santa Cruz County Flood 

Control and Water Conservation District Board of Directors. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the proposed FY 2014-2015 Zone 7 Budget for the Santa Cruz

County Flood Control and Water Conservation District, Zone 7 is hereby approved. 

2. The proposed FY 2014-2015 Zone 7 Budget consists of the following line

items as described in the Santa Cruz County Flood Control and Water Conservation 

District, Zone 7—2014-2015 Proposed Budget, attached hereto and incorporated herein 

as Exhibit “A.” 

*******************************

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\Zone 7 Budget 2014.docx 
ri 6/17/2014 12:55:37 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ PWU ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 4.7

erika.sanchez
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



FY 2014/2015 Budget for Santa Cruz County 
Flood Control and Water Conservation District-Zone 7 

Expenditures 2014/2015 
Proposed 

Maintenance & Operations on the Levee System $445,000 
Public Safety Cleanup $5,000 
Pajaro River 1601/404 Maintenance Applications $30,000 
General Engineering & Public Service $240,000 
Permit and Monitoring Requirements $265,000 
County Counsel Service $15,300 
ALERT Monitoring Requirements  $35,000 
Pajaro River Watershed JPA $35,000 
Army Corps Flood Control Projects (Prop 1E) 
Contributions to Army Corps 

$3,607,632 
$200,000 

Prop 1E Stormwater Management (incl. in Prop1E) 0 
Flood Control Project Advocacy $71,000 
Bank Stabilization $50,000 
Bench Excavation Project 
Contributions to Other Agencies 
Shell Road Pumps Reconstruction 

$3,040,000 
0
0

Salsipuedes Creek Levee Restoration Project 0 
Sediment maintenance on Salsipuedes Creek  $80,000 
Levee Pump Station Upgrade $150,000 
Maintenance Vehicles  $80,000 
Contingencies $79,464 
Liquidate Prior Year Encumbrances _____  0 

TOTAL $8,428,396 

Exhibit A 
Page 1 of 1 



May 1, 2014 

TO: Mayors, City Managers and City Clerks 

RE: DESIGNATION OF VOTING DELEGATES AND ALTERNATES 
League of California Cities Annual Conference – September 3 - 5, Los Angeles 

The League’s 2014 Annual Conference is scheduled for September 3 - 5 in Los Angeles.  An 
important part of the Annual Conference is the Annual Business Meeting (at the General 
Assembly), scheduled for noon on Friday, September 5, at the Los Angeles Convention Center.  At 
this meeting, the League membership considers and takes action on resolutions that establish 
League policy. 

In order to vote at the Annual Business Meeting, your city council must designate a voting 
delegate. Your city may also appoint up to two alternate voting delegates, one of whom may vote 
in the event that the designated voting delegate is unable to serve in that capacity.   

Please complete the attached Voting Delegate form and return it to the League’s office 
no later than Friday, August 15, 2014.  This will allow us time to establish voting 
delegate/alternate records prior to the conference.   

Please note the following procedures that are intended to ensure the integrity of the voting 
process at the Annual Business Meeting. 

• Action by Council Required.  Consistent with League bylaws, a city’s voting delegate
and up to two alternates must be designated by the city council.  When completing the
attached Voting Delegate form, please attach either a copy of the council resolution that
reflects the council action taken, or have your city clerk or mayor sign the form affirming
that the names provided are those selected by the city council.  Please note that 
designating the voting delegate and alternates must be done by city council action and
cannot be accomplished by individual action of the mayor or city manager alone.

• Conference Registration Required.  The voting delegate and alternates must be
registered to attend the conference.  They need not register for the entire conference; they
may register for Friday only.  To register for the conference, please go to our website:
www.cacities.org.   In order to cast a vote, at least one voter must be present at the

1400 K Street, Suite 400 • Sacramento, California 95814 
Phone: 916.658.8200 Fax: 916.658.8240 

www.cacities.org 

Council Action Advised by July 31, 2014 

-over-

CITY COUNCIL 4.8

http://www.cacities.org/


 
Business Meeting and in possession of the voting delegate card.  Voting delegates and 
alternates need to pick up their conference badges before signing in and picking up 

 the voting delegate card at the Voting Delegate Desk.  This will enable them to receive  
 the special sticker on their name badges that will admit them into the voting area during 
 the Business Meeting. 

 
• Transferring Voting Card to Non-Designated Individuals Not Allowed.  The voting 

delegate card may be transferred freely between the voting delegate and alternates, but 
only between the voting delegate and alternates.  If the voting delegate and alternates find  
themselves unable to attend the Business Meeting, they may not transfer the voting card 
to another city official.  

 
• Seating Protocol during General Assembly.  At the Business Meeting, individuals with 

the voting card will sit in a separate area.  Admission to this area will be limited to those 
individuals with a special sticker on their name badge identifying them as a voting delegate 
or alternate.  If the voting delegate and alternates wish to sit together, they must sign in at 
the Voting Delegate Desk and obtain the special sticker on their badges. 

 
The Voting Delegate Desk, located in the conference registration area of the Los Angeles 
Convention Center, will be open at the following times:  Wednesday, September 3, 9:00 a.m. – 
5:30 p.m.; Thursday, September 4, 7:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.; and Friday, September 5, 7:30–10:00 
a.m.  The Voting Delegate Desk will also be open at the Business Meeting on Friday, but will be 
closed during roll calls and voting. 
 
The voting procedures that will be used at the conference are attached to this memo.  Please 
share these procedures and this memo with your council and especially with the individuals that 
your council designates as your city’s voting delegate and alternates. 
 
Once again, thank you for completing the voting delegate and alternate form and returning it to 
the League office by Friday, August 15.  If you have questions, please call Karen Durham at 
(916) 658-8262. 
 
Attachments:  

• 2014 Annual Conference Voting Procedures 
• Voting Delegate/Alternate Form 



Annual Conference Voting Procedures 
2014 Annual Conference 

1. One City One Vote.  Each member city has a right to cast one vote on matters pertaining to
League policy.

2. Designating a City Voting Representative.  Prior to the Annual Conference, each city
council may designate a voting delegate and up to two alternates; these individuals are
identified on the Voting Delegate Form provided to the League Credentials Committee.

3. Registering with the Credentials Committee.  The voting delegate, or alternates, may
pick up the city's voting card at the Voting Delegate Desk in the conference registration
area.  Voting delegates and alternates must sign in at the Voting Delegate Desk. Here they
will receive a special sticker on their name badge and thus be admitted to the voting area at
the Business Meeting.

4. Signing Initiated Resolution Petitions.  Only those individuals who are voting delegates
(or alternates), and who have picked up their city’s voting card by providing a signature to
the Credentials Committee at the Voting Delegate Desk, may sign petitions to initiate a
resolution.

5. Voting.  To cast the city's vote, a city official must have in his or her possession the city's
voting card and be registered with the Credentials Committee.  The voting card may be
transferred freely between the voting delegate and alternates, but may not be transferred to
another city official who is neither a voting delegate or alternate.

6. Voting Area at Business Meeting.  At the Business Meeting, individuals with a voting card
will sit in a designated area.  Admission will be limited to those individuals with a special
sticker on their name badge identifying them as a voting delegate or alternate.

7. Resolving Disputes.  In case of dispute, the Credentials Committee will determine the
validity of signatures on petitioned resolutions and the right of a city official to vote at the
Business Meeting.

1400 K Street, Suite 400 • Sacramento, California 95814 
Phone: 916.658.8200 Fax: 916.658.8240 

www.cacities.org 



2014 ANNUAL CONFERENCE 
VOTING DELEGATE/ALTERNATE FORM 

Please complete this form and return it to the League office by Friday, August 15, 2014.  
Forms not sent by this deadline may be submitted to the Voting Delegate Desk located in 
the Annual Conference Registration Area.  Your city council may designate one voting 
delegate and up to two alternates. 

In order to vote at the Annual Business Meeting (General Assembly), voting delegates and alternates must 
be designated by your city council.  Please attach the council resolution as proof of designation.  As an 
alternative, the Mayor or City Clerk may sign this form, affirming that the designation reflects the action 
taken by the council. 

Please note:  Voting delegates and alternates will be seated in a separate area at the Annual Business 
Meeting.  Admission to this designated area will be limited to individuals (voting delegates and 
alternates) who are identified with a special sticker on their conference badge. This sticker can be 
obtained only at the Voting Delegate Desk. 

1. VOTING DELEGATE

Name: 

Title:  

2. VOTING DELEGATE - ALTERNATE 3. VOTING DELEGATE - ALTERNATE

Name: Name: 

Title: Title: 

PLEASE ATTACH COUNCIL RESOLUTION DESIGNATING VOTING DELEGATE 
AND ALTERNATES. 

OR 

ATTEST:  I affirm that the information provided reflects action by the city council to 
designate the voting delegate and alternate(s).      

Name:    E-mail 

Mayor or City Clerk   Phone:  
(circle one)            (signature) 
Date:   

Please complete and return by Friday, August 15, 2014 

League of California Cities FAX:  (916) 658-8220 
ATTN:  Karen Durham E-mail: kdurham@cacities.org 
1400 K Street, 4th Floor (916) 658-8262 
Sacramento, CA  95814 

CITY:________________________________________City of Watsonville

Karina Cervantez
Mayor

Felipe Hernandez
Mayor Pro Tempore

Daniel Dodge
Council Member

Beatriz Vazquez Flores beatriz.flores@cityofwatsonville.org

831-768-3040



City of Watsonville 
Parks & Community Services Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: June 18, 2014 

TO:  Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Ana Espinoza, Director Parks & Community Services 

SUBJECT: Motion Directing Staff to Explore the Possible Sale of the Buena Vista 
Future Park Site Located at 617 Buena Vista Drive with the Proceeds to 
be Deposited in the Parks Impact Fee Fund for Future Improvements to 
the Ramsay Park Soccer Field 

AGENDA ITEM:  June 24, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the City Council adopt a Motion directing staff to explore the possible sale 
of the Buena Vista future park site located at 617 Buena Vista Drive with the proceeds to be 
deposited in the Parks Impact Fee Fund for future improvements to the Ramsay Park Soccer 
Field 

DISCUSSION: 
In 1996, the City of Watsonville purchased approximately 37 acres located at 617 Buena Vista 
Drive from the Ethel S. Schafer Trust. The purchase price was $625,000. After purchasing the 
parcel, the City designated it a future park site. 

Given the development restrictions on the parcel due to its close proximity to the airport, 
topography and road access, building a park on the parcel that would meet the needs of the 
community on the parcel would be an arduous process at the present time.  In addition, 
development in the Buena Vista growth area will most likely not take place for at least a 
decade.   

Ramsay Park is the only City park that can accommodate a regulation size soccer field. The 
field experiences high use from early spring to late fall by a local adult soccer league and the 
Parks and Community Services Department youth soccer league. In addition, the field is used 
extensively by the public for unorganized play.  

In order to prevent damage to the field during the rainy season and to give it time to recover 
from the high use during most of the year, the field is closed from November through the end 

CITY COUNCIL 8.1

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



 

of winter. In addition, to keep the field in playable condition during the spring through fall 
seasons, the field is closed on Monday and Tuesday for maintenance.  
 
The Parks and Community Services Department staff has been aware of the fact that the 
current soccer field at Ramsay Park does not meet the demand of the community. In 2010 and 
again a year later, Department staff applied for a State of California Proposition 84 grant to 
fund a renovation of Ramsay Park that included the installation of synthetic turf and lighting at 
the soccer field. Synthetic turf would ensure a consistently high quality playing surface that 
would not require as much maintenance, the necessity of closing the field during the winter 
and the use of as much water as a natural turf field requires. Lighting would allow the field to 
be used at night expanding the number of hours per day the field could be used. The 
Department submitted a competitive Proposition 84 grant application, but was not funded. The 
estimated cost of installing synthetic turf is approximately $1,320,000 and the estimated cost of 
installing lighting is approximately $320,000.  
 
Given the remote possibility of being able to construct a park on the Buena Vista parcel and 
the need to renovate the soccer field at Ramsay Park to meet the needs of the community, 
staff recommends exploring the possibility of selling the Buena Vista parcel and depositing the 
proceeds into the Parks Impact Fee Fund for future improvements to the soccer field at 
Ramsay Park.  
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 
Selling the Buena Vista future park site and using the proceeds to fund future improvements of 
the Ramsay Park Soccer Field addresses the City Council’s goals of engaging youth in 
positive activities and enhancing the image of the City. A renovated soccer field at Ramsay 
Park would serve as an economic development tool by attracting more soccer players and 
spectators, allow the City to maintain its investment in public facilities and improve public 
safety by providing space for positive activities. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Directing staff to explore the possibility of selling the Buena Vista future park site would have 
no financial impact. However, staff may determine the sale of the Buena Vista parcel will 
provide funds that could be used to cover a significant portion of the estimated $1,620,000 
required for a complete renovation of the soccer field at Ramsay Park. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The Council could choose to not direct staff to explore the possible sale of the Buena Vista 
future park site. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1: Resolution No. 342-96 (CM) Approving the Purchase of the parcel located at 
617 Buena Vista Drive. 
Attachment 2: Agreement of Sale and Deposit Receipt for the Buena Vista Drive parcel. 
Attachment 3: Map 049-24 showing the location of the Buena Vista Drive parcel. 
 
cc: City Attorney 



Attachment 1 

1 of 2



Attachment 1 

2 of 2



Attachment 2 

1 of 13



Attachment 2 

2 of 13



Attachment 2 

3 of 13



Attachment 2 

4 of 13



Attachment 2 

5 of 13



Attachment 2 

6 of 13



Attachment 2 

7 of 13



Attachment 2 

8 of 13



Attachment 2 

9 of 13



Attachment 2 

10 of 13



Attachment 2 

11 of 13



Attachment 2 

12 of 13



Attachment 2 

13 of 13



Attachment 3 

1 of 1



Page 1 of 6
Suzi Merriam 6/2/2014 5:28:00 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 Atkinson\Staff Report.doc 

City of Watsonville 
Community Development Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: June 2, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Marcela Tavantzis, Community Development Director 
Suzi Merriam, Senior Planner 

SUBJECT: Planned Development, Special Use Permit with Design Review 
and Environmental Review (PP2013-243), to construct 20 
affordable apartment units at 56 Atkinson Lane (APN:  019-226-
42) 

RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council: 

 Adopt a Resolution approving the Notice of Determination that the EIR Addendum
complies with CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act) for Environmental Review of
the project.

 Adopt a Resolution approving the Special Use Permit with Design Review for the
construction of 20 affordable units on the City site.

 Adopt a Resolution directing the City Manager to enter into a Memorandum of
Understanding between the City of Watsonville, County of Santa Cruz, and Mid-
Peninsula Housing.

 Introduce an Ordinance designating the property a PD (Planned Development).

PROCEDURE: 
Proposal: The 20-unit City project is part of a larger, 2.6 acre, 46-unit project being proposed in 
both County and City jurisdictions.  Twenty units are proposed on the 1.3-acre City portion, 
and 26 units are proposed on the adjacent 1.3 acre County portion. 

Site and Vicinity: The 1.3-acre City site is located on Atkinson Lane, and borders 
unincorporated County property at the rear.  At this section of Atkinson Lane there is a mix of 
uses, including adjacent church, multi-family and single-family residential units.   

AGENDA ITEM:      June 24, 2014           City Council

CITY COUNCIL 6.1a

deborah.muniz
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 6 

 
Suzi Merriam  6/2/2014 5:28:00 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 Atkinson\Staff Report.doc 

 

Background: The City of Watsonville and County of Santa Cruz entered into a Memorandum of 
Understanding in 2008 for the joint design and environmental review of a 65-acre Atkinson 
Lane Specific Plan Area, which is located mostly outside the City limits but within the City’s 
Sphere of Influence and voter-approved Measure U boundary. The County undertook a 
Planned Unit Development to rezone two parcels from agricultural use to High Density 
Residential Zoning to meet their affordable housing needs. 
 
The Specific Plan included up to 450 residential units, with street layouts, park, and open 
space design.  The County was responsible for the preparation and adoption of the EIR for the 
project, which was approved by the Board of Supervisors in 2009.   
 
After adoption, the Santa Cruz County Farm Bureau filed a petition for a Writ of Mandate 
against the County, City, and others with regard to certification of the EIR.  A Settlement 
Agreement was reached in 2011 between the Farm Bureau and the County; and both the City 
and County agreed that the EIR would not be used in connection with any action or proposal to 
develop or annex any of the Specific Plan Area not included within the County Entitlements, 
and the City agreed that nothing in the County Approvals included the approval of the Specific 
Plan.  
 
The Settlement Agreement allowed development of 2 City parcels under the EIR, including 56 
and 78 Atkinson Lane.  This project is proposed to be constructed on 56 Atkinson Lane. 
 
Memorandum of Understanding: 
The County, City, and Mid-Pen have drafted a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to 
address services and financing to the entire 46-unit project site.  The MOU is included as part 
of the Resolutions for the project.  
 
Because this project is located in two regulatory jurisdictions (the City and the County), a 
Memorandum of Understanding has been drafted to outline the responsibilities of each party 
both during construction and after the project has been built. 
 
The following items have been addressed in the MOU: 

 Payment of impact fees to the City and County 
o The County of Santa Cruz will collect certain traffic impact fees and childcare 

impact fees for the 26 units located in the County. 
o Impact fees for sewer, water service, groundwater, storm drainage, impervious 

area, public facilities, fire impact and underground utilities will be paid to the City 
of Watsonville for all 46 units. 

 Review of building permits 
o The City and County have agreed that the County of Santa Cruz will be 

responsible for reviewing the building permit application and conducting 
inspections for the entire 46-unit project. 

 Review for compliance with fire requirements 
o The County and City have agreed to review the entire 46-unit project for 

compliance with the Fire Code.  Inspections shall be done in coordination with 
both agencies for the entire project site. 



Page 3 of 6 

 
Suzi Merriam  6/2/2014 5:28:00 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 Atkinson\Staff Report.doc 

 

 

PROCEDURE 

The subject property is currently zoned R-1. The 2005 General Plan designation for the 
property is High Density Residential with the approval of a Specific Plan for the Atkinson Lane 
area.  
 
In order to be consistent with the residential density outlined in the 2005 General Plan for the 
property, the applicant is requesting approval of a Planned Development, which is consistent 
with the Specific Plan requirement outlined in the 2005 General Plan. 
 
According to Section 14-16.2500 of the Watsonville Municipal Code (WMC), Planned 
Development District, a Planned Development may be approved for parcels that are one acre 
or larger in order to foster development plans for eligible lands which serve public objectives 
more fully than development plans permitted under conventional zoning regulations.  
 
According to Section 14-16.2505 of the WMC, the generalized development or Master Plan for 
the requested Planned Development must be considered at a public hearing by the Planning 
Commission which was considered on May 6, 2014. A positive recommendation for a Planned 
Development requires five (5) affirmative votes of the City Council.   The Planned 
Development regulations allow a wide variety of modifications to the underlying zoning district 
regulations as long as a public benefit is demonstrated that outweighs any potential impacts to 
the neighborhood.   
 
WMC Section 14.16.2509 requires approval of a Special Use Permit for any specific 
development plan to be constructed within a Planned Development area, which requires the 
submittal of detailed design drawings for the project. 
 
Per Section 14-12.400 of the Watsonville Municipal Code, commercial, industrial, and multi-
family residential construction requires approval of a Design Review Permit process 
acceptable to the Zoning Administrator.  As proposed, the Special Use Permit and Design 
Review Permit are being processed concurrently with the Planned Development application. 
 
Mid-Peninsula Housing conducted a neighborhood workshop on August, 29, 2013 to introduce 
the project to interested neighbors in the Atkinson Lane area.  The workshop was held at the 
Portuguese Hall at the end of Atkinson Lane.  It was reported that there was relatively light 
attendance, and Mid-Peninsula did not hear opposition from those that did attend.  The public 
hearing conducted on May 6, 2014 was also lightly attended by the public, with very little 
concern expressed by the public except that the project should comply with parking standards.  
 

 Police, Fire and solid waste service to the project
o The City, County, and Mid-Pen have agreed that the City of Watsonville will

provide Police, Fire, Solid Waste, Parks and Recreation and other public services
to the entire 46-unit project. A  one-time  municipal  services  mitigation  payment
totaling  $830,840  shall  be made to the City of Watsonville by Mid Pen to offset
the cost of city services for the project.



Page 4 of 6 

 
Suzi Merriam  6/2/2014 5:28:00 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 Atkinson\Staff Report.doc 

 

The City has requested that the County Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors take 
action on the project prior to hearings by the City Planning Commission and City Council.  The 
Project was heard by the County Planning Commission on April 23, 2014, and was approved 
by the Board of Supervisors on May 20, 2014. 
 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT REVIEW (CEQA): The project was 
reviewed as part of an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the entire Atkinson Lane Specific 
Plan area, which included the construction of up to 450 housing units on a larger 65-acre site.  
The EIR was certified by the Santa Cruz County Board of Supervisors on June 9, 2009, and 
subsequently challenged by the Santa Cruz County Farm Bureau. 
 
A Settlement Agreement  (see Attachment 2) was reached between the County, City, and 
Farm Bureau in 2011 that allowed the use of the EIR for the County Entitlements Area as well 
as the 1.3 acre parcel (APN: 019-226-42) located in the City limits, for the construction of 
affordable housing.  As Lead Agency for the EIR, the terms of the Settlement Agreement 
satisfy compliance with CEQA process for the City parcel under the EIR. 
 
Because the revised project has a much smaller scope than the Specific Plan Area and 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) that were reviewed under the original EIR in 2009, the 
County has developed an EIR Addendum to address the potential impacts and mitigations 
relating to the smaller, 46-unit project. 
 
The EIR Addendum indicates that the proposed project would not result in any new impacts 
not previously disclosed in the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Atkinson Lane 
Specific Plan and PUD Project that would result in a substantial increase in the magnitude of 
any significant environmental impacts previously identified in the EIR.  
 
The EIR Addendum identified required mitigations for wetland species that may be found in the 
pond adjacent to the County parcel, which include the California Red Legged Frog and the 
Western Pond Turtle.   
 
The project requires an evaluation of the existing soil condition on both properties to determine 
the appropriate foundation system for the housing units, and to determine that the soil is not 
contaminated.   
 

 
The project requires the payment of traffic impact fees to both the County and the City to offset 
impacts to several intersections throughout the City and South County.   
 
The EIR Addendum is attached to resolution, and a Notice of Determination must be approved 
by the City in compliance with CEQA. 
 
 
 

The project requires the payment of impact fees to both the County and the City, as outlined in
the Conditions of Approval for the project.  These impact fees include a one-time municipal
services mitigation payment to the City of Watsonville to offset the cost of providing Police,
Fire, Solid Waste, Parks and Recreation and other public services to the entire 46-unit project.



Page 5 of 6 

 
Suzi Merriam  6/2/2014 5:28:00 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 Atkinson\Staff Report.doc 

 

REPORT FROM PLANNING COMMISSION: 
The project was heard by the Planning Commission on May 6, 2014.  At the hearing, the 
property owners provided a presentation and answered questions from the Planning 
Commission.  The Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval to the 
City Council for the Planned Development (Resolution 11-14), Special Use Permit, Design 
Review, and Environmental Review (Resolution 12-14) for the construction of 20 apartment 
units. 
 
CONCLUSION/ RECOMMENDATION: 
The proposed project will provide 20 affordable housing units at the eastern portion of the City, 
with amenities for residents to include a computer room, community room, and play area.  The 
site has been designed with deference to neighboring properties, and provides all required off-
street parking.   
 
Potential project impacts have been reviewed for compliance with CEQA and proposed 
impacts have been mitigated to a less than significant level.  The project applicants shall be 
required to pay appropriate impact fees to the County and City, and shall pay a one-time 
municipal services mitigation fee to the City for service to the project site. 
 
The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council: 
 

 Adopt a Resolution approving the Notice of Determination that the EIR Addendum 
complies with CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act) for Environmental Review of 
the project. 

 Adopt a Resolution approving the Special Use Permit with Design Review for the 
construction of 20 affordable units on the City site.  

 Adopt a Resolution directing the City Manager to enter into a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Watsonville, County of Santa Cruz, and Mid-
Peninsula Housing. 

 Introduce an Ordinance designating the property a PD (Planned Development). 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 
The City has been furthering the goals of the Strategic Plan by working with the County of 
Santa Cruz and Mid-Peninsula Housing for the creation of affordable housing across agency 
boundaries, with the provision of impact fees to offset the cost to provide services to the 
project site by Watsonville Police and Fire.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The financial impacts of providing City services to the project site have been mitigated through 
the provision of a one-time municipal services mitigation fee of $830,840 to be paid to the City 
at time of building permit issuance.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The City Council may continue or deny the application 
 
 



Page 6 of 6 

 
Suzi Merriam  6/2/2014 5:28:00 PM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 Atkinson\Staff Report.doc 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Site and Vicinity Map 
2. Settlement Agreement between County of Santa Cruz, City of Watsonville and Farm 

Bureau 
3. Planning Commission Staff Report from May 6, 2014 
4. Planning Commission Resolutions 
5. Project Plans 

 
 
cc: City Attorney 



30
34

38

562

7

45 500

504
502

508
506 602

11

27

6056

105

1312126 121
1292140

4440
32282464

66

29

107A

2132
2120

115109

4

7883
84

66 7372
100

86

6160

62
63

65

5859

205
203

302

501

503
505

1060-
1052

81
85

89

1355

148
6

148
4

150
2

1521
1537

6359
51

40

152
0

25

45
36

704362
4139

44
29

24
16

39
3531272319

73
79

53514947

1558

50

100-140

101-141

101
104

122112108

8884
78

52

55
50

62667078

82869
09440

95
91
87
83
797167

1482

7268
56

34

1651120

100
120 1165

1155
1145
1125
1115175

11001110
11301140

105
115

125
135

145

755525
203

202
203209

208
202

260

2201064
1100
221

241
261

1105112011301150
112511451165

1175
2602402201170

201
221

241
261

1201

150
1

18

141822263034
25

21

1487

1485
1481

29
25

21
17

147
7

149
6

150
4

152955
49

12

46 35

3228
20 19

37
47

77

74

75

1480

1478

4844

1175
1165

1105

11501160
120012101220

215 209

214
208

215
214

1061

1065
260240

56

4 6 8

82 798081

1055
254218145

6146
9

146
7

145
937

33
1049 1060-

1052

37
50

36 B

85

49

19
78

54
A    B

40 31

363534

80

70

33323130292827

3837
39

4140
42

43
44

87
88

89

90
91

92
93

99
98

9697
9495

5657

67
69

70
71

64

68
74

75
76

77 464748
49

50

5 6
7

8
9 10

11
12

1413

171615

18
19

20
2221

23
24

2625

A

A-C 17

7

135

3

14

10

27

75

19
28

23

33 A

25

24
20

20-74
147

1
A A

A

AB A

A

A

107

A-C
A-D

B
C

124

A

2 46 81012

1 3 5

9111514

ATKINSON LN

BLA
NCA LN

FREEDOM BL

GARDNER AV

JASMINE LN

PALOMA WY

VIC RUGH LN

NATALIE LN

SUNBIRD DR

ARTHUR RD

KADDERLY LN

BREWINGTON AV
Site and Vicinity Map

PROJECT: PP2013-243
APPLICANT: MidPeninsula The Farm, Inc.
APN#s: 019-226-42
LOCATION OF PROJECT: 56 Atkinson Ln

Prepared by Watsonville GIS Center 4/17/2014 (CODD1421).

This Document is a graphic representation only of best available sources.
The City of Watsonville assumes no responsibility for any errors.

30
34

38

562

7

45 500

504
502

508
506 602

11

27

6056

105

1312126 121
1292140

4440
32282464

66

29

107A

2132
2120

115109

4

7883
84

66 7372
100

86

6160

62
63

65

5859

205
203

302

501

503
505

1060-
1052

81
85

89

1355

148
6

148
4

150
2

1521
1537

6359
51

40

152
0

25

45
36

704362
4139

44
29

24
16

39
3531272319

73
79

53514947

1558

50

100-140

101-141

101
104

122112108

8884
78

52

55
50

62667078

82869
09440

95
91
87
83
797167

1482

7268
56

34

1651120

100
120 1165

1155
1145
1125
1115175

11001110
11301140

105
115

125
135

145

755525
203

202
203209

208
202

260

2201064
1100
221

241
261

1105112011301150
112511451165

1175
2602402201170

201
221

241
261

1201

150
1

18

141822263034
25

21

1487

1485
1481

29
25

21
17

147
7

149
6

150
4

152955
49

12

46 35

3228
20 19

37
47

77

74

75

1480

1478

4844

1175
1165

1105

11501160
120012101220

215 209

214
208

215
214

1061

1065
260240

56

4 6 8

82 798081

1055
254218145

6146
9

146
7

145
937

33
1049 1060-

1052

37
50

36 B

85

49

19
78

54
A    B

40 31

363534

80

70

33323130292827

3837
39

4140
42

43
44

87
88

89

90
91

92
93

99
98

9697
9495

5657

67
69

70
71

64

68
74

75
76

77 464748
49

50

5 6
7

8
9 10

11
12

1413

171615

18
19

20
2221

23
24

2625

A

A-C 17

7

135

3

14

10

27

75

19
28

23

33 A

25

24
20

20-74
147

1
A A

A

AB A

A

A

107

A-C
A-D

B
C

124

A

2 46 81012

1 3 5

9111514

ATKINSON LN

BLA
NCA LN

FREEDOM BL

GARDNER AV

JASMINE LN

PALOMA WY

VIC RUGH LN

NATALIE LN

SUNBIRD DR

ARTHUR RD

KADDERLY LN

BREWINGTON AV

©

Legend
Street
Watsonville City Limit

Parcel
Project Site

300' Buffer Zone

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 1



Attachment 2
Page 1 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 2 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 3 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 4 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 5 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 6 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 7 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 8 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 9 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 10 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 11 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 12 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 13 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 14 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 15 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 16 of 17



Attachment 2
Page 17 of 17



Attachment 3
Page 1 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 2 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 3 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 4 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 5 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 6 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 7 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 8 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 9 of 10



Attachment 3
Page 10 of 10



Attachment 4
Page 1 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 2 of 23



30
34

38

562

7

6056

105
2126 121
1292140

107A

2132

115109

78

66 7372

81
85

89

148
6

148
4

1521
153

7

6359
51

40

45
36

704362
4139

44
29

24
16

39
3531272319

73
79

53514947

1558

50

100-140

101-141

101
104

122112108

8884
78

52

55
50

62667078

82869
09440

95
91
87
83
797167

1482

7268
56

34

100
120 1165

1155
1145
11251140

105
115

125
135

145

202
203209

208
202 1170

201
221

148
5

148
1

147
7

149
6

152955
49

12

46 35

3228
20 19

37
47

77

74

75
1480

1478

4844
1175
1165

11501160
120012101220

214
208

215
214

56

37
50

49

54
A    B

40 31

34

80

33323130292827

3837
39

4140
42

4374

1413

171615

20
2221

23
24

2625

A

A-C 17
14

10

27

75

19
28

33 A

25

24
20

A A

A

AB A

A

107

A-C

124

A

246 81012

1 3 5

9111514

City of 
Watsonville

Proposed PD
Overlay

Prepared by Watsonville GIS Center 4/16/2014 (CODD1420).

This Document is a graphic representation using the best currently available 
sources. The City of Watsonville assumes no responsibility for any errors.

Parcel
Watsonville City Limit
North Business Park Overlay District*
Retail Overlay District*
PD: Planned Development

R-1P: Planned Single Family Residential
R-1: Single Family Residential-Low Density
RM-2: Multiple Residential-Medium Density
RM-3: Multiple Residential-High Density
CC: Central Commercial
CCA: Central Commercial Core Area
CN: Neighborhood Commercial
CNS: Neighborhood Shopping Center
CO: Office
CT: Thoroughfare Commercial
CV: Visitor Commercial
IG: General Industrial
IP: Industrial Park
N: Institutional
PF: Public Facilities
EM-OS: Environmental Mgnt. Open Space-Private Land
CZ-A: Coastal Zone-A
CZ-B: Coastal Zone-B
CZ-C: Coastal Zone-C
CZ-D: Landfill
CZ-E: Coastal Zone-E

50 0 50 100 150 200

Feet

1 inch = 200 feet µ
* See Manabe-Ow Specific Plan

Attachment 4
Page 3 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 4 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 5 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 6 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 7 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 8 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 9 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 10 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 11 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 12 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 13 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 14 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 15 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 16 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 17 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 18 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 19 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 20 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 21 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 22 of 23



Attachment 4
Page 23 of 23



Attachment 5
Page 1 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 2 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 3 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 4 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 5 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 6 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 7 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 8 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 9 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 10 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 11 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 12 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 13 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 14 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 15 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 16 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 17 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 18 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 19 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 20 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 21 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 22 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 23 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 24 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 25 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 26 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 27 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 28 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 29 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 30 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 31 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 32 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 33 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 34 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 35 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 36 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 37 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 38 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 39 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 40 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 41 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 42 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 43 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 44 of 45



Attachment 5
Page 45 of 45



Page 1 of 2 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 AtkinsonLoan\56 Atkinson Loan staff report.doc\KB\dm\5/29/2014 12:45 PM 

 

 

 

 

 
City of Watsonville 

Redevelopment and Housing 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 

DATE:  May 29, 2014 
 
TO:   Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 
 
FROM: Marcela Tavantzis, Community Development Director 
 Keith Boyle, Principal Planner 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of a funding commitment in the amount of $1,000,000 

to Mid-Peninsula The Farm, Inc., for the construction of 20 
units of affordable rental housing at 56 Atkinson Lane (APN:  
019-226-42) 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
That the City Council adopt a resolution approving a funding commitment and 
authorizing the City Manager to execute loan documents in the amount of $1,000,000 
with Mid-Peninsula The Farm, Inc.(Mid-Pen) for the construction of 20 affordable 
apartment units. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
Background: The City’s Inclusionary Housing fee levies an impact fee on all market rate 
housing development, which either requires a specified number of below market 
housing units be created or the payment of the fee.  The fund collects those fees and 
uses them to create low income housing in the City.  Currently the fund has over 1.6 
million dollars. 
 
In the late 1960’s, Green Valley Apartments, a non-profit corporation formed by 
members of the Methodist and Presbyterian churches, constructed 200 units of family 
housing, 178 of which are affordable at 220 Ross Avenue known as “Sunny Meadows.”  
The project was funded in large part by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (“HUD”), and the affordability restrictions imposed by HUD would have 
expired in 2011.    In 2011 the City loaned Mid-Pen $2,000,000 from HOME funds and 
1.1 million from RDA funds to help rehabilitate the apartments and maintain their 
affordability for another 55 years.   Due to good project management and construction 
practices, Mid-Pen has approximately $740,000 left from the HOME funds of the project 
that can be paid back to the City’s affordable housing fund by April of 2015. 
 

AGENDA ITEM:      June 24, 2014                                                              City Council

deborah.muniz
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 2 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 AtkinsonLoan\56 Atkinson Loan staff report.doc\KB\dm\5/29/2014 12:45 PM 

 

Currently Mid-Pen is working on the 46 unit Pippin Lane apartment project that is 
located in the City and the County.  This project will provide low income rental 
apartments for City and County residents with an emphasis on workforce housing.   The 
City has been negotiating an agreement with Mid-Pen to loan them the approximately 
$1,000,000 left over from the Sunny Meadows project to help construct the project.  
This represents a subsidy of approximately $22,000 per unit. 
 
Since a substantial component of the project is within the County of Santa Cruz, Mid -
Pen is getting their primary housing subsidies from the County’s housing fund.   The 
proposed City loan will help subsidize the construction and provide long term financing.  
Because of the timeline in the submission of the Low Income Housing Tax Credits 
(LIHTC) application, no loan documents have been prepared, but the terms would be 
similar to the previous loan documents that were executed between the City and MP 
Sunny Meadows, LLC. 
 
Staff, therefore, recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to 
execute loan documents subject to the approval of City Attorney. The loan resulting 
from the commitment would be contingent upon the approval of the LIHTC application. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN:  
Maintaining affordable housing within the City is a component of numerous City goals, 
including being able to implement economic development measures.  The 
recommended action is consistent with the City General Plan.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
Funding for the project would come from the City’s Inclusionary Housing fund and will 
be paid back over time, with approximately $740,000 coming back by April of 2015.  
The City anticipates that it will be third position on the loan so the payback timeline will 
be extended over a period of time for the remainder of the loan. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
The Council could choose not to make the loan, or to modify the proposed amount or 
terms of the loan. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Loan Request Letter 
 
cc: City Attorney 
  
 
 



CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
“Opportunity through diversity; unity through cooperation” 

 
 

 
250 Main Street   Watsonville  California  95076   (831) 768-3050   

www.ci.watsonville.ca.us 

M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-10-14\56 AtkinsonLoan\Attachment 1 letter.docx 

 

June 11, 2014 

 

Ms. Laura A. Whittall-Scherfee, Deputy Director 

State of California Department of Housing and Community Development 

HOME Program 

2020 West El Camino Avenue, 5th Floor 

Sacramento, CA  95833 

 

RE: Pippin Apartments 

 56 Atkinson Lane, Watsonville, CA  95076 

 APNs:  019-226-42 and 048-211-25 

 

Dear Ms. Whittall-Scherfee: 

 

The City of Watsonville has committed $1,000,000.00 in construction to permanent financing to 

Mid-Peninsula The Farm, Inc. for the development of the 46-unit Pippin Apartments located at 56 

Atkinson Lane in Watsonville.  The loan has a 55-year term with 3% simple interest, deferred with 

residual receipts. 

 

All underwriting assumptions have been approved, including but not limited to the purchase 

price of the property, disposition of reserves, scope of work, operating costs, proposed rents, 

availability of subsidies and proposed annual reserve deposits. 

 

If you have further questions, please do not hesitate to call me at (831) 768-3050. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

  

 

Marcela Tavantzis 

Assistant City Manager/Community Development Director 

 

 

 

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 1

http://www.ci.watsonville.ca.us/


RESOLUTION NO.  (CM) 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING THE NOTICE OF DETERMINATION 
INDICATING THAT THE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 
ADDENDUM COMPLIES WITH CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL 
QUALITY ACT (CEQA) FOR ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF TWENTY AFFORDABLE APARTMENT UNITS 
LOCATED AT 56 ATKINSON LANE, WATSONVILLE (APN: 019-226-42) 

WHEREAS, in 2007, the site located on Atkinson Lane was part of the Atkinson 

Lane Specific Plan and Planned Unit Development undertaken as a joint project between 

the City of Watsonville and the County of Santa Cruz; and 

WHEREAS, the project was reviewed as part of an Environmental Impact Report 

(EIR) for the entire Atkinson Lane Specific Plan area which included the construction of 

up to 450 residential units on a larger 65-acre site; and 

WHEREAS, on or about June 9, 2009, the County of Santa Cruz certified the 

Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Atkinson Lane Specific Plan and Planned Unit 

Development for affordable housing; and 

WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz County Farm Bureau filed a petition for a Writ of 

Mandate against the County, City, and others with regard to certification of the EIR; and 

WHEREAS, a Settlement Agreement was reached in 2011 between the County, 

City and Farm Bureau, allowing the EIR to certify development on the County 

Entitlements Area and City parcel (APN: 019-226-42); and 

WHEREAS, because the revised project has a much smaller scope than the 

Specific Plan Area and Planned Unit Development that were reviewed under the original 

EIR in 2009, the County has developed an EIR Addendum to address the potential 

impacts and mitigations relating to the smaller, 46-unit project; and 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\56 Atkinson NOD Reso.docx 
ri 6/16/2014 4:05:18 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.1d

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



WHEREAS, the project requires the approval of a Notice of Determination 

indicating approval of the EIR Addendum in compliance with California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) requirements; and 

WHEREAS, the project was reviewed by the Watsonville Planning Commission 

on May 6, 2014, at which time the Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. 12-14 

(PC) recommending that the City Council approve an Environmental Review Application 

with Environmental Impact Report Addendum to construct of twenty (20) affordable 

apartment units located at 56 Atkinson Lane; and 

WHEREAS, the appropriate public noticing procedures have been followed and a 

public hearing was held according to Section 14-10.900 of the Watsonville Municipal 

Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered all written and verbal evidence 

regarding the approval of the Notice of Determination indicating that the EIR Addendum 

complies with CEQA for the Environmental Review of the project.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 That the application for a Notice of Determination (PP2013-243) for compliance 

with CEQA is approved and attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A”. 

 
***************************************** 

Reso No.            (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\56 Atkinson NOD Reso.docx  
ri 6/16/2014 4:05:18 PM 

2 



Notice of Determination Supplementary Document P 

To: _X Office of Planning And Research From:   City of Watsonville Community Development Dept. 
1400 Tenth Street, Room 121 250 Main Street 
Sacramento, CA  95814  Watsonville, CA  95076 

       _X_Clerk of the Board, County of Santa Cruz 
701 Ocean Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060 

Subject: 
Filing of Notice of Determination in compliance with Section 21108 or 21152 of the Public Resources 
Code.  
Project Title 56 Atkinson Lane 

State Clearinghouse Number 
Lead Agency:  City of Watsonville, Watsonville CA  95076 - Santa Cruz County 
Contact Person:  Keith W. Boyle    Telephone/Extension:  (831) 768-3073 

Project Location 56 Atkinson Lane (APN: 019-226-42) 

Project Description: 
Planned Development, Special Use Permit with Design Review for the construction of 20 apartment units on a vacant 
parcel. 

This is to advise that the     City of Watsonville       has approved the above described project on 
 Lead Agency              X  Responsible Agency 

June 10, 2014 and has made the following determinations regarding the above described project: 

1. The project [__will   X will not] have significant effect on the environment.
2. An Environmental Impact Report was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.
3. A Negative Declaration was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.
4. Mitigations Measures [X were __ were not] made a condition of approval of the project.
5. A statement of Overriding Considerations [___ was  X was not] adopted for this project.
6. Findings [X were  ___ were not] made pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.

This is to certify that the (X EIR  ___Negative Declaration) with comments and responses of record is available to the 
General Public at: 

City of Watsonville - Community Development Department - 250 Main Street - Watsonville, CA  95076 

Zoning Administrator     June 24, 2014  

Signature (Public Agency) Title Date  
Date received for filing at OPR:__________ Revised October 1989

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\NOD  EXHIBIT A UPDATED.DOCX

Exhibit "A" 
1 of 140



Exhibit "A"

2 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

3 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

4 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

5 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

6 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

7 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

8 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

9 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

10 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

11 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

12 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

13 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

14 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

15 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

16 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

17 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

18 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

19 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

20 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

21 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

22 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

23 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

24 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

25 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

26 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

27 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

28 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

29 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

30 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

31 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

32 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

33 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

34 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

35 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

36 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

37 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

38 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

39 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

40 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

41 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

42 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

43 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

44 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

45 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

46 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

47 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

48 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

49 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

50 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

51 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

52 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

53 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

54 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

55 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

56 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

57 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

58 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

59 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

60 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

61 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

62 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

63 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

64 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

65 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

66 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

67 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

68 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

69 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

70 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

71 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

72 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

73 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

74 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

75 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

76 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

77 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

78 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

79 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

80 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

81 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

82 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

83 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

84 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

85 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

86 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

87 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

88 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

89 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

90 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

91 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

92 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

93 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

94 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

95 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

96 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

97 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

98 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

99 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

100 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

101 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

102 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

103 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

104 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

105 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

106 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

107 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

108 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

109 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

110 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

111 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

112 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

113 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

114 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

115 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

116 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

117 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

118 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

119 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

120 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

121 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

122 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

123 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

124 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

125 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

126 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

127 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

128 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

129 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

130 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

131 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

132 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

133 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

134 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

135 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

136 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

137 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

138 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

139 of 140



Exhibit "A" 

140 of 140



RESOLUTION NO.  (CM) 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING APPLICATION NO. PP2013-243 FOR A 
SPECIAL USE PERMIT WITH DESIGN REVIEW APPLICATION FILED 
BY MID-PENINSULA THE FARM, INC., TO CONSTRUCT TWENTY 
AFFORDABLE APARTMENT UNITS, LOCATED AT 56 ATKINSON 
LANE (APN: 019-226-42)  

WHEREAS, on October 8, 2013, Mid-Peninsula The Farm, Inc., (“Applicant”) 

submitted Application No. PP2013-243 for a Special Use Permit with Design Review  to 

construct twenty (20) apartment units on a 1.3-acre vacant parcel located at 56 Atkinson 

Lane, Watsonville (APN: 019-226-42); and 

WHEREAS, Section 14-16.2505 of the Watsonville Municipal Code requires 

approval of a Special Use Permit for any specific development plan to be constructed 

within a Planned Development area; and 

WHEREAS, per Section 14-12.400 of the Watsonville Municipal Code, 

commercial industrial, and multi-family residential construction requires approval of a 

Design Review Permit process acceptable to the Zoning Administrator; and 

WHEREAS, the Special Use Permit and Design Review Permit are being 

processed concurrently; and   

WHEREAS, the project was reviewed by the Planning Commission on May 6, 

2014, at which time the Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. 12-14 (PC) 

recommending that the City Council approve the Planned Development, Special Use 

Permit with Design Review for the construction of 20 affordable apartment units located 

at 56 Atkinson Lane; and 

WHEREAS, notice of time and place of the hearing to consider approval of 

Application No. PP2013-243 for a Special Use Permit with Design Review  was given at 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\56 Atkinson SUP Reso.docx 
ri 6/16/2014 4:06:23 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.1e

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



the time and in the manner where appropriate public noticing procedures have been 

followed and a public hearing was held according to Section 14-10.900 of the 

Watsonville Municipal Code; and   

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered all written and verbal evidence 

regarding this application; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the project will be consistent with the 

standards and General Development Plan and finds that the project provides additional 

public benefits than would not otherwise be provided by a standard development on the 

parcel and finds the project is consistent with the City’s design standards. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 That City Council does hereby approve Application No. PP2013-243 filed by Mid-

Peninsula The Farm, Inc., applicant and owner, for a Planned Development, Special Use 

Permit with Design Review to construct twenty (20) affordable apartment units on a 1.3-

acre vacant parcel located at 56 Atkinson Lane in accordance with the Findings of  the 

Special Use Permit and Design Review attached and marked as Exhibits “A,” and “B,” 

respectively , and Conditions of Approval attached and marked as Exhibit “C”. 

 
 

***************************************** 

Reso No.            (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\56 Atkinson SUP Reso.docx  
ri 6/16/2014 4:06:23 PM 

2 



CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL 

Application No. PP2013-243 
APN: 019-226-42 
Applicant: MidPeninsula The Farm, Inc. 
Hearing Date:  June 24, 2014 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPROVAL FINDINGS 

1. The proposed use at the specified location is consistent with the policies of the
General Plan and the general purpose and intent of the applicable district
regulations.

Supportive Evidence
The proposed 46-unit development, as designed and mitigated in the 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and EIR Addendum, will be consistent with the 
policies of the 2005 General Plan, which allows for the construction of High-
Density Residential units on the project site with the approval of a Specific Plan. 
The Planned Development Rezoning serves as the Specific Plan for the subject 
property, which has been reviewed as part of the EIR for the larger Atkinson Lane 
Planned Unit Development for the City and County.  

2. The proposed use is compatible with and preserves the character and integrity of
adjacent development and neighborhoods and includes improvements or
modifications either on-site or within the public rights-of-way to mitigate
development-related adverse impacts such as traffic, noise, odors, visual
nuisances, or other similar adverse effects to adjacent development and
neighborhoods.  These improvements or modifications may include but shall not be
limited to the placement or orientation of buildings and entryways, parking areas,
buffer yards, and addition of landscaping, walls, or both, to mitigate such impacts.

Supportive Evidence
The proposed affordable housing project has been designed with reduced density
and massing along Atkinson Lane to blend with adjacent single family residences.
The site will be accessed by a central driveway, and provides all required off-street
parking. The project will include a community room, computer room, play areas,
and manager’s office to provide amenities for residents.

The project was reviewed under an EIR and EIR Addendum with the County of
Santa Cruz serving as the lead agency.  The EIR and EIR Addendum outline
project impacts and has determined appropriate mitigations to reduce those
impacts to a less than significant level.

3. The proposed use will not generate pedestrian or vehicular traffic that will be
hazardous or conflict with the existing and anticipated traffic in the neighborhood.

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\SUP Exhibits A B & C (1).docx06/11/2014  1:40 PM  SM\dm 
Exhibit "A" 
Page 1 of 3 



Supportive Evidence 
A traffic study was prepared for the EIR Addendum to address the impacts from this 
46-unit apartment project and determine appropriate mitigations.  The revised traffic 
study found that the project will require the payment of a fair-share toward 
installation of future off-site improvements, and the payment of traffic impact fees to 
both the County and the City. 

4. The proposed use incorporates roadway improvements, traffic control devices or
mechanisms, or access restrictions to control traffic flow or divert traffic as needed
to reduce or eliminate development impacts on surrounding neighborhood streets.

Supportive Evidence
The project will create a new 24-foot wide driveway from Atkinson Lane, with 120 parking
spaces provided for the project.  Secondary emergency access will be provided through a 
controlled driveway leading into the adjacent housing complex to the West. 

The project is required to pay its fair share toward future improvements to offset impacts of 
any larger development in the County Entitlements Area, as well as provide traffic impact 
fees to both the County and the City. 

5. The proposed use incorporates features to minimize adverse effects, including
visual impacts and noise of the proposed special use on adjacent properties.

Supportive Evidence
The project has been designed to improve the appearance of the streetscape, with single-
family residential massing along Atkinson Lane, and higher density residential units behind
and to the rear of the property.  The site will be thoroughly landscaped and will be operated
by a professional management company.

6. The proposed special use complies with all additional standards imposed on it by
the particular provisions of this chapter and all other requirements of this title
applicable to the proposed special use and uses within the applicable base-zoning
district.

Supportive Evidence
Conditions of Approval have been included to provide for the adherence to all City
standards not addressed by the submittal.  Further, a Memorandum of Understanding has
been drafted between the City, County, and MidPeninsula Housing regarding the process
for building permit application, inspections, and payment of fees.

7. The proposed special use will not be materially detrimental to the public health,
safety, convenience and welfare, and will not result in material damage or prejudice
to other property in the vicinity.

Supportive Evidence

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\SUP Exhibits A B & C (1).docx06/11/2014  1:40 PM  SM\dm 
Exhibit "A" 
Page 2 of 3 



The proposed 20-unit affordable apartment development will be managed by a professional 
management company and has been designed to provide amenities to residents of the 
project.  The project provides the minimum required parking for the proposed use, in 
addition to a community room, computer room, and play areas.  The proposed 
development will not be materially detrimental to the neighborhood or the public welfare. 

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\SUP Exhibits A B & C (1).docx06/11/2014  1:40 PM  SM\dm 
Exhibit "A" 
Page 3 of 3 



CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
DESIGN REVIEW       

Application No.  PP2013-243 
APN: 019-226-42 
Applicant:  MidPeninsula The Farm, Inc. 
Hearing Date: June 24, 2014 

DESIGN REVIEW FINDINGS (Section 14-12.403) 

1. The proposed use at the specified location is consistent with the policies of the
General Plan and the general purpose and intent of the applicable district
regulations.

Supportive Evidence
The proposed 46-unit development, as designed and mitigated in the 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and EIR Addendum, will be consistent with the 
policies of the 2005 General Plan, which allows for the construction of High-
Density Residential units on the project site with the approval of a Specific Plan. 
The Planned Development Rezoning serves as the Specific Plan for the subject 
property, which has been reviewed as part of the EIR for the larger Atkinson Lane 
Planned Unit Development for the City and County.  

2. The proposed use is compatible with and preserves the character and integrity of
adjacent development and neighborhoods and includes improvements or
modifications either on-site or within the public rights-of-way to mitigate
development-related adverse impacts such as traffic, noise, odors, visual
nuisances, or other similar adverse effects to adjacent development and
neighborhoods.  These improvements or modifications may include but shall not be
limited to the placement or orientation of buildings and entryways, parking areas,
buffer yards, and addition of landscaping, walls, or both, to mitigate such impacts.

Supportive Evidence
The proposed affordable housing project has been designed with reduced density
and massing along Atkinson Lane to blend with adjacent single family residences.
The site will be accessed by a central driveway, and provides all required off-street
parking. The project will include a community room, computer room, play areas,
and manager’s office to provide amenities for residents.

The project was reviewed under an EIR and EIR Addendum with the County of
Santa Cruz serving as the lead agency.  The EIR and EIR Addendum outline
project impacts and has determined appropriate mitigations to reduce those
impacts to a less than significant level.

3. The proposed use will not generate pedestrian or vehicular traffic that will be

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\SUP Exhibits A B & C (1).docx  06/11/2014  1:40 PM  SM\dm 
Exhibit "B" 
Page 1 of 3 



hazardous or conflict with the existing and anticipated traffic in the neighborhood. 

Supportive Evidence 
A traffic study was prepared for the EIR Addendum to address the impacts from this 
46-unit apartment project and determine appropriate mitigations.  The revised traffic 
study found that the project will require the payment of a fair-share toward 
installation of future off-site improvements, and the payment of traffic impact fees to 
both the County and the City. 

4. The proposed use incorporates roadway improvements, traffic control devices or
mechanisms, or access restrictions to control traffic flow or divert traffic as needed
to reduce or eliminate development impacts on surrounding neighborhood streets.

Supportive Evidence
The project will create a new 24-foot wide driveway from Atkinson Lane, with 120 parking 
spaces provided for the project.  Secondary emergency access will be provided through a 
controlled driveway leading into the adjacent housing complex to the West. 

The project is required to pay its fair share toward future improvements to offset impacts of 
any larger development in the County Entitlements Area, as well as provide traffic impact 
fees to both the County and the City. 

5. The proposed use incorporates features to minimize adverse effects, including
visual impacts and noise of the proposed special use on adjacent properties.

Supportive Evidence
The project has been designed to improve the appearance of the streetscape, with single-
family residential massing along Atkinson Lane, and higher density residential units behind
and to the rear of the property.  The site will be thoroughly landscaped and will be operated
by a professional management company.

6. The proposed special use complies with all additional standards imposed on it by
the particular provisions of this chapter and all other requirements of this title
applicable to the proposed special use and uses within the applicable base-zoning
district.

Supportive Evidence
Conditions of Approval have been included to provide for the adherence to all City
standards not addressed by the submittal.  Further, a Memorandum of Understanding has
been drafted between the City, County, and MidPeninsula Housing regarding the process
for building permit application, inspections, and payment of fees.

7. The proposed special use will not be materially detrimental to the public health,
safety, convenience and welfare, and will not result in material damage or prejudice
to other property in the vicinity.

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\SUP Exhibits A B & C (1).docx  06/11/2014  1:40 PM  SM\dm 
Exhibit "B" 
Page 2 of 3 



Supportive Evidence 
The proposed 20-unit affordable apartment development will be managed by a professional 
management company and has been designed to provide amenities to residents of the 
project.  The project provides the minimum required parking for the proposed use, in 
addition to a community room, computer room, and play areas.  The proposed 
development will not be materially detrimental to the neighborhood or the public welfare. 

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\SUP Exhibits A B & C (1).docx  06/11/2014  1:40 PM  SM\dm 
Exhibit "B" 
Page 3 of 3 



CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL 

Application No.:  PP2013-243 
APN: 019-226-42 
Applicant:  MidPeninsula The Farm, Inc.   
Hearing Date:  June 24, 2014 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT, SPECIAL USE PERMIT WITH DESIGN REVIEW 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  

APPROVAL DATE: June 24, 2014 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  July 24, 2014 

General Conditions: 
1. This approval shall be null and void if not acted upon within 24 months from the

effective date of the Planned Development.  This approval applies to plans titled 
"Pippin Apartments, 56 Atkinson Lane," received by the Community 
Development Department on February 20, 2014.  (CDD-P) 

2. After approval is granted, modification to the project or to conditions imposed
may be considered in accordance with Section 14-10.609 of the City Zoning
Ordinance. (CDD-P)

3. Approval is subject to making findings and supportive evidence in accordance
with Section 14-12.403 of the City Zoning Ordinance, with said Findings set forth
in Exhibits "A," “B,” and “C” and made a part of this Permit. (CDD-P)

4. The project shall be in compliance with the conditions of approval, all local codes
and ordinances, appropriate development standards, and current City policies.
Any deviation will be grounds for review by the City and may possibly result in
revocation of the Permit. (CDD-P, B)

5. The applicant shall make and note all revisions necessary to comply with all
conditions of approval. The applicant shall certify in writing below the list(s) of
conditions that the building plans comply with the conditions of approval. (CDD-
P)

6. A copy of the final conditions of approval must be printed on the front sheet of
plans submitted for future permits.  Plans without the conditions of approval
printed directly on the front page will not be accepted at the plan-check phase.
(CDD-P)

7. This project is intended to be constructed in conjunction with the Planned Unit
Development for 26 units on the adjacent County Parcel APN: 048-211-25.  In
the event that the adjacent project is not developed, this permit shall require a
Major Modification, to be reviewed by the Planning Commission.  (CDD-P)

Prior to the issuance of building permits, the following requirements must be 
met: 

8. Buildings shall be protected with an automatic fire sprinkler system 
to include fire  

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\SUP EXHIBITS A B & C (1).DOCX June 11, 2014 (1:40PM)  SM\dm 

Exhibit "C" 
Page 1 of 6 



alarm, water flow monitoring, and notification, installed to NFPA standards.  Fire 
sprinkler contractor shall submit 3 sets of plans and calculations for a separate 
fire permit prior to installing the system. (CDD-P, WFD) 

9. Fire sprinkler system shall be provided with backflow protection.  Indicate on the
plan City of Watsonville Public Works Standards W-10.  (CDD-P, WFD)

10. Fire flow for this project is 2,500 gallons per minute from 2 fire hydrants for 2
hours.  One new fire hydrant shall be installed within 100 feet of proposed
location of new fire department connections.  Fire hydrants shall be looped.
(CDD-P, WFD)

11. Project shall have a secondary emergency access, to be indicated on plans
submitted for building permits.  Minimum right of way for emergency access shall
be 25-feet.  (CDD-P, WFD)

12. Fire Department Knox-Boxes shall be provided where required by the City of
Watsonville Fire Department.  (CDD-P, WFD)

13. No parking shall be allowed along the private driveway.  All curbs shall be posted
“NO PARKING FIRE LANE,” and shall be painted red.  (CDD-P, WFD)

14. Fire Department connections shall be posted with the building numbers they
serve.  (CDD-P, WFD)

15. Proposed buildings shall be posted with illuminated building numbers or
addresses visible from the access driveway.  (CDD-P, WFD)

16. Separate submittals and permits shall be obtained for the fire alarm/ sprinkler
monitoring system.  The alarm panel shall be monitored by a central station
monitoring company.  (CDD-B, WFD)

17. Submit the post construction storm water control plan (drainage study).  Once the
County has approved the storm water control plan, submit a PDF of the report for
City records.  The Applicant is required to sign a standard maintenance
agreement for the perpetual maintenance of the post construction storm water
mitigation measures.  Impervious surface impact fee swill calculated once the
storm water control plan is submitted. (CDD-E)

18. New domestic, fire and irrigation water services will be constructed up to the riser
to the backflow prevention devices which will be constructed by the development.
The project may have a City master meter for the domestic services but each unit
must have separate sub-meter.    (CDD-E)

19. Applicant shall submit a management plan to the City of Watsonville Water Dept.
for its review and approval detailing how it will monitor domestic water
consumption by the tenants in terms of targeted per-capita consumption rates,
how it will inform and educate tenants regarding the targeted per capita water
consumption rates and ways to reduce consumption in order to meet the

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\SUP EXHIBITS A B & C (1).DOCX June 11, 2014 (1:40PM)  SM\dm 

Exhibit "C" 
Page 2 of 6 



rates.  The Applicant shall report to the City every three months the performance 
of the project with meeting per capita water consumption rates.  (CDD-E) 

20. The project must construct the COW trash enclosure standard.  This will
accommodate two dumpsters one for refuse and one for mixed stream recycling.
(CDD-E)

21. ON/OFF SITE PERMIT – Separate On/Off Site Permits are required for work in
the public right-of-way.  (CDD-E)

22. SOLID WASTE/TRASH ENCLOSURE – Trash enclosures shall be located and
designed subject to the review and approval of the City of Watsonville.  The City
of Watsonville provides front load service for dumpsters and rear load service for
drop boxes and compactors.  Enclosures shall be sized to accommodate the
number of refuse and recycling containers required to store refuse and recycling
generation for one week.  The design of trash enclosures shall follow, in general,
City Standard Drawings Nos. S-602 and S-603. (CDD-E)

23. STORM DRAIN SYSTEMS/BMP MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT – The project
applicant shall execute an agreement in the standard form providing for the
maintenance, and monitoring and reporting of those activities to the City of
Watsonville storm drain systems best management practice measures.  (CDD-E)

24. STREET LIGHTING - Street lighting shall be planned designed and constructed
in accordance with the following requirements.  Project shall install one streetlight
on Atkinson Lane.  Apply for new un-metered electrical service from P.G. & E.
and pay all service fees.  Street lights shall conform to the City of Watsonville
Public Improvement Standards.  Prior to occupancy the applicant shall apply to
P.G. & E. for street light numbers and install the numbers on the lights. (CDD-E)

25. STREET IMPROVEMENTS – Applicant shall construct street improvements
along all property frontages meeting the current requirements of the Public
Improvement Standards.   Street improvements shall include but not be limited to
curbs, gutters, sidewalks, access ramps, street paving and street lighting.  If
there is insufficient right of way to accommodate street improvements meeting
the requirements of the Public Improvement Standards, the applicant shall
dedicate property for this purpose. (CDD-E)

26. The project site is 1-acre or more and therefore must prepare Storm Water
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and apply to be permitted under the State
Water Quality Control Board General Construction Permit.  Submit a copy of the
completed Notice of Intent form, a copy of the State Water Board confirmation
letter and a copy of the SWPPP subject to review and approval by the City of
Watsonville. (CDD-E)

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\SUP EXHIBITS A B & C (1).DOCX June 11, 2014 (1:40PM)  SM\dm 

Exhibit "C" 
Page 3 of 6 



27. UNDERGROUND UTILITY SERVICE – Electric and communications services to
new buildings shall be constructed underground.  Aerial services are prohibited.
(CDD-E)

28. To minimize dust/ grading impacts during construction the applicant shall:
a. Spray water on all exposed earth surfaces during clearing, grading, earth

moving and other site preparation activities throughout the day to minimize
dust.

b. Use tarpaulins or other effective covers on all stockpiled earth material and on
all haul trucks to minimize dust.

c. Sweep the adjacent street frontages at least once a day or as needed to
remove silt and other dirt which is evident from construction activities.

d. Ensure that construction vehicles are cleaned prior to leaving the construction
site to prevent dust and dirt from being tracked off-site.

e. The City shall have the authority to stop all grading operations, if in opinion of
City staff, inadequate dust control or excessive wind conditions contribute to
fugitive dust emissions. (CDD-E)

29. The applicant shall provide material and color board for approval by the
Community Development Department. (CDD-P)

30. Project applicants shall have a USFWS-approved biologist conduct California
Red Legged Frog (CRLF) preconstruction surveys a minimum of 48-hours prior
to initiation of project activities.  Pre-construction surveys shall consist of two
days and two nights, spaced 1 week apart, with notification to the USFWS.
MITIGATION MEASURE 3.4-2b

31. During pre-construction surveys, all captured Western Pond Turtles shall be
permanently relocated under the direction of the qualified herpetologist in
consultation with the CDFW.  In addition, a Habitat Enhancement Plan shall be
prepared by a qualified wetland ecologist, hydrologist, and landscape architect
that includes the following improvements to the wetland:

a. Removal of non-native vegetation
b. Development of a wetland and upland planting plan to benefit wetland

functions and values
c. Revegetation of the wetland buffer with native riparian and upland species
d. Development of a monitoring program
e. Development of success criteria for habitat enhancement.  MITIGATION

MEASURE 3-4-3a

32. Project applicants shall consult with a qualified engineer to perform a quantitative
evaluation of liquefaction and liquefaction-induced lateral spreading in
conjunction with a design level geotechnical report for future development within
the planning area.  The evaluation shall be in accordance with the
recommendations contained within the Feasibility Level Geotechnical
Engineering report from March, 2009.  The design level geotechnical report shall
also specify foundations and structural elements that are designed to resist
forces and potential ground settlement generated by liquefaction and lateral
spreading and shall incorporate the following into the final site plans, unless
additional analysis determines that it is not necessary:

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\SUP EXHIBITS A B & C (1).DOCX June 11, 2014 (1:40PM)  SM\dm 

Exhibit "C" 
Page 4 of 6 



f. Development shall be constructed upon a structural mat foundation
system.  MITIGATION MEASURE 3.6-2

33. Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the project applicant shall retain a qualified
hazardous materials professional to conduct a Phase II Soil Investigation in order
to adequately test the surface soil and subsurface soil for pesticide residues in
accordance with the Department of Toxic Substances and Control and CalEPA
Guidance Manual Interim Guidance for Sampling Agricultural Fields for School
Sites.  MITIGATION MEASURE 3.7-9

34. A detailed final drainage plan and analysis demonstrating maintenance of the
pre-development release rate while providing storage volume for the post-
development 25-year storm consistent with the County of Santa Cruz
performance standards or equivalent methods, and retaining the existing
functions of storage, filtration and evaporation of stormwater shall be submitted
for review and approval.  MITIGATION MEASURE 3.8-1a

36. The project applicants shall make a one-time municipal services mitigation
payment to the City of Watsonville to ensure that the project pays its fair-share to
support municipal services provided for the project.  MITIGATION MEASURE
3.12-1

35. Prior to occupancy, project applicants shall pay their proportional fair share
toward improvement of the eastbound approach on Holohan Road at the East
Lake Avenue /Holohan Road intersection.   The estimated fair-share contribution
is 0.40% of the estimated improvement cost of $1,225,100, or $4,900, to be paid
to the County of Santa Cruz.  MITIGATION MEASURE 3.13-5

36. Prior to issuance of building permits, project applicant shall pay applicable traffic
impact fees to the City of Watsonville (20 units), a portion of which will go toward
the future installation of a traffic signal at Highway 1 northbound ramps/Harkin
Slough Road and the Highway 1 southbound ramps/Harkin Slough Road/Green
Valley Road.  MITIGATION MEASURE 3.13-6

37. Prior to issuance of building permits, project applicant shall pay applicable traffic
impacts fees to the City of Watsonville (20 units), a portion of which will go
toward installation of a second through and right turn lane on the Airport
Boulevard approach from Highway 1 and a second left turn land on Freedom
Boulevard at the Airport Boulevard/Freedom Boulevard intersection.
MITIGATION MEASURE 3.13-7

38. Prior to occupancy, project applicants shall pay their proportional fair share
towards installation of two roundabouts (one at the northbound hook ramp
terminal and one at the Airport Boulevard/Larkin Valley Road intersection).  The
estimated cost of these improvements is $1,029,000.  This obligation will be met
through payment of traffic impact fees to the City (20 units), and a portion of the
County’s impacts fees received by the County ($130 per unit) shall be paid to the
City by the County (26 units).  MITIGATION MEASURE 3.13-8

39. The project applicant shall be required to ensure that project water demand is
fully offset at a ratio of 1.2:1 either by comparing pre-development water demand
to post-development water demand or by participating in a water offset program

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\SUP EXHIBITS A B & C (1).DOCX June 11, 2014 (1:40PM)  SM\dm 

Exhibit "C" 
Page 5 of 6 



with fixture and landscaping replacements in the City’s water service area, or a 
combination of both.  MITIGATION MEASURE 4-3. 

40. Project applicants shall pay their proportional fair share towards installation of a
traffic signal at the East Lake Avenue/Wagner Avenue intersection prior to
occupancy.  This obligation will be met through payment of impact fees to the
City of Watsonville by the units located on City parcels, and a portion of the
County’s impacts fees received from the project applicant ($664 per unit) shall be
paid to the City by the County.  MITIGATION MEASURE 4-1

41. Developer shall record a cross- easement on parcels 048-211-25 and 019-226-
41 for access to parking and facilities for the life of the project.  Applicant shall
provide proof of recordation prior to issuance of building permits.  (CDD-P)

42. Developer shall secure an easement for emergency access from parcel 019-226-
36. Applicant shall submit proof of recordation prior to issuance of building
permits.  (CDD-P)

Prior to Final Occupancy: 

43. All trash and construction debris shall be removed from the site. (CDD-B)

44. All improvements identified on the plans must be completed. (CDD-E)

Ongoing Conditions: 

45. Common area landscaping, retaining walls, and fences shall be maintained on an
ongoing basis by the management company.  (CDD-P, E)

46. The City of Watsonville shall provide the following services to the project:
g. Sewer
h. Water
i. Library
j. Fire
k. Police
l. Trash and recycling (CDD-P, CDD-E, WPD, WFD)

47. The project management team shall comply with all provisions of the
Memorandum of Understanding for the project.  (CDD-P)

Key to Department Responsibility 
CDD-B - Community Development Department (Building) 
CDD-P - Community Development Department (Planning) 
CDD-E - Community Development Department (Engineering) 
PW - Public Works and Utilities Department 
WFD – Watsonville Fire Department 
PK - Parks and Community Services Department 
CAT -City Attorney

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\SUP EXHIBITS A B & C (1).DOCX June 11, 2014 (1:40PM)  SM\dm 

Exhibit "C" 
Page 6 of 6 



RESOLUTION NO.  (CM) 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, THE COUNTY OF SANTA 
CRUZ, AND MID-PENINSULA THE FARM, INC., TO ADDRESS 
SERVICES AND FINANCING FOR THE ENTIRE 46-UNIT MID-
PENINSULA DEVELOPMENT PROJECT, LOCATED AT 56 ATKINSON 
LANE AND AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE SAME 

WHEREAS, Mid-Peninsula has designed a 46-unit project consisting of (20) 

twenty units on APN: 019-226-42 located in the City and (26) twenty-six units on APN: 

048-211-25 located in the County; and 

WHEREAS, because this project is located in two regulatory jurisdictions, (the 

City and the County) a Memorandum of Understanding has been drafted to outline the 

responsibilities of each party both during construction and after the project has been 

built. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Watsonville,

the County of Santa Cruz, and Mid-Peninsula The Farm, Inc., to address services and 

financing for the entire 46-unit Mid-Peninsula development project located at 56 Atkinson 

Lane, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, is fair 

and equitable and is hereby ratified and approved.   

2. That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute

Memorandum of Understanding for and on behalf of the City of Watsonville. 

***************************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\56 Atkinson MOU Reso.docx 
ri 6/16/2014 4:07:31 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.1f

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



ATKINSON LANE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING is entered into this _____________day 
of _____________, 2014, by and between the County of Santa Cruz, hereinafter 
referred to as “County,” the City of Watsonville, hereinafter referred to as “City,” and 
MidPen Housing, hereinafter referred to as “MidPen,” together referred to as the 
“Parties.” 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on June 12, 2007, the City and County entered into an Memorandum of 
Understanding, hereinafter referred to as “2007 MOU”, to jointly oversee the planning 
and environmental review process for a group of properties (hereinafter referred to as 
“Atkinson Lane Project”) primarily located in the unincorporated area of the County, but 
also in the Future Growth Area B under the City’s Measure U (an initiative approved by 
city voters to govern future development); and 

WHEREAS, as a result of that effort, an Environmental Impact Report (EIR), Planned 
Unit Development (PUD), and Specific Plan were prepared to address the scope of the 
then-proposed project of approximately 450 residential units, including identification of 
impacts and mitigation measures, as well as requirements for impact fees to be paid to 
the County and City, and a municipal services mitigation payment to be made to City by 
any developers of affordable rental projects; and 

WHEREAS, on June 9, 2009 the final EIR was certified by the County, in conjunction 
with County approval of a General Plan Amendment, Rezoning, and Planned Unit 
Development for a portion of the property. While a draft Specific Plan had been 
prepared for the City’s consideration, it was not acted upon by the City; and 

WHEREAS, on July 8, 2009, the Farm Bureau filed a petition for a Writ of Mandate 
against the County, City and others with regard to certification of the EIR.  As a result of 
this litigation, a Settlement Agreement was reached in 2011 between the Farm Bureau, 
the County, and the City; and both the City and County agreed that the EIR would not 
be used in connection with any action or proposal to develop or annex any, all or 
portions of the Specific Plan Area not included within the County Entitlements, and the 
City agreed that nothing in the County Approvals includes approval of the Specific Plan, 
or the EIR covering the Specific Plan area; and  

WHEREAS, the Settlement Agreement does allow the City to rely upon the EIR and to 
approve development involving two parcels currently located within the City, as they are 
intended to be incorporated into project(s) authorized by the County Entitlements; and 

1 
 



WHEREAS, as a result of the Settlement Agreement, the City and the County are 
allowed to rely upon the certified EIR and to approve developments within the defined 
County Entitlements Area which is defined to include the following Assessor’s Parcel 
Numbers (APNs): 

COUNTY ENTITLEMENTS AREA 
(within existing City of Watsonville Sphere of Influence) 

019-226-42 56 Atkinson Lane MidPen Housing parcel within City of Watsonville 
019-236-01 78 Atkinson Lane Lamb parcel within City 
048-211-25 56 Atkinson Lane MidPen Housing parcel within County 
048-221-09 no site address Lamb parcel within County 

WHEREAS, MidPen has, with the benefit of a loan from the County’s Redevelopment 
Agency, acquired APN 048-211-25 within the County’s jurisdiction, and has purchased 
with its own funds APN 019-226-42 within the City’s jurisdiction.  Together, these two 
adjoining properties create a stand-alone developable project site within the County 
Entitlements Area that is allowed under the Settlement Agreement to be considered for 
approval; and 

WHEREAS, MidPen has designed a cohesive 46-unit project consisting of 26 units on 
APN 048-211-25 located in the County and 20 units on APN 019-226-42 located in the 
City, and has submitted applications for discretionary permit entitlements from both the 
County and the City that require approval before submittal of building permits for the 
project, and these discretionary applications are expected to be considered by the 
County and by the City for approval in the near future; and  

WHEREAS, as CEQA Lead Agency, the County has prepared an Addendum to the EIR 
in order to reflect the terms of the Settlement Agreement and to update and allocate the 
mitigation measures to the current MidPen 46-unit project and to future projects within 
the County Entitlements Area, and both the County and the City will rely on the EIR and 
EIR Addendum for actions on the current MidPen projects, and the County would 
expect to rely on the EIR and EIR Addendum for actions on future projects within the 
County Entitlements Area; and 

WHEREAS, because the MidPen project straddles the City and County boundary, there 
is a need to address how building plan checks and inspections will occur for the 46-unit 
MidPen development project; and 

WHEREAS, it is also necessary to address how payment of impact fees by projects 
located within the County Entitlements Area will be made to the City and County; and to 
address how the parties will ensure that the Municipal Services Mitigation Payment 
required by the EIR for affordable rental housing projects will be made by MidPen to the 
City for the Phase 1a project, which is to be paid by the time of building permit issuance. 

2 
 



 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises of the 2007 MOU, the 
terms of the 2011 Settlement Agreement, the 2009 EIR and 2014 Addendum to the EIR, 
and the considerations contained herein, the Parties agree to the following: 

1.  Building Permit Process for the MidPen 46-unit Project 
 

a. Parties agree that it would be inefficient and unreasonable to require 
MidPen to submit separate building permit applications to the City and 
County for their portions of the project and to have both jurisdictions 
conducting separate plan check and building inspections. 
 

b. Parties therefore agree that the County shall be the jurisdiction to process 
building permits, including plan check, required inspections, and approval 
of occupancy of the buildings; with the exception of fire plan check which 
shall be coordinated between the City and Cal Fire agencies. 

 
c. Parties agree that for consistency, fire plan check shall be coordinated 

between the City and County, with a single point of contact for corrections 
and comments between the County, City, and MidPen.  Fire plan check, 
processing and inspection fees shall be paid as follows:  Paid to the 
County based on current County fee schedule for 26 units; and paid to 
City based on current City fee schedule for 20 units. 
 

d. Parties agree that the level of building plan check, processing and 
inspection fees paid to the County for all 46 units shall be as adopted by 
the County of Santa Cruz, except as provided by 1c above with regard to 
fire fees. 

 
e. The County shall apply City building standards for the purposes of plan 

check and inspection services for the 20 units located on APN 019-226-
42. 
 

f. Parties agree that MidPen retains the option to separately apply to each 
jurisdiction for building permits in the event that the project is built in 
separate phases; whether due to delays in the discretionary process in 
either jurisdiction or for any other reason. 

 

 

3 
 



2. Impact Fees and Distribution for Projects within the County Entitlements 
Area 
 

a. City and County agree to use the impact fee structures of each jurisdiction 
that are in effect at the time of building permit issuance.  Impact fees shall 
be paid prior to issuance of building permits.  MidPen agrees to pay, in the 
context of approval of the 46-unit project, such impact fees to the 
appropriate jurisdiction as outlined below, prior to issuance of any building 
permit for the project, and the County agrees not to issue a building permit 
until such time that payment of all impact fees to City and County have 
been verified in writing.  City and County agree that this MOU’s approach 
to payment of impact fees will be used for any future projects on county 
parcels within the County Entitlements Area, in addition to the current 
MidPen project which is located on both city and county parcels. 
 

b. County agrees not to collect drainage fees for the MidPen project; due to 
the location of the County parcel proposed for 26 units of the MidPen 
project, which is adjacent to City areas and relates to City drainage 
infrastructure. Future projects on county parcels within the County 
Entitlements Area will also not be subject to county drainage fees, unless 
it is determined through analysis that the site(s) do contribute drainage to 
county stormwater/drainage infrastructure, in which case the County will 
set a level of a county drainage fee that would be in addition to any City 
storm drainage, impervious area  and groundwater impact fees. 
 

c. County agrees to collect Childcare Impact fees for the 26 units of the 
MidPen project located in the County, and for any future projects on 
county parcels within the County Entitlements Area.  No childcare impact 
fees will be collected for the 20 MidPen project units located in the City. 
 

d. City and County agree to collect and distribute their own Parks Impact 
fees each based on their own adopted fee levels; the City fees for the 20 
MidPen units located in the City, and the County fees for the 26 MidPen 
units located in the County, and for any future projects on county parcels 
within the County Entitlements Area.  County parks impact fees shall be 
designated to be used to improve South County Parks.   
 

e. The City, County and MidPen agree that the following City impact fees 
shall be collected and distributed to the City of Watsonville for the entire 
46-unit MidPen project, as well as any future projects on county parcels 

4 
 



within the County Entitlements Area; due to the location of the Area, which 
is adjacent to city areas and relates to city infrastructure: 

i. Sanitary Sewer Connection Fee 
ii. Water Service Fee 
iii. Groundwater Impact Fee 
iv. Storm Drainage Fee 
v. Impervious Area Impact Fee 
vi. Public Facilities Fee 
vii. Fire Impact Fee 
viii. Underground Utility In-Lieu Fee 

 
f. City and County agree that MidPen will pay the City Traffic Impact Fee to 

the City for the 20 units located in the City; and to the County for the 26 
units of the MidPen project located on the county parcel; and also agree 
that any future projects within the County Entitlements Area will pay the 
County Transportation Impact Fee and Roadside Improvement Impact 
Fee to the County, for units located in the County.  Further, the City and 
County agree that in order to ensure that adequate funding provided to 
meet fair share allocations and is available for Watsonville to implement 
certain traffic mitigations, and to ensure that appropriate project-level 
requirements are made of projects within the County Entitlements Area, 
the County will carry out the following: 
 

i. The County will pay a portion of its transportation impact fees to the 
City, at a rate of $130 per unit, for units located on county parcels 
within the County Entitlements Area, in order to ensure that county 
Atkinson projects contribute their fair shares to the costs of 
improvements to mitigate project impacts (in addition to the $664 
per unit below to address the cumulative impact); and to provide 
$20,000 in funding to assist with costs of City of Watsonville 
coordination with Caltrans and the County on two improvement 
projects involving Highway 1 ramps, for which the County will cover 
the fair share contributions of the Atkinson project through the 
County’s impact fees; 

ii. The County will pay a portion of its transportation impact fees to the 
City, at a rate of $664 per unit, for units located on county parcels 
within the County Entitlements Area, in order to ensure that county 
projects contribute one-half of the cost of MM 4-1, a traffic signal at 
East Lake Avenue/Wagner Avenue to be installed in the future by 

5 
 



the City of Watsonville, which is an improvement identified to 
mitigate a cumulative impact; 

iii. The County will ensure that the first project related to future 
development of the Lamb property within the County Entitlements 
Area will have a condition of approval imposed that requires the 
first development project to implement MM 3.13-11a prior to project 
occupancy, which requires lengthening the left-turn pocket from 
Freedom Blvd. to Crestview Drive by at least 25 feet; and that this 
requirement is in addition to and not credited to impact fees;  

iv. The County will ensure that the first project related to future 
development of the Lamb property within the County Entitlements 
Area will have a condition of approval imposed that requires the 
first development project to implement MM 3.13-12b prior to project 
occupancy, which requires development and implementation of a 
traffic calming plan on Brewington Avenue north of Crestview Drive; 
and that this requirement is in addition to and not credited to impact 
fees, but which may involve a reimbursement agreement whereby 
the first applicant may be reimbursed a portion of the cost by other 
future developers of projects on the Lamb property; 

v. The County agrees that the transportation and roadside impact 
fees that it receives from projects developed within the County 
Entitlements Area will be dedicated toward the cost of 
improvements to the East Lake (Hwy 152)/Holohan intersection; 
with the exception of the above-described $130 and $664 per unit 
amounts that will be provided to the City by the County from its 
transportation impact fees collected; and with the exception of the 
fair share amounts as identified in MM 3.13-6 (Hwy 1 
Ramps/Harkins Slough Road) and MM 3.13-8 (Highway 1/Larkin 
Valley/Airport Blvd NB Ramps/Intersection), which the County must 
retain in order to meet the fair share contributions of Atkinson 
projects within the County Entitlements Area to those identified 
improvement projects. 

 
3. Municipal Services Mitigation Payment 

 
a. In order to meet a requirement of the EIR, the City and MidPen agree that 

Mid-Pen shall make a one-time municipal services mitigation payment to 
the City in accordance with an executed agreement between the City and 

6 
 



MidPen, to support the ability of the City to provide municipal services 
such as police and fire, and to ensure ability to respond to anticipated calls 
for service to the 46-unit MidPen project and meet demands for other city 
services that may be accessed by households living in the MidPen project.  
Given its location adjacent to city areas, and linkage to the 20 units of the 
project located on a city parcel, it is anticipated that public safety response 
to the 26 units of the MidPen project that are located in the County would 
most likely be made by City Police and Fire personnel.  The County 
agrees not to issue a building permit for the project until proof of such 
payment in accordance with an agreement executed by MidPen and the 
City has been presented to the County. 
 

b. City and County agree that if any additional affordable rental housing 
projects are contemplated for approval by the County within the County 
Entitlements Area in the future, the County agrees to impose a 
requirement for the developer to enter into an agreement with the City of 
Watsonville regarding the municipal services mitigation payment, and the 
County agrees not to issue a building permit for the project(s) until proof of 
such payment in accordance with an agreement executed by the housing 
developer(s) and the City has been presented to the County. 
 

c. The City, County and MidPen agree that the City of Watsonville will 
provide the following services for the life of the entire 46-unit MidPen 
project; and the City and County agree to support applications as 
necessary to the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) for extra-
territorial water and sewer service to the MidPen project and to any other 
future projects on county parcels within the County Entitlements Area: 

i. Fire 
ii. Police 
iii. Water 
iv. Solid Waste 
v. Sewer 

  

7 
 





ORDINANCE NO.  (CM) 

AN UNCODIFIED ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WATSONVILLE APPROVING REZONING TO ESTABLISH A 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY DISTRICT ON ASSESSOR’S 
PARCEL NUMBER 019-226-42 NOW CLASSIFIED R-1 (SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) WITH GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION OF R-
HD (SPECIFIC PLAN) TO R-1/PD FOR APPLICATION NO. PP2013-243 
FILED BY MID-PENINSULA THE FARM, INC., TO CONSTRUCT 20 
AFFORDABLE APARTMENT UNITS ON A 1.3-ACRE VACANT PARCEL 
LOCATED AT 56 ATKINSON LANE, WATSONVILLE, AND DIRECTING 
CHANGES BE MADE ON THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE  

WHEREAS, on October 8, 2013, Mid-Peninsula The Farm, Inc., submitted 

Application No. PP2013-243 to rezone Assessor’s Parcel Number 019-226-42 presently 

zoned R-1 (Single-Family Residential District) with a General Plan Designation of R-HD 

(Specific Plan) to establish a Planned Development Overlay so as to rezone said parcel 

to R-1/PD for the construction of (20) twenty affordable apartment units on a 1.3-acre 

vacant parcel located at 56 Atkinson Lane, Watsonville; 

WHEREAS, certain project features are not permitted by the current zoning in that 

the project represents a departure from certain regulations of the R-1 District; and  

WHEREAS, the Planned Development District Regulations of Part 25 of Chapter 

16 of Title 14 of the Watsonville Municipal Code (commencing with Section 14-16.2500) 

establish a procedure to change specific District Regulations (described in Section 14-

16.2503 of the Watsonville Municipal Code where appropriate if eligible under Section 

14-16.2504 and the findings required by Section 14-16.2508 of the Watsonville Municipal 

Code can be made; and 

WHEREAS, the area affected is depicted on Exhibit “B,” attached hereto and 

incorporated herein; and 

Ord No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\56 Atkinson Rezoning Ordinance.docx 
ri 6/16/2014 4:08:44 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.1g

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



WHEREAS, implementation of this Planned Development Overlay Ordinance on 

the subject property will carry out public objectives more fully; and 

WHEREAS, on May 6, 2014, the Watsonville Planning Commission adopted 

Resolution No. 11-14 (PC) recommending that the City Council adopt an Ordinance 

designating the property located at 56 Atkinson Lane with R-1/PD; and  

WHEREAS, notice of time and place of hearing for approval of the rezoning to 

establish the Planned Development Overlay District was given at the time and in the 

manner prescribed by the Zoning Ordinance pursuant to Section 14-10.900 of the 

Watsonville Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered all written and verbal evidence, and 

the matter submitted for decision.   

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:  

1. That the City Council does hereby approve Rezoning to establish a 

Planned Development Overlay District on Assessor’s Parcel Number 019-226-42 

presently zoned R-1(Single-Family Residential District) with General Plan Designation of 

R-HD (Specific Plan) to R-1/PD which is consistent with Planned Development Rezoning 

Findings, attached hereto and identified as Exhibit “A,” for Application No. PP2013-243 

filed by Mid-Peninsula The Farm, Inc., for the construction of (20) twenty affordable 

apartment units on a 1.3-acre vacant parcel located at 56 Atkinson Lane, Watsonville. 

2. That the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to make changes 

upon that portion of the official “Zoning Map of the City of Watsonville” as shown on 

Exhibit “B,” a copy of which is attached hereto, and designates the ordinance number 

Reso No.            (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\56 Atkinson Rezoning Ordinance.docx  
ri 6/16/2014 4:08:44 PM 

2 



and effective date of the ordinance authorizing the change and to depict said lot lines on 

the Zoning Map once the subdivision map is recorded. 

SECTION 2. PUBLICATION. 
 
This ordinance shall be published in the Watsonville Register-Pajaronian and/or 

Santa Cruz Sentinel in compliance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of 

Watsonville. 

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its final adoption.  

 
***************************************** 

Reso No.            (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\56 Atkinson Rezoning Ordinance.docx  
ri 6/16/2014 4:08:44 PM 

3 



CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF WATSONVILLE  

Application No.:  PP2013-243 
APN: 019-226-42 
Applicant: MidPeninsula The Farm, Inc. 
Hearing Date:  June 24, 2014 

 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT FINDINGS (Section 14-16.2508) 
 
1. The proposal is consistent with the General Plan and/or adopted area plans where 

applicable. 
 

Supportive Evidence 
The project is currently Zoned R-1 (Single Family Residential), with a General Plan 
Designation of R-HD (High Density Residential), with adoption of a Specific Plan for 
the Atkinson Lane Area.  
 
The project was conceptually reviewed as part of the Atkinson Lane Specific Plan 
and Planned Unit Development project jointly undertaken by the County of Santa 
Cruz and the City of Watsonville in 2007-2008.  Although the Atkinson Lane 
Specific Plan was not adopted, the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) (certified by 
the County in 2009 and settled by the Courts in 2011) allowed the inclusion of this 
parcel for development with a mix of low and high density residential, up to 20 
units.  Processing this application as a Planned Development (PD) meets the 
Specific Plan requirement as outlined in the 2005 General Plan to allow high 
density residential uses on the parcel. 

 
2. The proposal is consistent with the purposes of this chapter and other applicable 

sections of this Title.  
 

Supportive Evidence 
The development of the two subject properties (APN: 019-226-42 and 048-211-25) 
provides for a well-designed, contiguous project that would not otherwise be 
possible under the R-1 Zoning regulations.  The project provides for shared access, 
parking, and community facilities over both parcels that provide for increased 
convenience for the future residents of the housing project, including a computer 
lab, outside play areas, and community room. 

 
3. The proposal can be coordinated with the existing and proposed development of 

surrounding areas.  
 

Supportive Evidence 
The project has been designed with lower density units along Atkinson Lane to 
blend with adjacent single-family residential properties on Atkinson Lane, with 
higher density units further back on the property.  The project site is located in a 
mixed use area that includes single family, multi-family, and institutional uses.  

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\56 Atkinson Rezoning Exhibit A.docx                                                      
 

Exhibit "A" 

1 of 4



 
4. The proposal provides an amenity level and amount of open space greater than 

what would have been permitted by the underlying district regulations.  
 
Supportive Evidence 
The project will provide a total of 46-affordable apartment units over approximately 
3.6 acres located in the City and County.  The combination of amenities for both 
parcels in this larger project allows for the provision of a community room, 
computer room, play areas, and sufficient parking that would not otherwise be 
feasible in each of the smaller parcels.   

 
5. The proposal is planned so that the total development in each individual 

development phase can exist as an independent unit; adequate assurance will be 
provided that such objective will be attained; that the uses proposed will not be 
detrimental to present and planned surrounding uses, as shown in the General 
Plan, but will have a beneficial effect which could not be achieved without being 
located in a PD District; 

 
Supportive Evidence 
The project has been designed with shared amenities between the County and City 
parcels.  The computer room, community room, and manager’s office are located 
on the County parcel, and therefore, if the County portion of the project is not 
constructed, the City portion would require modification to provide similar amenities 
on the City parcel.   However, because the Planned Unit Development has already 
been approved for the County parcel, it is unlikely that the project will not be 
constructed.  The playground has been designed on the City parcel. 
 
The entire project has been designed to enhance the Atkinson neighborhood, with 
lower density being placed at the front of the City parcel, and on-site amenities for 
residents of the complex.  Additionally, the project provides more open space and 
community amenities than might otherwise be allowed under traditional zoning.  
 

6. Includes streets and thoroughfares, suitable and adequate to carry anticipated 
traffic, and the proposed densities will not generate traffic in such amounts as to 
overload the street network outside the development. 

 
Supportive Evidence 
The project includes a 24-foot wide driveway off of Atkinson Lane which extends 
the length of both parcels, looping around at the rear of the project site.  The 
driveway gives access to a total of 120 parking spaces for 46 apartment units, and 
has been designed to meet emergency access requirements for the City of 
Watsonville.  
 
An emergency access gate will be provided that joins the adjacent residential 
development to the west of the property.  A driveway and curb cut will be created, 
with a gate preventing access for private vehicles.   

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\56 Atkinson Rezoning Exhibit A.docx                                                      
 

Exhibit "A" 

2 of 4



 
7. The project is designed so that existing or proposed utility services and facilities 

and other public improvements are adequate for the population densities and land 
uses provided. 

 
Supportive Evidence 
The project has been reviewed for compliance with California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) as part of a larger project, and an Addendum to the EIR was 
prepared to address specific impacts of this smaller project. 
 
The City will provide sewer, water, and trash services to the entire 46-unit project, 
as the project is within the City’s water service area, and City sewer lines and storm 
drains are the only public utilities in the vicinity of the project.  The EIR and EIR 
addendum have concluded that the City can adequately serve the project site with 
sewer, water, drainage, and trash service.   
 
The Settlement Agreement requires that water be offset at a ratio of 1:2-1 for the 
City portion of the site, which means that the project developer must offset water 
use with retrofits of existing fixtures within the City of Watsonville. 
 
The project developer also owns a 200 unit high-density residential housing 
complex at Sunny Meadows which has recently undergone a major renovation.  
This renovation included the retrofit of all plumbing fixtures (toilets, sinks, 
showerheads, etc.), which provides the required 1:2-1 offset in the Settlement 
Agreement and EIR Addendum.  The project applicant shall submit documentation 
showing compliance with this requirement. 

 
8. The project is designed so that proposed ratios of off-street parking are consistent 

with parking regulations 
 

Supportive Evidence 
The 46-unit project provides a total of 120 parking spaces for tenants and guests, 
which meets the minimum requirements for both the City and County. The project 
provides 56 parking spaces required for the 20 units located on the City parcel, 
while 66 parking spaces are required to be provided for the 26 units on the County 
parcel.   
 
The project has requested that the Planned Development allow the elimination of 
covered parking due to a 30-foot PG&E easement along a portion of the property 
that precludes development of carports.   

 
9. The project will not have a detrimental and unmitigatable financial impact on the 

City. 
 
 
 

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\56 Atkinson Rezoning Exhibit A.docx                                                      
 

Exhibit "A" 

3 of 4



Supportive Evidence 
The project will be provided with police, fire, public utilities, trash, and water service 
from the City of Watsonville.  The EIR and EIR Addendum have determined that 
with the assessment of a municipal services mitigation fee on the project developer, 
the provision of police, fire, public services (library), and parks services to the 
project will not cause an unmitigatable financial hardship to the City. 

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\56 Atkinson Rezoning Exhibit A.docx                                                      
 

Exhibit "A" 

4 of 4



N

CT

IP

R-1

RM-3 RM-2

30
34

38

562

7

6056

105
2126 121
1292140

107A

2132

115109

78

66 7372

81
85

89

148
6

148
4

1521
153

7

6359
51

40

45
36

704362
4139

44
29

24
16

39
3531272319

73
79

53514947

1558

50

100-140

101-141

101
104

122112108

8884
78

52

55
50

62667078

82869
09440

95
91
87
83
797167

1482

7268
56

34

100
120 1165

1155
1145
11251140

105
115

125
135

145

202
203209

208
202 1170

201
221

148
5

148
1

147
7

149
6

152955
49

12

46 35

3228
20 19

37
47

77

74

75
1480

1478

4844
1175
1165

11501160
120012101220

214
208

215
214

56

37
50

49

54
A    B

40 31

34

80

33323130292827

3837
39

4140
42

4374

1413

171615

20
2221

23
24

2625

A

A-C 17
14

10

27

75

19
28

33 A

25

24
20

A A

A

AB A

A

107

A-C

124

A

246 81012

1 3 5

9111514

ATKINSON LN

BLA
NCA LN

GARDNER AV

VIC RUGH LN

ARISTA LN

SADIA PL

KADDERLY LN

PALOMA WY

NATALIE LN

FREEDOM BL

DRIVEWAY

ARISTACT

City of 
Watsonville

Proposed PD
Overlay

Prepared by Watsonville GIS Center 4/16/2014 (CODD1420).

This Document is a graphic representation using the best currently available 
sources. The City of Watsonville assumes no responsibility for any errors.

Legend
Parcel
Watsonville City Limit
North Business Park Overlay District*
Retail Overlay District*
PD: Planned Development

Zoning
R-1P: Planned Single Family Residential
R-1: Single Family Residential-Low Density
RM-2: Multiple Residential-Medium Density
RM-3: Multiple Residential-High Density
CC: Central Commercial
CCA: Central Commercial Core Area
CN: Neighborhood Commercial
CNS: Neighborhood Shopping Center
CO: Office
CT: Thoroughfare Commercial
CV: Visitor Commercial
IG: General Industrial
IP: Industrial Park
N: Institutional
PF: Public Facilities
EM-OS: Environmental Mgnt. Open Space-Private Land
CZ-A: Coastal Zone-A
CZ-B: Coastal Zone-B
CZ-C: Coastal Zone-C
CZ-D: Landfill
CZ-E: Coastal Zone-E

Motto: “Opportunity  Through Div ersity ; Unity  Through Coopera tion.”

50 0 50 100 150 200

Feet

1 inch = 200 feet µ
* See Manabe-Ow Specific Plan

Exhibit "B"

1 of 1



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE (1) APPROVING A FUNDING COMMITMENT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $1,000,000 TO MID-PENINSULA THE FARM, INC. (MID-
PEN) FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 46 UNITS OF AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING, LOCATED AT 56 ATKINSON LANE (APNS: 019-226-42 & 
048-211-25) WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, CONTINGENT UPON 
APPROVAL OF THEIR LOW INCOME HOUSING TAX CREDITS 
(“LIHTC”) APPLICATION AND COMPLIANCE WITH ALL 
REQUIREMENTS FROM THE CITY’S COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DEPARTMENT; (2) AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE A LOAN AGREEMENT 
WHICH WILL CONTAIN TERMS OF THE USE OF LOAN FOR THE 
PROJECT IN A FORM DEVELOPED AND APPROVED BY CITY 
ATTORNEY; AND (3) AUTHORIZING A BUDGET APPROPRIATION OF 
$1,000,000 FROM THE CITY’S INCLUSIONARY HOUSING FUND    

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City Council hereby approves a $1,000,000 funding commitment

to Mid-Pen, for the construction of the Pippin Apartments project, a 46 unit affordable 

apartment rental project, located at 56 Atkinson Lane (APNs: 019-226-42 and 048-211-

25) Watsonville, California, contingent upon approval of Mid-Pen’s Low Income Housing

Tax Credits (LIHTC) Application, and compliance with all requirements from the City’s 

Community Development Department. 

2. That the City Council authorizes and directs the City Manager to

negotiate and execute a Loan Agreement with Mid-Pen, and the City for $1,000,000 

which will contain terms requiring Mid-Pen to construct the project, said form developed 

and approved by the City Attorney to participate in funding the construction of the Pippin 

Apartments located at 56 Atkinson Lane (APN: 019-226-42 & 048-211-25) Watsonville, 

California, and all related documents necessary for the implementation of the 

commitment for and on behalf of the City of Watsonville. 
Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\56 Atkinson Loan Commitment.docx 
ri 6/19/2014 2:35:57 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.1h

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



3.   That the budget appropriation of $1,000,000 from the City’s Inclusionary 

Housing Fund is hereby authorized. 

4. That the City Council hereby directs the City Clerk to append a copy of the 

executed Loan Agreement to this resolution after it is recorded. 

 
******************************************** 

Reso No.           (RA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\56 Atkinson Loan Commitment.docx  
ri 6/19/2014 2:35:57 PM 

2 



Page 1 of 5 

M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-24-14\55 Brennan\55 Brennan Appeal staff report.doc\Keith Boyle\dm\6/11/2014 4:10 PM 

City of Watsonville 
Community Development Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: June 11, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Marcela Tavantzis, Community Development Director 
Keith Boyle, Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: Appeal of Planning Commission’s decision to approve Special 
Use Permit application (PP2014-5) to establish a 94 bed 
women and children’s shelter and rehabilitation facility with 
retail space at 55 Brennan Street (APN: 018-151-20). 

AGENDA ITEM: June 24, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the City Council deny the applicant’s appeal by adopting a Resolution 
upholding the Planning Commission’s decision to approve Special Use Permit (PP2014-05) to 
establish a 94 bed women and children’s shelter and rehabilitation facility with retail space at 
55 Brennan Street. This recommendation is based on the finding that the action of the 
Planning Commission was based on substantial evidence that the Planning Commission’s 
action to allow the use at 55 Brennan Street was not taken in error because evidence indicates 
that adequate parking is available to serve the use. 

APPEAL PROCEDURE: 
Watsonville Municipal Code (WMC) Section 14-10.1100 allows any member of the public to file 
an appeal when they believe that the action taken by an official or decision making body of the 
City (Planning Commission) was made in error.  Appeals are due within fourteen calendar 
days of the decision and are to be made in writing.  Per Section 14-10-1104, the City shall 
schedule the appeal for the next available City Council meeting.   

The Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. 10-14(PC) approving the permit  to 
establish a 94 bed women and children’s shelter and rehab facility with retail space at 55 
Brennan Street on May 6, 2014.   

CITY COUNCIL 6.2a

deborah.muniz
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 5 

M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-24-14\55 Brennan\55 Brennan Appeal staff report.doc\Keith Boyle\dm\6/11/2014 4:10 PM 

On May 20, 2014, Mr. Timothy Walsh, neighbor of the proposed business, submitted a written 
appeal to the City Clerk’s office (see Attachment 2).  The appeal letter primarily identifies 
issues with the lack of parking at the site as the reasons that actions taken by the Planning 
Commission were in error. 

Per WMC, the next available meeting of the City Council was determined to be this meeting 
(June 24, 2014). 

DISCUSSION: 
The Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. 10-14(PC) (see Attachment 5) approving 
Special Use Permit (PP2014-05) to establish a 94 bed women and children’s shelter and rehab 
facility with retail space at 55 Brennan Street, based on findings that the use would be 
compatible with the neighborhood because it identified available evening parking within 150 
feet of the facility and the project provided a needed service in the community. 

REPORT FROM PLANNING COMMISSION: 
At the May 6, 2014 Planning Commission hearing, staff presented documentation to support 
the recommendation to approve the Special Use Permit.  The primary factors in the 
recommendation for approval were based on the demonstrated service record of Teen 
Challenge and evidence that the proposed facility will require clients not to have cars and the 
applicants had night time parking available within 150 of the facility. 

The appellant has identified issues about the project’s lack of parking as evidence that the 
Planning Commission took the action in error.  Mr. Walsh was at the hearing and expressed 
his concern about the lack of parking at the time.  However, the Planning Commission 
approved the facility because it was shown that the tenant will have minimal need for parking 
which will be discussed in the response to the appeal.  The Baker Brothers’ building is a 
21,611 sq. ft. facility that housed a 19,100 sq. ft. retail furniture store and 2,500 sq. ft. office 
use for many years.  The required parking for the previous use was 29 parking spaces, based 
on the current parking standards of 1 parking space for each 300 sq. ft. of office space (8.5 
spaces), and 5 spaces for the first 3,000 sq. ft. plus 1 space for each 800 sq. ft. of floor area 
over the minimum for a furniture store (20.5 spaces).  Since the site is not in the parking district 
and has only has 3 on site spaces, the building has been severely under parked for the 30 plus 
years it has been in operation and any future commercial or proposed use will be under parked 
without creative solutions. 

RESPONSE TO APPEAL: 

1. Incorrect Parking calculation

Appellant Contention:  Mr. Walsh contends that staff calculated the number of parking spaces 
incorrectly and indicates based on testimony that parking demand should be 55 spaces not the 
36, reduced to 18 identified in the staff report.  He makes this claim based on the contention 
that staff parking for the proposed use should add 23 spaces because there should be  1 
parking space for each staff person (or 94/4=23) based on testimony at the hearing.  Mr. 
Walsh also contends that the Planning Commission should not have allowed the use of 



Page 3 of 5 

M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-24-14\55 Brennan\55 Brennan Appeal staff report.doc\Keith Boyle\dm\6/11/2014 4:10 PM 

Section 14-17.112 that allows reduction of required parking for elderly or disabled people by 
50% if it is shown that it is commensurate with the reduced parking demand created by the 
facility.  Mr. Walsh also contends that Section 14-17.110 that allows the consideration of off-
site parking within 150 feet of the facility should not be utilized because the project does not 
provide permanent available parking. Mr. Walsh has included a variety of definitions from the 
Parking Ordinance to support his positions. 

Staff Response:  The staff report provides the basis for the parking calculation presented at the 
hearing.  The primary calculation was 1 space for every 3 beds or (94/3 = 31)  plus the number 
of employees on maximum shift which was identified as 5 when the staff report was written for 
a maximum parking requirement of 36 spaces as identified in the staff report.  Staff disputes 
Mr. Walsh’s contention that 23 additional spaces should be added because that is more than 
the maximum shift plus the applicants explained that most of the staff were volunteers that 
were already part of the program as clients and not additional personnel. 

Although, the proposed homeless shelter is not for elderly, it is staff’s contention that the 
tenants can be classified as temporarily disabled because of their unfortunate economic and 
personal circumstances.  The Teen Challenge program does not allow the clients to have a car 
during their stay.  This requirement will greatly reduce the amount of parking required by 
clients and is why staff agreed to the 50% reduction clause.  Since this building has 100% lot 
coverage, there is no potential for any additional on-site parking and any future use of this 
building by another commercial user will generate significantly more parking impacts in the 
neighborhood.  The proposed conditions of the Use Permit require that it be reviewed by 
Planning Commission to determine if there are significant impacts and that a new Use Permit 
is required if the operators of the facility are changed. 

The application did include the provision of 28 off-site night time parking spaces by Brennan 
Square which is within 150 feet of the facility.  Although these are not fully dedicated spaces as 
identified by the Ordinance, they are available at the time when residential uses are needed.  
In most cases homeless individuals do not have cars, so it is anticipated that the proposed 
parking will serve the client’s needs if they arise.  With these explanations and findings in the 
staff report, staff recommended that the Planning Commission adopt the findings for the 
project and does not believe that they were taken in error.   If issues arise during the use they 
can be reviewed by the Planning Commission. 

Recommended Finding: The Planning Commission reviewed all pertinent information 
regarding the application and its reduction in parking.  The Planning Commission determined 
that the standard parking requirements could be reduced based on the applicant’s 
requirements that the clients not be allowed to have cars and that the clients were determined 
to be temporarily disabled due to economic and personnel hardships.  Additionally it was 
determined that the 28 off-site night time parking spaces provided by Brennan Square will 
serve the potential needs of the residents.  This decision was not made by the Planning 
Commission in error. 

2. Area in question is congested and project should provide required parking



Page 4 of 5 
 

M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-24-14\55 Brennan\55 Brennan Appeal staff report.doc\Keith Boyle\dm\6/11/2014 4:10 PM 

 

Appellant Contention:  The appellant contends that the surrounding neighborhood parking is 
greatly impacted by existing uses including Notre Dame School and Chase Bank.  He claims 
that use of the site by the proposed tenant will make the existing problem significantly worse.  
He indicates that staff having shifts at the facility for over 24 hours will make the problem 
significantly worse. 
 
Staff Response:  As noted at the beginning of the staff report, this site was utilized as a 
furniture store and office for over 30 years with only 3 on-site parking spaces.  Since this site is 
not in the parking district and it is 100% built out there is no potential to improve the parking 
issues for the site.  As the appellant indicates when this site was used as a furniture store the 
parking issues were worse.   Any other commercial use of this site will create significant 
parking hardships.  Staff supported the proposed project because of the unique circumstances 
of the management of the building that did not allow tenants of the shelter and rehab program 
to have cars.  This unique circumstance is the primary reason that staff believes that this use 
will not generate the significant parking problems that a new commercial project would 
generate.   
 
If this program is not supported, the Council cannot prevent the building from being used by 
another conforming commercial use which would again generate significantly more parking 
problems than the proposed use. An example of this could involve a popular retail clothing 
outlet such as a downtown Ross.  In this situation a 20,000 square foot retail space would 
generate the need for 80 additional parking spaces (or 20,000sq.ft./250sq.ft. per parking 
space)  This would generate five times the potential parking impact but not require any 
additional review because would be an allowed use in an existing building with existing non-
conforming parking. 
 
In regards to the 24 hour shifts of the staff, the appellant fails to understand that the volunteer 
staff of the program are already clients of the program that are also not allowed to have cars 
and are not additional people coming to the site to use the surrounding parking. 
 
Recommended Finding:  The Planning Commission reviewed the evidence provided during the 
hearing and found that the proposed Teen Challenge shelter and rehab facility and its strict 
conditions requiring clients not to have cars will greatly help reduce the potential parking 
impacts that would be created by a standard residential or commercial project in this 
neighborhood.  The Planning Commission included conditions to monitor the use and bring it 
back for review in the case of impacts to the neighborhood.  The Planning Commission did not 
make the decision to approve the 94 bed women and children’s shelter in error. 
 
CONCLUSION/ RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission reviewed the staff report and all pertinent documentation related to 
the Special Use Permit at their May 6, 2014 hearing, and voted to approve the Special Use 
Permit based on that documentation.  Mr. Walsh’s letter although informative and specific 
about facts did not provide adequate information to conclude that the Planning Commission’s 
approval was made erroneously. Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution 
upholding the Planning Commission’s approval of Special Use Permit (PP2014-05), based on 
the attached findings. 



Page 5 of 5 
 

M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-24-14\55 Brennan\55 Brennan Appeal staff report.doc\Keith Boyle\dm\6/11/2014 4:10 PM 

 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 
The approval of the Special Use Permit follows the Strategic Plan policy of creating a safe and 
healthy community. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Upholding the Planning Commission’s approval of Special Use Permit (PP2014-05) will not 
have a financial impact on the City.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The City Council may find that the Planning Commission’s approval of Special Use Permit 
(PP2014-05) was made in error. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Site Plan 
2. Appeal letter from Timothy Walsh. 
3. Planning Commission Staff Report from May 6, 2014 
4. Excerpt of Minutes from May 6, 2014 Planning Commission Hearing 
5. Resolution No. 10-14(PC) 
 
cc: City Attorney 



80
1

1

771

1

15

25630

652

634

618
600

111

15 655

611629

625

19

252933374145

27
37

36

30

48

51
47114

30

118

136

114108

144
140

132
126

13

225

740 147

720

155207
217

115119
133

151
209213

732

576 574
572

570
562

558 26

47

(od
d)

563
-56

7577
571

583589103109
121

72124

104

Main
112

611619

558
570

537X

18

567
559

555

523-533
541

535X

584

40
34

32
30

26
22

18
14

10

36
32

28
24

14

609

637

232529
56

54
50

46

634628624620610

58604

44

1519

109

517-521

117
115

25
23

60

2731354149

100
38

36
34

A-EA-B

A

318

38
36

7
9

1721

138

137141143145

202

217 103105109115117121123127

107106
102

105
103124

110

111115119125127
135137

31 45
55103

131

A,B
113

119115

35

15
21

22

18

501

130124116

449

22-26
A

605

A

A

561

716720724

704
712

A3551

642

34

210208

UNITS

101, 201

209
100106

118
114

110

118
116

114
117115113111

130
126
122

145
141126122

140
136

144

218

249

BA
18

641

625629633637324

703707709715
323321

725-
719

B 727

22
18

28

202       UNITS

101-107

200-209

36
32

3541
31

143-123

2
12

32

A 41
C B

MainA531

42
50

46
38

308

136
128

124
120

116
114

317
317A

309106
102

108

46
42

34
30
26

24

212

1014

245241233 236
214204

230226222220214 223215211

217
221

225
227

213209205

6
4

28
26

214208206

201
205

215209208

14
2125

27

17
15

13

125
129127123115

119

A

109107103101

B
30

24
18

1214
10

110106
104

480

124112108110

104100

18-2014

470
462
460
458

458.5

452-456

446-450
444

442
440

434-

25

29
19

13
75

520
-

500
522-526

538
536530528

17 15

475

469

29

550
548

540

MainA55531353943

48
44

6-10
601

646
640

707
751749

111
107

4 2

248
117 1593

34
30

26
22

16

23
1519

911

28

12162024

801

2

101
105

115111

4 5 6 8123

207211215

119

9
212

208

781

28
26

656

41454953

208
220

212216

57

224

31
-
21118

-
108 2

A

550

11

471-
463

15-29

459453
451

5052

129
46
44

40

42
38

11
15

111

30
2422

207211

86
9

757
762X

23
11

AB

553

A
A

111A

A

A-CA-C

A
B A

B

A-B

710
A

A B

A
A

A A

A

A,B

A,B

A

MAIN ST

BRENNAN ST

SUDDEN ST

EAST LAKE AVW 5TH ST

JEFFERSON ST

PALM AV

FORD ST

E 5TH ST

CARR ST

UNION ST

KILBURN ST

HYDE ST

RODRIGUEZ ST

7TH ST

E 5TH ST

E 5TH ST

Site and Vicinity Map

PROJECT: PP2014-5
APPLICANT: Tom Rosa
APN#s: 018-151-20
LOCATION OF PROJECT: 55 Brennan St

Prepared by Watsonville GIS Center 3/13/2014 (CODD1404).

This Document is a graphic representation only of best available sources.
The City of Watsonville assumes no responsibility for any errors.

80
1

1

771

1

15

25630

652

634

618
600

111

15 655

611629

625

19

252933374145

27
37

36

30

48

51
47114

30

118

136

114108

144
140

132
126

13

225

740 147

720

155207
217

115119
133

151
209213

732

576 574
572

570
562

558 26

47

(od
d)

563
-56

7577
571

583589103109
121

72124

104

Main
112

611619

558
570

537X

18

567
559

555

523-533
541

535X

584

40
34

32
30

26
22

18
14

10

36
32

28
24

14

609

637

232529
56

54
50

46

634628624620610

58604

44

1519

109

517-521

117
115

25
23

60

2731354149

100
38

36
34

A-EA-B

A

318

38
36

7
9

1721

138

137141143145

202

217 103105109115117121123127

107106
102

105
103124

110

111115119125127
135137

31 45
55103

131

A,B
113

119115

35

15
21

22

18

501

130124116

449

22-26
A

605

A

A

561

716720724

704
712

A3551

642

34

210208

UNITS

101, 201

209
100106

118
114

110

118
116

114
117115113111

130
126
122

145
141126122

140
136

144

218

249

BA
18

641

625629633637324

703707709715
323321

725-
719

B 727

22
18

28

202       UNITS

101-107

200-209

36
32

3541
31

143-123

2
12

32

A 41
C B

MainA531

42
50

46
38

308

136
128

124
120

116
114

317
317A

309106
102

108

46
42

34
30
26

24

212

1014

245241233 236
214204

230226222220214 223215211

217
221

225
227

213209205

6
4

28
26

214208206

201
205

215209208

14
2125

27

17
15

13

125
129127123115

119

A

109107103101

B
30

24
18

1214
10

110106
104

480

124112108110

104100

18-2014

470
462
460
458

458.5

452-456

446-450
444

442
440

434-

25

29
19

13
75

520
-

500
522-526

538
536530528

17 15

475

469

29

550
548

540

MainA55531353943

48
44

6-10
601

646
640

707
751749

111
107

4 2

248
117 1593

34
30

26
22

16

23
1519

911

28

12162024

801

2

101
105

115111

4 5 6 8123

207211215

119

9
212

208

781

28
26

656

41454953

208
220

212216

57

224

31
-
21118

-
108 2

A

550

11

471-
463

15-29

459453
451

5052

129
46
44

40

42
38

11
15

111

30
2422

207211

86
9

757
762X

23
11

AB

553

A
A

111A

A

A-CA-C

A
B A

B

A-B

710
A

A B

A
A

A A

A

A,B

A,B

A

MAIN ST

BRENNAN ST

SUDDEN ST

EAST LAKE AVW 5TH ST

JEFFERSON ST

PALM AV

FORD ST

E 5TH ST

CARR ST

UNION ST

KILBURN ST

HYDE ST

RODRIGUEZ ST

7TH ST

E 5TH ST

E 5TH ST

©

Legend
Streets
Watsonville City Limit

Parcel
Project Site

500' Buffer Zone

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 1



Attachment 2
Page 1 of 4



Attachment 2
Page 2 of 4



Attachment 2
Page 3 of 4



Attachment 2
Page 4 of 4



Attachment 3
Page 1 of 9



Attachment 3
Page 2 of 9



Attachment 3
Page 3 of 9



Attachment 3
Page 4 of 9



Attachment 3
Page 5 of 9



Attachment 3
Page 6 of 9



Attachment 3
Page 7 of 9



Attachment 3
Page 8 of 9



Attachment 3
Page 9 of 9



  UNADOPTED MINUTES        

  M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-24-14\55 Brennan\55 Brennan Minutes.doc 

1 

 
 

EXCERPT OF MAY 6, 2014 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 
5.3 A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR A SPECIAL USE 

PERMIT AND ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW (PP2014-5), TO ALLOW THE 
CONVERSION OF AN EXISTING RETAIL COMMERCIAL SPACE TO A 94 BED 
WOMEN AND CHILDREN’S SHELTER AND REHABILITATION FACILITY WITH 
ASSOCATED RETAIL SPACE, AT 55 BRENNAN STREET (APN:  018-151-20), FILED 
BY TOM ROSA, APPLICANT, ON BEHALF OF WELLS FARGO BANK, PROPERTY 
OWNER.  

 
a) Staff Presentation  

 
The staff report was given by Principal Planner Keith Boyle. 
 
Commissioner Gonzalez inquired about the letter sent to staff by Chuck Allen 
regarding the number of parking spaces assigned to this project.  
 
Principal Planner Boyle referred the question to Chuck Allen.  
 
Commissioner Sarmiento inquired about the impact by changing this area from 
retail to residential. 
 
Mr. Boyle stated that there would be a loss of sales tax.  
 
Chairperson Corley asked how the number of beds was determined and if the 
Fire Department approved.  
 
Mr. Boyle stated that it was part of the application and yes, Fire Department 
approved it.  

 
b) Applicant Presentation  

 
Mike Borden, Executive Director of Teen Challenge presented the project.  
 
Commissioner Danna asked if most of the residents are from Watsonville and 
who refers them to the shelter. 
 
Mr. Borden stated that the residents come from all over and they mostly come 
from word of mouth, churches, and organizations.  
 
Commissioner Gonzalez asked staff if the facility would be required to use low-
flow water usage and what requirements are in place for open or closed 
containers at the site for construction debris.  
 
Mr. Boyle stated that all new projects require low-flow water usage and that there 
are no requirements for a closed container but one will be placed at the site. 
 
Secretary Tavantzis stated that the container would be placed on the parking 
lane.  
 
Commissioner Jenkins inquired about the Board of Directors.  
 Attachment 4

Page 1 of 3



UNADOPTED MINUTES 

  M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-24-14\55 Brennan\55 Brennan Minutes.doc 

2 

Mr. Borden stated that all board members are local residents. 

Commissioner Sarmiento asked if the facility would include an open space and if 
tobacco education will be incorporated while they stay at the facility. She also 
inquired about health care for women and children.  

Mr. Borden stated that the facility will have three dorm areas and that they would 
incorporate tobacco education. None of the residents are allowed to smoke on 
site. Yes, staff will assist with connecting them with health care facilities.  

Commissioner Gomez-Contreras inquired about staff, breakdown of where 
residents come from, outreach, and parking issues with students.  

Mr. Borden stated that staffing is a ratio of 1 to 4 and most of them are current 
clients; 75% live locally; outreach is done by staff members at the facility and 
clients are not allowed to bring cars to the facility.  

Commissioner Danna inquired about a play area for the children. 

Mr. Borden stated that the shelter would include a play area. 

Commissioner Gonzalez asked if there would be changes to the façade of the 
building. 

Mr. Borden stated that the façade would stay as is. 

c) Public Hearing

Chairperson Corley opened the Public Hearing. 

Timothy J. Walsh, business owner at 45 Brennan Street expressed his concern 
with the approval of the project due to the lack of parking and the negative impact 
his parking lot will have if this project is approved.   

Manny Solano, Police Chief, spoke in favor of the project and stressed the 
overwhelming need of this organization.  He also acknowledged that issues such 
as parking or congregating may arise and having personal knowledge with the 
response history of the organization, he believes the issues would be dealt with 
in a timely manner.  

Chuck Allen spoke in favor of the project and commended staff for their work on 
this project. He stated that he would work hard to make sure people do not park 
in Mr. Walsh’s lot and that if this building would be used for commercial or 
professional use, what would happen then? The fact of the matter is that there is 
no parking lot. He also stated that he and his wife committed to 20 parking 
spaces at night because he has other tenants and that require the use of some of 
the parking spaces.    

Hearing no further public comments, Chairperson Corley closed the Public 
Hearing. 

Attachment 4
Page 2 of 3



UNADOPTED MINUTES 

  M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-24-14\55 Brennan\55 Brennan Minutes.doc 

3 

d) Commission Discussion

Commissioner Jenkins inquired about parking lots near the facility and pointed 
out several City owned parking lots near the facility. He also asked if the parking 
spaces offered by Mr. Allen would be used by staff.  

Commissioner Castillo asked if the parking lot on Brennan Street and Main 
Street, next to the laundromat was a City owned parking lot. He also asked about 
the parking lot on Main Street between Moreland Notre Dame School and Chase 
Bank.   

Secretary Tavantzis stated that the parking lot by the laundromat is City owned 
but that the one next to Moreland Notre Dame is not. She also stated that there is 
a large City owned parking lot on East Lake Avenue and Fifth Street, behind El 
Miramar Restaurant that is open to the public.  

Mr. Borden stated that very few staff members own cars but if they did, they 
would use Mr. Allen’s parking lot. Only one staff member has a car.   

Commissioner Gonzalez asked staff if the organization can get parking permits 
for the parking garage and expressed his concern with the Resolution and its 
requirements and asked staff to clarify the requirement of 35 parking spaces.  

Secretary Tavantzis stated that parking permits are available at a reduced price 
for non-profits at City Hall. She also reminded the Commission that the 
neighboring residents that attended the community meeting were not concerned 
with parking issues.  

Mr. Boyle stated that the standard is 35 parking spaces with an allowance to 
reduce it to 18 parking spaces due to the proposal submitted by the applicant 
that they do not allow clients to have cars, providing 28 spaces within 150 feet 
and the on-site parking that is there.   

Commissioner Castillo stated that he strongly supports this program but 
understood the potential parking problems.   

Chairperson Corley inquired about the percentage of students graduating from 
the program and the estimated date of the completion of the project.  

Mr. Borden stated that the program had a very high retention rate but did not 
have the percentage of graduating students and he hopes to complete the 
project within a year. 

e) Motion:

It was moved by Commissioner Sarmiento, seconded by Commissioner Danna, 
and carried by the following vote to adopt a resolution approving Application 
(PP2014-5) for a Special Use Permit and Environmental Review:  

 AYES COMMISSIONERS:   Castillo, Danna, Gonzalez, Jenkins, 
 Sarmiento, Gomez-Contreras, Corley 

 NOES:  COMMISSIONERS:   None 
  ABSENT:   COMMISSIONERS:   None Attachment 4

Page 3 of 3



Attachment 5
Page 1 of 11



Attachment 5
Page 2 of 11



Attachment 5
Page 3 of 11



Attachment 5
Page 4 of 11



Attachment 5
Page 5 of 11



Attachment 5
Page 6 of 11



Attachment 5
Page 7 of 11



Attachment 5
Page 8 of 11



Attachment 5
Page 9 of 11



Attachment 5
Page 10 of 11



Attachment 5
Page 11 of 11



RESOLUTION NO.  (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE DENYING AN APPEAL FILED BY TIMOTHY J. WALSH 
AND UPHOLDING THE PLANNING COMMISSION’S DECISION TO 
APPROVE SPECIAL USE PERMIT (PP2014-5) FOR THE CONVERSION 
OF AN EXISTING RETAIL COMMERCIAL SPACE TO A 94 BED 
WOMEN AND CHILDREN’S SHELTER AND REHABILITATION 
FACILITY WITH RETAIL SPACE LOCATED AT 55 BRENNAN STREET 
(APN: 018-151-20)  

WHEREAS, on or about May 6, 2014, the Planning Commission approved 

Resolution No. 10-14 (PC) approving Special Use Permit (PP2014-5) issued to Teen 

Challenge Monterey Bay, applicant, to convert an existing retail commercial space to a 

(ninety-four) 94 bed women and children’s shelter and rehabilitation facility with retail 

space located at 55 Brennan Street, Watsonville; and 

WHEREAS, findings were made by the Planning Commission that the proposed 

facility was consistent with the zoning ordinance and General Plan and was compatible 

with the surrounding neighborhood; and 

WHEREAS, section 14-10.1100 allows for any member of the public to file an 

appeal when they believe that the action taken by an official or decision making body of 

the City (Planning Commission) was made in error; and 

WHEREAS, on May 20, 2014, Timothy J. Walsh, on behalf of Walsh & Roach, 

LLP., and Wanda Sposeto, Trustee, tenant and owner of 45 Brennan Street, 

respectively, appealed the Planning Commission’s decision to approve Special Use 

Permit (PP2014-5); and 

WHEREAS, the appellant contends that the parking in the surrounding 

neighborhood is greatly impacted and that the use of the site by the proposed tenant will 

make existing parking problems significantly worse; and 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\Appeal 55 Brennan SUP Teen Challenge Monterey Bay.docx 
ri 6/17/2014 12:37:49 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.2h

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



WHEREAS, an appeal hearing was scheduled on June 24, 2014, before the City 

Council, which was the earliest possible hearing in accordance with Section 14-10.1104 

of the Watsonville Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS, the appropriate public noticing procedures have been followed and a 

public hearing was held according to section 14-10.1000 of the Zoning Ordinance; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council considered all written and verbal evidence regarding 

the appeal of Special Use Permit (PP2014-5) at the appeal hearing and has made 

Findings, to deny the appeal and uphold the Planning Commission’s decision approving 

Special Use Permit (PP2014-5) to convert an existing retail commercial space to a 

(ninety-four) 94 bed women and children’s shelter and rehabilitation facility with retail 

space located at 55 Brennan Street, Watsonville; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Good cause appearing, the City Council of the City of Watsonville does hereby 

deny the appeal, and upholds the approval of Special Use Permit (PP2014-5) for the 

conversion of an existing retail commercial space to a (ninety-four) 94 bed women and 

children’s shelter and rehabilitation facility with retail space located at 55 Brennan Street, 

Watsonville; and specifically finds that the Planning Commission’s action of May 6, 2014, 

was not taken in error and is supported by the evidence based on the Findings in Exhibit 

“A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

******************************************* 

Reso No.            (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\Appeal 55 Brennan SUP Teen Challenge Monterey Bay.docx 
ri 6/17/2014 12:37:49 PM 

2 



CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL 
                 Application No.  PP2014-05 
                 APN: 018-151-20 
       Applicant: Teen Challenge 
                 Hearing Date:  June 24, 2014 
 
APPEAL FINDINGS (Section 14-10.1106) 
 
1.  In order for an official action to be overturned by an appeal, the acting body must find: 

that the action taken by the official or advisory body was taken erroneously and was 
inconsistent with the intent of the zoning district regulations that regulate the proposed 
action. 

 
Supportive Evidence 
 
To overturn the appeal 
 
1. Incorrect Parking Calculation 
Appellant Contention:  Mr. Walsh contends that staff calculated the number of parking 
spaces incorrectly and indicates based on testimony that parking demand should be 55 
spaces not the 36, reduced to 18 identified in the staff report.  He makes this claim 
based on the contention that staff parking for the proposed use should add 23 spaces 
because there should be 1 parking space for each staff person (or 94/4=23) based on 
testimony at the hearing.  Mr. Walsh also contends that the Planning Commission 
should not have allowed the use of Section 14-17.112 that allows reduction of required 
parking for elderly or disabled people by 50% if it is shown that it is commensurate with 
the reduced parking demand created by the facility.  Mr. Walsh also contends that 
Section 14-17.110 that allows the consideration of off-site parking within 150 feet of the 
facility should not be utilized because  the project does not provide permanent available 
parking but only night time parking.  
 
Staff Response:  The staff report provides the basis for the parking calculation 
presented at the hearing.  The primary calculation was 1 space for every 3 beds or 
(94/3 = 31)  plus the number of employees on maximum shift which was identified as 5 
when the staff report was written for a maximum parking requirement of 36 spaces as 
identified in the staff report.  Staff disputes Mr. Walsh’s contention that 23 additional 
spaces should be added because that is more than the maximum shift plus the 
applicant explained that most of the staff is volunteers that were already part of the 
program as clients that are also not allowed to have cars and are not additional 
personnel. 
 
Although the proposed homeless shelter is not for elderly, it is staff’s contention that the 
tenants can be classified as temporarily disabled because of their unfortunate economic 
and personal circumstances.  The Teen Challenge program does not allow the clients to 
have a car during their stay.  This requirement will greatly reduce the amount of parking 

q:\council\2014\062414\appeal 55 brennan exhibit a.docx        
           EXHIBIT “A” 
           Page 1 of 3 
 



required by clients and is why staff agreed to the 50% reduction clause.  Since this 
building has 100% lot coverage, there is no potential for any additional on-site parking 
and any future use of this building by another commercial user will generate significantly 
more parking impacts in the neighborhood.  The proposed conditions of the Use Permit 
require that it be reviewed by Planning Commission to determine if there are significant 
impacts and that a new Use Permit is required if the operators of the facility are 
changed. 
 
The application did include the provision of 28 off-site night time parking spaces by 
Brennan Square which is within 150 feet of the facility.  Although these are not fully 
dedicated spaces as identified by the Ordinance, they are available at the time when 
residential uses are needed.  In most cases homeless individuals do not have cars, so it 
is anticipated that the proposed parking will serve the clients’ needs if they arise.   
 
Recommended Finding:  The Planning Commission reviewed all pertinent information 
regarding the application and its reduction in parking.  The Planning Commission 
determined that the standard parking requirements could be reduced based on the 
applicant’s requirements that the clients not be allowed to have cars and that the clients 
were determined to be temporarily disabled due to economic and personnel hardships.  
Additionally it was determined that the 28 off-site night time parking spaces provided by 
Brennan Square will serve the potential needs of the residents before they are entered 
into the program.  This decision was not made by the Planning Commission in error. 
 
2. Area in question is congested and project should provide required parking 
Appellant Contention:  The appellant contends that the surrounding neighborhood 
parking is greatly impacted by existing uses including Notre Dame School and Chase 
Bank.  He claims that use of the site by the proposed tenant will make the existing 
problem significantly worse.  He indicates that staff having shifts at the facility for over 
24 hours will make the problem significantly worse. 
Staff Response:  This site was utilized as a furniture store and office for over 30 years 
with only 3 on-site parking spaces.  Since this site is not in the parking district and it is 
100% built out, there is no potential to improve the parking issues for the site.  As the 
appellant indicates when this site was used as a furniture store the parking issues were 
worse.   Any other commercial use of this site will create significant parking hardships.  
Staff supported the proposed project because of the unique circumstances of the 
management of the building that did not allow tenants of the shelter and rehab program 
to have cars.  This unique circumstance is the primary reason that staff believes that 
this use will not generate the significant parking problems that a new commercial project 
would generate.  If this program is not supported, the City Council cannot prevent the 
building from being used by another conforming commercial use which would again 
generate significantly more parking problems than the proposed use.  In regards to the 
24 hour shifts of the staff, the appellant fails to understand that the volunteer staff of the 
program are already clients of the program that are also not allowed to have cars and 
are not additional people coming to the site to use the surrounding parking. 

q:\council\2014\062414\appeal 55 brennan exhibit a.docx        
           EXHIBIT “A” 
           Page 2 of 3 
 



Recommended Finding:  The Planning Commission reviewed the evidence provided 
during the hearing and found that the proposed Teen Challenge shelter and rehab 
facility and its strict conditions requiring clients not to have cars will greatly help reduce 
the potential parking impacts that would be created by a standard residential  or 
commercial project in this neighborhood.  The Planning Commission included conditions 
to monitor the use and bring it back for review in the case of impacts to the 
neighborhood.  The Planning Commission did not make the decision to approve the 94 
bed women and children’s shelter in error. 
 
 
 
 
            

q:\council\2014\062414\appeal 55 brennan exhibit a.docx        
           EXHIBIT “A” 
           Page 3 of 3 
 



Page 1 of 3
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-24-14\Bldg & Planning fees\2014 Changes to City Fees staff report.doc\6/19/2014 9:32 
AM\R Hicks\dm 

City of Watsonville 
Community Development Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: June 10, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Marcela Tavantzis, Community Development Director 
Richard Hicks, Building Official 

SUBJECT:  Fees 

AGENDA ITEM: June 24, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION:  

That the City Council shall adopt the following: 

1. Resolution approving amendment to Fees, Rates and Charges for City Services for
the Community Development Department.

2. Resolution establishing a Density Bonus Fee in the amount of $14,500 as required
by Section 14-47.100 (e ) of the Watsonville Municipal Code (WMC).

3. Ordinance introduction amending Citywide Traffic Impact fee Ordinance No. 986-95
deleting Section 11 of the Ordinance regarding exemption of industrial uses from
Citywide Traffic Impact Fee.

DISCUSSION: 

Citywide Traffic Impact Fee – Ordinance Amendment 
In 1995, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 986-95 which consolidated and modified the 
traffic impact fees for citywide development. The modifications included: 

 Reduction in “trip costs” for new non-residential development, reconstruction and
remodel

 Increase in residential trip rate generation

 Annual Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase

 Exemption of fees for Industrial uses.

CITY COUNCIL 6.3a

deborah.muniz
Approved

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



Page 2 of 3 

 
R Hicks\ 6/19/2014 9:32:25 AM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-24-14\Bldg & Planning fees\2014 Changes to City Fees staff report.doc 

 

Under Section 11 of the Ordinance, industrial uses are exempt from paying Citywide Traffic 
Impact Fees.   
 
The Citywide Traffic Impact Fee for Industrial uses will be calculated on a per trip basis (as are 
all other uses) identified in Exhibit A of Resolution 986-95(CM) by use category and trip rate, 
included in the existing Resolution.  It is recommended that Ordinance No. 986-95 be 
amended to delete Section 11. This amendment would allow for collection of appropriate 
impact fees from all development, reconstruction and remodeling for projects designated 
Industrial or Marketing that are currently exempt. 

Community Development New Density Bonus Planning Fee and Changes to Other Fees 

The City established a density bonus process that was required by State legislation in 2006.  
The density bonus process is established per Section 14-47.140 of the WMC that requires 
recommendation from the Planning Commission and final action by the City Council.  
Additionally a fee is required by Section 14-47.100 (e) of the WMC.  This process is similar to 
the process for a Planned Development ($29, 292) and major subdivision ($16,745).  There 
has only been one project that used this process in 2008.  It was an oversight that the fee was 
not established.   The proposed fee of $14,500 is similar to the major subdivision and planned 
development fees because of the staff work necessary to complete a project. 
 

The Community Development Department is also requesting approval for the addition of two 
news fees, modifying 14 fees and deleting10 fees. The fees have not been reviewed in about 
11 years.  The codes and technology have changed over the years and some of the fees are 
not needed anymore, some need to be modified and some new fees added. 
 
The fees that we are deleting are items that the City does not use anymore, such as the 
antenna dish greater than two feet.  Some of the fees which are being combined in order to 
make it clear what the fee is for, correct the wording to match current code requirements and 
to reduce the number of fees. 
 
One of the new fees is establishing a fee for photovoltaic solar panels and to match the State 
mandated requirement for a maximum fee (Senate Bill 1222).  Currently we are using the 
plumbing solar water system fee for the photovoltaic solar panels.  The other fee is to establish 
a fee to cover the Community Development Department’s time of issuing a Temporary 
Certificate of Occupancy.  The City has to get multiple agencies’ approval and generate a 
complete list of items that are still outstanding before it can issue the Temporary Certificate of 
Occupancy.  This on average requires one and a half hours of staff time to accomplish the 
task. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
Industrial Use projects would now be required to pay the appropriate traffic fee based upon 
their development impact, as is already required of all other development projects. It is 
estimated that this will generate $100,000 dollars a year to the traffic impact fees.  The Density 
Bonus Fee has the potential to add approximately $14,500 per year to the City's budget. The 
fee changes allow us to be close to cost recovery. 



Page 3 of 3 

 
R Hicks\ 6/19/2014 9:32:25 AM 
M:\CDD\CC Packet\AGENDA 2014\06-24-14\Bldg & Planning fees\2014 Changes to City Fees staff report.doc 

 

 
ALTERNATIVES:  
The City Council could choose not to adopt the fees or change the Ordinance. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Changes to Community Development Department Fees 
 
cc: City Attorney 



Fee Name Old Fee Amount/Notes New Fee
New SOLAR PANELS

Residential (Up to 15 kW) $198.15

Residential (Per kilowatt for each kilowatt Over 15 kW) $15.00

Non Residential (Up to 50kW) $264.20

Non Residential ((Per kilowatt for each kilowatt Over 50 kW) $7.00

Change Reinspection Fee $98.30 $132.10

New Temporary Certificate of Occupancy $198.15

Change Duplicate Permit Fee $26.62 $44.33

Delete Code Enforcement Hourly rate $66.00

Change Investigations of Code Violations Change of wording only $132.10

 (Code Enforcement Hourly Rate Bldg/Elect/Mech/Plumb & Municipal Code)

Delate Permit Issuance Fee / Inspection Fee We had two different fees for the same item 

in two different locations

$132.10

Change Window replacement (Up To 10 Replacments up to 50 sq.ft. max) Change of wording and no fee charged  $0 $105.47

Window (11-20 Replacements) $159.00

Window (21-50 Replacements) $212.00

Change New Window/Door (1 New non structural, up to 50 s.f. max) $328.00 $105.47

Window/Door (Each Additional Window/Door) $53.00

Change New wWindow/Door (1 New Window/Door w/Sstructural

 Sshear Wwall/Mmasonry, up to 50 s.f. max) Change of wording only $328.70

Window/Door (Each Additional Window/Door w/Structural Shear Wall/ Masonry) $105.47

Changes for Community Development Department

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 3



Change Skylight 

New Non-Structural less than 10 sq. ft. $0.00 $199.50

New Structural greater than 10 sq. ft. or structural $394.24 $394.24

Change Reroofing (Lite Weight Tile  w/o Struct. Calc., BUR, Comp. Shingles ) Change of wording only

1st 1,000 sq ft $98.30

Each additional 500 sq. ft or fraction thereof $32.77

Change Reroofing (lite wt Tile  w/struct calc.) Change of wording only

1st 1,000 sq ft $394.24

Each additional 500 sq. ft or fraction thereof $66.56

Delete Reroofing (comp shingles)

1st 1,000 sq. ft. $98.30

Each additional 500 sq. ft or fraction thereof $32.77

Delete Reroof (BUR)

Every 30 sf up to 1,000 sf $66.56

Each additional 1,000 sq. ft or fraction thereof $32.77

Delete Lighting pole $106.47

each add'l pole $40.96

Delete Antenna dish > 2 ft $262.14

Change Light / Flag pole up to 25 ' high (Foundation) Combined light and flag poles into one fee $132.10

each add'l pole $44.03

Change Light / Flag pole Over 25 ' high (Foundation) Combined light and flag poles into one fee $199.50

each add'l pole $66.50

Change Masonry fence over  7 ' high (standard design)          Change of wording only. Code Changed 

from 6' to 7'.

1st 100 lf. $167.86

Each additional 100 lf. or fraction thereof $66.56

Attachment 1
Page 2 of 3



Delete Masonry fence up to 6' high (special design)

1st 100 lf. $328.70

Each additional 100 lf. or fraction thereof $92.16

Change Balcony / Deck (up to 300 sq ft.) Combined balcony and deck into one fee $198.15

Delete Balcony addition (up to 200 sq ft.) $328.70

Delete Bay window $124.93

Change Heating appliances, including vent

Up to 100,000 BTU/H each $45.06 $45.06

100,000 BTU/H and over each $66.56 $66.56

SFD Residential Heat Appliances (Replacement) Delete no cost permits

Delete Each Residential Single Family Dwelling water heater and/or vent Delete no cost permits

Attachment 1
Page 3 of 3



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE ESTABLISHING AND SETTING FEES, RATES AND 
CHARGES FOR CITY SERVICES FOR BUILDING AND SAFETY  

Amends Resolution No. 151-03 (CM) 

EFFECTIVE: JULY 1, 2014 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That  the City Council does hereby establish and set fees, rates, and

charges for City services for Building and Safety, described in Exhibit “A,” attached 

hereto and incorporated herein. 

2. That the modifications to the Building and Safety fees are hereby

approved, described in Exhibit “B,” attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

3. That the aforementioned fees, rates, and charges shall henceforth be

adjusted annually by the rate of the April to April change in the Consumer Price Index 

(CPI) for All Urban Consumers San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose, California, rounded to 

the next whole dollar, unless a different adjustment is directed by Council resolution. 

Changes shall be effective July 1 of each year. 

4. That the aforementioned amended fees, rates, and charges shall

supersede any and all fees of the City inconsistent therewith and shall be effective 

immediately. 

********************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\Buidling & Safety Fees (CDD).docx 
ri 6/19/2014 1:31:26 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD  ______

1 

CITY COUNCIL  6.3e

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



FEES, RATES & CHARGES FOR CITY SERVICES FOR THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

TYPE OF FEE: NEW FEE: 

Duplicate Permit   $44.33 

Re-inspection      $132.10 

Temporary Certificate of Occupancy      $198.15 

Investigations of Code Violations      $132.10 
(Code Enforcement hourly rate) 

Masonry Fence over 7’ 
First 100 lf.      $167.86 
Each additional 100 lf. or fraction thereof   $66.56 

Reroofing (light weight tile without structural calculations, 
BUR (build up roof) composition shingles) 
First 1,000 sq. ft.   $98.30 
Each additional 500 sq. ft. or fraction thereof   $32.77 

Reroofing (tile with structural calculations.) 
First 1,000 sq. ft.  $394.24 
Each additional 500 sq. ft. or fraction thereof    $66.56 

Solar Panels: 
Residential (up to 15 kilowatt [kw] ) $198.15 
Residential (per kw for each kw over 15 kw)   $15.00 
Non-Residential (up to 50 kw)      $264.20 
Non-Residential (per kw for each kw over 50 kw)     $7.00 

Skylight: 
New non-structural      $199.50 
New structural      $394.24 

Window (up to 10 replacements)      $105.47 
Window (11-20 replacements)      $159.00 
Window (21-50 replacements)      $212.00 

Window/ Door (1 new)      $105.47 
Window/ Door (each additional window/door)   $53.00 

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\Fees Exhibit A.docx               EXHIBIT "A"                
Page 1 of 2 



TYPE OF FEE NEW FEE: 

Window/Door (1 new window/door with structural shear 
wall/masonry, up to 50 sq. ft. maximum) 

     $328.70 

Window/Door (each additional window/door with structural 
shear wall/masonry) 

     $105.47 

Light/Flag pole up to 25’ high (foundation)      $132.10 
Each additional pole   $44.03 

Light /Flag pole over 25’ high (foundation)      $199.50 
Each additional pole   $66.50 

Balcony/Deck (up to 300 sq. ft.)      $198.15 

Heating Appliances, including vent 
Up to 100,000 *BTU/H each   $45.06 
100,000 *BTU/H and over   $66.56 
*BTU (British thermal unit – energy measurement)

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\Fees Exhibit A.docx               EXHIBIT "A"   
Page 2 of 2 



Fee Name Old Fee Amount/Notes New Fee
New SOLAR PANELS

Residential (Up to 15 kW) $198.15

Residential (Per kilowatt for each kilowatt Over 15 kW) $15.00

Non Residential (Up to 50kW) $264.20

Non Residential ((Per kilowatt for each kilowatt Over 50 kW) $7.00

Change Reinspection Fee $98.30 $132.10

New Temporary Certificate of Occupancy $198.15

Change Duplicate Permit Fee $26.62 $44.33

Delete Code Enforcement Hourly rate $66.00

Change Investigations of Code Violations Change of wording only $132.10

 (Code Enforcement Hourly Rate Bldg/Elect/Mech/Plumb & Municipal Code)

Delate Permit Issuance Fee / Inspection Fee We had two different fees for the same item 

in two different locations

$132.10

Change Window replacement (Up To 10 Replacments up to 50 sq.ft. max) Change of wording and no fee charged  $0 $105.47

Window (11-20 Replacements) $159.00

Window (21-50 Replacements) $212.00

Change New Window/Door (1 New non structural, up to 50 s.f. max) $328.00 $105.47

Window/Door (Each Additional Window/Door) $53.00

Change New wWindow/Door (1 New Window/Door w/Sstructural

 Sshear Wwall/Mmasonry, up to 50 s.f. max) Change of wording only $328.70

Window/Door (Each Additional Window/Door w/Structural Shear Wall/ Masonry) $105.47

                       Building and Safety Fees 

Exhibit "B" 
1 of 3



Change Skylight 

New Non-Structural less than 10 sq. ft. $0.00 $199.50

New Structural greater than 10 sq. ft. or structural $394.24 $394.24

Change Reroofing (Lite Weight Tile  w/o Struct. Calc., BUR, Comp. Shingles ) Change of wording only

1st 1,000 sq ft $98.30

Each additional 500 sq. ft or fraction thereof $32.77

Change Reroofing (lite wt Tile  w/struct calc.) Change of wording only

1st 1,000 sq ft $394.24

Each additional 500 sq. ft or fraction thereof $66.56

Delete Reroofing (comp shingles)

1st 1,000 sq. ft. $98.30

Each additional 500 sq. ft or fraction thereof $32.77

Delete Reroof (BUR)

Every 30 sf up to 1,000 sf $66.56

Each additional 1,000 sq. ft or fraction thereof $32.77

Delete Lighting pole $106.47

each add'l pole $40.96

Delete Antenna dish > 2 ft $262.14

Change Light / Flag pole up to 25 ' high (Foundation) Combined light and flag poles into one fee $132.10

each add'l pole $44.03

Change Light / Flag pole Over 25 ' high (Foundation) Combined light and flag poles into one fee $199.50

each add'l pole $66.50

Change Masonry fence over  7 ' high (standard design) Change of wording only. Code Changed 

from 6' to 7'.

1st 100 lf. $167.86

Each additional 100 lf. or fraction thereof $66.56

Exhibit "B" 
2 of 3



Delete Masonry fence up to 6' high (special design)

1st 100 lf. $328.70

Each additional 100 lf. or fraction thereof $92.16

Change Balcony / Deck (up to 300 sq ft.) Combined balcony and deck into one fee $198.15

Delete Balcony addition (up to 200 sq ft.) $328.70

Delete Bay window $124.93

Change Heating appliances, including vent

Up to 100,000 BTU/H each $45.06 $45.06

100,000 BTU/H and over each $66.56 $66.56

SFD Residential Heat Appliances (Replacement) Delete no cost permits

Delete Each Residential Single Family Dwelling water heater and/or vent Delete no cost permits

Exhibit "B" 
3 of 3



RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE ESTABLISHING AND SETTING A DENSITY BONUS  
FEE IN THE AMOUNT OF $14,500 PURSUANT TO WATSONVILLE 
MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 14-47.100(e)  

EFFECTIVE DATE:  JULY 1, 2014 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Pursuant to Section 14-47.100(e) of the Watsonville Municipal Code, the

City Council does hereby establish and set a Density Bonus Fee in the amount of 

$14,500 (Fourteen Thousand five-hundred) dollars. 

2. That the aforementioned fees, rates, and charges shall henceforth be

adjusted annually by the rate of the April to April change in the Consumer Price Index 

(CPI) for All Urban Consumers San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose, California, rounded to 

the next whole dollar, unless a different adjustment is directed by Council resolution. 

Changes shall be effective July 1 of each year. 

3. That the aforementioned rate shall supersede any and all fees of the City

inconsistent therewith. 

*************************************** 

Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\Density Bonus Fee.docx 
ri 6/17/2014 12:39:24 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ CDD _______

1 

CITY COUNCIL 6.3f

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



ORDINANCE NO.  Introduction  (CM) 

AN UNCODIFIED ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WATSONVILLE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 986-95 (CM) 
REPEALING SECTION 11 WHICH CURRENTLY EXEMPTS 
COLLECTION OF CITYWIDE TRAFFIC IMPACT FEES FROM ALL 
DEVELOPMENT, RECONSTRUCTION AND REMODELING PROJECTS 
DESIGNATED INDUSTRIAL OR MARKETING WITHIN THE ENTIRE 
CITY FOR THE USE OF MITIGATING TRAFFIC IMPACTIONS 

Amends Ordinance No. 986-95 (CM) 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, DOES 

HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. ENACTMENT. 

Section 11 of Ordinance No. 986-95 (CM) is hereby repealed in its entirety to 

allow for the collection of Citywide Traffic Impact Fees for all development, 

reconstruction and remodeling for projects designated Industrial or Marketing within the 

entire City for the use of mitigating traffic impactions. 

SECTION 2. PUBLICATION. 

This ordinance shall be published in the Watsonville Register-Pajaronian and/or 

Santa Cruz Sentinel in compliance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of 

Watsonville. 

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This ordinance shall be in force and take effect thirty (30) days after its final 

adoption. 

****************************** 

Ord No.           (CM)       1  
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\062414\Citywide Traffic Impact Fees Ordinance.docx
ri 6/17/2014 12:41:56 PM          AJS ______ CJP ______ 

CITY COUNCIL 6.3g

Carlos J. Palacios
Stamp



FUND FUND 
NO. NAME r· 

120 TRUST FUND 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

SUMMARY OF DISBURSEMENTS 
WARRANT REGIST!=R DATED 6/24/2014 

130 EMPLOYEE CASH DEDUCTIONS FUND 
150 GENERAL FUND 
202 REDEVELOPMENT OBLIG RETIREMENT 
205 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
207 RENTAL REHAB FUND 
210 CAL HOME GRANT FUNDS 
221 INCLUSIONARY HOUSING 
246 CIVIC CENTER COMMON AREA 
250 LIBRARY FUND 
260 SPECIAL GRANTS 
305 GAS TAX 
309 PARKING GARAGE FUND 
354 SPECIAL DISTRICT FUNDS 
710 SEWER SERVICE FUND 
720 WATER OPERATING FUND 
730 AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND 
740 WASTE DISPOSAL FUND 
780 WORKERS COMP/LIABILITY FUND 
787 HEAL TH INSURANCE FUND-POOL 

AMOUNT 

1,788.00 
554,008.88 
195,779.74 

1,001.73 
16.00 

9,006.00 
57,800.00 
15,893.00 
31 ,560.10 

9,547.23 
11 ,555.53 
13,831 .92 
2,006.02 

107.07 
147,672.54 
164,242.46 
322,960.11 
131,626.97 
88,763.54 
27,677.34 

TOTAL 1, 786,844.18 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE CLAIMS 
ARE BUDGETED AND APPROPRIATED FOR: 

APPROVED FOR PAYMENT: 

EZ~~~ 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DIRECTOR 

TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 6/11/2014 TO 6/24/2014 

PAYROLL INVOICES 

TOTAL OF ALL INVOICES 

CARLOS J. PALACIOS 
CITY MANAGER 

1,232,835.30 

554,008.88 

1, 786,844.18 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11:20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

209943 

209830 

209757 

209840 

209849 

209758 

209747 

209752 

209759 

209915 

209909 

209952 

209760 

209921 

$640.00 
640.00 

$4699.00 
3078.00 
1621.00 

$15.78 
15.78 

$1850.00 
1850.00 

$561.26 
37.64 
28.33 

338.75 
14.66 
10. 96 

130. 92 

$600.00 
600.00 

$4830.44 
4830.44 

$3604.08 
2692.84 

248.00 
663.24 

$1572.38 
625.88 
946.50 

$456.00 
456.00 

$800.00 
800.00 

$11. 67 
11. 67 

$56.73 
56.73 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

06/24/14 65156 
150-410-7361-00000 

06/24/14 51697 
150-620-7322-00000 
150-620-7322-00000 

06/24/14 00304 
720-596-7559-00000 

06/24/14 52393 
730-560-7361-00000 

06/24/14 53011 
354-958-7821-00190 
354-959-7821-00188 
150-680-7533-00000 
354-958-7821-00190 
354-959-7821-00188 
150-680-7533-00000 

0 1-800-BOARDUP 
SERV 143W.BEACH 

0 3M 
SERVICE AGREEMENT 
SERVICE AGREEMENT 

0 A L LEASE COMPANY, INC 
SUPPLIES 

0 A-1 JANITORIAL SERVICE 
JANITORIAL SERVICES 

0 A. M. LEONARD, INC. 
REPAIR SUPPLIES 
REPAIR SUPPLIES 
REPAIR SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

INVOICE # 

06/24/14 00332 0 AFFILIATED PSYCHOLOGISTS INC. 
150-210-7319-00000 

06/13/14 56602 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/13/14 56602 

06/24/14 00460 
150~220-7361-00000 
246-321-7361-00000 
246-321-7361-00000 

06/24/14 62218 
150-410-7325-00000 
150-410-7325-00000 

06/24/14 62006 
150-691-7511-00158 

06/24/14 65664 
730-560-7307-00000 

06/24/14 00682 
150-450-7222-00000 

06/24/14 62815 
150-692-7510-00210 

PSYCHOLOGICAL PRESCREEN 

0 AFLAC 
H7935 INSURANCE 

0 UNISSUED 

0 AIRTEC SERVICE,INC 
REPAIRS 
EMER SERVICE 
SERVICE 

0 ALEXANDER ELECTRIC INC. 
GENERATOR REPAIRS 
SERV PD 

0 ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 
SKATE EVENT INSURANCE 

0 AMERICAN AVIATION PROFESSIONALS INC. 
EQUIP INSTALLATION 

0 AMERICAN MESSAGING 
PAGING SERVICE 

0 AMERICAN SOCCER COMPANY, INC. 
UNIFORMS 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

UNISSUED 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

3 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11:20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209432 

1 209925 

1 209901 

1 209789 

1 209838 

1 209949 

1 2 0 97 61 

1 209929 

1 209927 

1 209874 

1 209762 

1 209938 

1 209763 

$98.10 
98.10 

$82.50 
82.50 

$55.43 
55.43 

$1875.00 
468.75 
468.75 
468.75 
468.75 

$464.72 
4 64. 7 2 

$40546.22 
40429.22 

117. 00 

$14644.20 
2350.15 

431.56 
151. 85 
161. 97 

1800.84 
431.55 

9316.28 

$719.36 
719.36 

$1847.56 
1847.56 

$83.01 
83.01 

$47.00 
47.00 

$85.27 
85.27 

$4058.41 
238.99 
258.81 
839.46 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

06/11/14 65819 
720-598-7561-00000 

06/24/14 63125 
150-450-7503-00000 

06/24/14 60429 
720-596-7770-00000 

06/24/14 06120 
150-280-7361-00000 
710-530-7361-00000 
740-570-7361-00000 
720-596-7361-00000 

06/24/14 52208 
730-560-7221-00000 

06/24/14 65412 
730-560-7562-00000 
730-560-7562-00000 

0 AMERIGAS 
PROPANE 

0 ANALGESIC SERVICES, INC. 
OXY CYLINDERS 

0 ARIAS, PEDRO 
REFUND CREDIT BAL 

0 ARRIAGA, JOHN 
JUNE 2014 FEES 
JUNE 2014 FEES 
JUNE 2014 FEES 
JUNE 2014 FEES 

0 ASAP SIGNS & PRINTING 
VYNIL LETTERS EPANEL BACK SIDE 

0 ASCENT AVIATION GROUP, INC. 
FUEL 
MYFBO MONTHLY FEES 

INVOICE # 

06/24/14 01164 
720-596-7211-00000 
150-450-7211-00000 
740-570-7211-00000 
150-620-7211-00000 
150-220-7211-00000 
150-680-7211-00000 
710-530-7211-00000 

0 ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS 
WATACPCOOl 

06/24/14 63800 
150-409-7222-00000 

06/24/14 63649 
150-250-7222-00000 

06/24/14 55975 
720-596-7770-00000 

06/24/14 01215 
150-410-7323-00000 

06/24/14 64597 
720-596-7770-0000Q 

06/24/14 01342 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 

WATACPCOOl 
WATACPCOOl 
WATACPCOOl 
WATACPCOOl 
WATACPCOOl 
MONTHLY CHARGE 

0 AT&T 
CLETS LINE 

0 AT&T - at&t CALNET 2 
PHONE CHARGES 

0 AUSMUS, STEPHEN L. 
REFUND CREDIT BAL 

0 AUTO CARE TOWING 
WPD TIRE CHANGE 

0 AYYAD, MUAWIAH 
REFUND CREDIT BAL 

0 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

4 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11:20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209831 

1 209861 

1 209764 

1 209765 

1 209766 

1 209859 

1 209870 

1 209875 

1 209860 

1 209883 

1 209767 

1836.88 
645.33 
238.94 

$450.00 
450.00 

$200.00 
200.00 

$165.00 
55.00 
55.00 
55.00 

$3900.00 
3900.00 

$1395.00 
1395. 00 

$90.58 
90.58 

$179.00 
179.00 

$58279.95 
58279.95 

$3327.00 
297.00 

2740.00 
290.00 

$136.70 
136.70 

$2369.94 
501.50 

11. 20 
75.99 
19.54 

118. 04 
19.36 
15.32 
18.12 
14.59 
15.96 
39.45 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 

06/24/14 51704 
150-450-7359-00000 

06/24/14 54010 
150-410-7323-00000 

06/24/14 01410 
740-572-7559-07831 
740-572-7559-07831" 
740-572-7559-07831 

BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 

0 BARRETO, PABLO 
TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 

0 BAY CITY TOW 
TOWING SERVICE 

0 BAYSIDE OIL II INC 
USED OIL FILTERS 
USED OIL FILTERS 
USED OIL FILTERS 

INVOICE # 

06/24/14 01433 0 BELLINGER FOSTER STEINMETZ INC. 
207-387-7361-00000 

06/24/14 01439 
309-525-7361-00000 

06/24/14 53899 
150-691-7533-00166 

06/24/14 55338 
260-336-7533-03234 

06/24/14 56005 
730-910-7837-42121 

06/24/14 53989 
150-210-7319-00000 
150-210-7319-00000 
150-450-7361-00000 

06/24/14 58078 
720-596-7770-00000 

06/24/14 01550 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 

RESOLUTIN NO. 28-14(CM)CONSULT 

0 BEWLEY'S CLEANING 
SERV PLAZA PARKING 

0 BIG 5 SPORTING GOODS 
FISHING SUPPLIES 

0 BOARDWALK BOWL 
BOWLING ACTIVITY-PAL 

0 BRANDLEY, REINARD W. 
RESOLUTION NO. 39-14(CM) 

0 BRENDT D. CARLSON, M.D., INC. 
FIRST AID 
PRE EMPLOYMENT PHYSICALS 
TESTS 

0 BRITTON, BRIAN 
REFUND CREDIT BAL 

0 BRODART CO. 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

5 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11:20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209768 

1 209424 

1 209703 

1 209957 

1 209825 

1 209833 

1 11112396 

1 209897 

1 209947 

1 209846 

1 209770 

1 209743 

38.44 
8 .11 

539.97 
19.67 

608. 72 
305.96 

$2953.00 
2583.00 

370.00 

$15296.00 
13792.00 

1177.00 
245.00 

82.00 

$6209.50 
6209.50 

$99.23 
99.23 

$2473.63 
770.39 

1502.05 
22.50 

178.69 

$2716.04 
2716.04 

$6637.72 
5416.93 
1045.79 

175.00 

$16.31 
16.31 

$1950.00 
1200.00 

750.00 

$1470.00 
1470.00 

$992.30 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 

06/24/14 01550 

06/11/14 01619 
740-912-7855-42141 
309-521-7361-00000 

06/16/14 01619 
740-912-7855-42141 
150-680-7533-00000 
740-575-7361-00000 
150-680-7533-00000 

06/24/14 65809 
780-293-7307-00000 

06/24/14 50708 
150-450-7323-00000 

06/24/14 51791 
150-680-7533-00000 
730-560-7323-00000 
150-450-7323-00000 
740-575-7559-00000 

06/13/14 62407 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/24/14 59751 
305-923-7839-42061 
305-923-7334-00000 
710-540-7763-00052 

06/24/14 65341 
150-450-7559-00000 

06/24/14 52735 
260-336-5890-03235 
260-336-7533-03226 

06/24/14 02140 
150-409-7351-00000 

06/13/14 51096 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION 

BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 

0 UNISSUED 

0 BUD'S ELECTRIC SERVICE, INC 
MSC DIAGRAM/BCH ST PARKING 
MSC DIAGRAM/BCH ST PARKING 

0 BUD'S ELECTRIC SERVICE, INC 
ELEC WORK 
ELEC WORK 
ELEC WORK 
ELEC WORK 

INVOICE # 

0 BURKE, WILLIAMS & SORENSEN, LLP 
LEGAL SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF 

0 BURTON'S FIRE APPARATUS, INC. 
BULBS LIGHT BAR 

0 C & N TRACTOR 
REPAIRS 
REPAIRS 
REPAIRS 
REPAIRS 

0 CA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT 
PAYROLL FOR - 061314 

0 CAL-WEST LIGHTING & SIGNAL MAINTENANCE INC . 
TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE 
ANNUAL STREET LIGHT MAINTENANC 
CASINO NIGHT BANNER 

0 CALIFORNIA COAST UNIFORM COMPANY 
MEDIC PATCH 

0 CALIFORNIA POLICE ACTIVITIES LEAGUE 
LEADERSHIP CONFERENCE 
LEADERSHIP CONFERENCE 

0 CALIFORNIA POLICE CHIEFS ASSN 
DUES-SOLANO 

62252 CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

UNISSUED 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

6 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11:20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 20993 1 

1 209896 

1 209884 

1 209968 

1 209920 

1 209771 

1 209873 

1 209889 

1 209908 

1 209772 

1 209828 

1 209905 

1 209964 

992 . 30 

$200.00 
200 . 00 

$267 . 00 
267 . 00 

$195 . 34 
97. 67 
97. 67 

$100 . 00 
100.00 

$250.00 
250.00 

$286.95 
286.95 

$1368.44 
195.30 

1173 . 14 

$125.00 
125 . 00 

$124 . 96 
124 . 96 

$556.98 
36 . 35 

383.29 
14.32 
69.44 
53.58 

$915.50 
645.50 
270.00 

$64.99 
64.99 

$21614.36 
5532.03 
5489.70 
5264.12 
5328.51 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

130-000-2050-00000 

06/24/14 63898 
260 - 336- 5890 - 03235 

06/24/14 59718 
1 20 - 279- 5895 - 00161 

06/24/14 58 1 12 
150-692-7361-00162 
150-691-7361-00158 

06/24/14 66160 
720 -5 96-7771- 00000 

06/24/14 62692 
150-4 50 -7 359 - 00000 

06/24/14 02299 
150-4 50 -7 533 - 00000 

06/24/14 55520 
150 - 250-7501 - 00000 
150-409-7501-00000 

06/24/14 59138 
150-450-7359-00000 

06/24/14 61930 
720-596-7361-00000 

06/24/14 02360 
720-596-7559-00000 
710 - 530 -7 559- 00000 
150-680-7537-00000 
150 - 680 - 7533-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 

06/24/14 51385 
720-598-7359-00000 
720-598-7359-00000 

06/24/14 60800 
730 - 560 -7 361 - 00000 

06/24/14 66106 
710-532-7551-00000 
710 - 532 -7 55 1-00000 
710-532-7551-00000 
710-532-7551-00000 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

B.MARTIN DE L CAMPO 

0 CALIFORNIA STATE PARKS FOUNDATI ON 
YOUTH CONNECT I ON 

0 CALLANAN, MAUREEN 
REFUND RENTAL 

0 CALTRONICS BUSINESS SYS TEMS 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 

0 CARLSBERG , WILLIAM 
LOW FLOW TOI LET REBATE 

0 CARO , EDUARDO 
TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 

0 CASCADE FIRE EQUIPMENT COMPANY 
FIREHUNTER BOOTS 

0 CDW GOVERNMENT , INC 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

0 CELEBRATIONS PARTY AND RENTAL STORE 
CHAIR RENTAL 

0 CENTRAL COAST ENERGY SERVI CES, INC. 
CONSULTANT SERVI CES FOR 3YEAR 

0 CENTRAL ELECTRIC 
STATEMENT 5/31/14 
STATEMENT 5/31/14 
STATEMENT 5/31/14 
STATEMENT 5/31/14 
STATEMENT 5/31/14 

0 CERVANTES, HENRY 
TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 
REIMBURSEMENT 

0 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 
MONTHLY SERVICE 

0 CHEMTRADE CHEMICALS US LLC 
ALUMINUM SULFATE 
ALUMINUM SULFATE 
ALUM SULFATE 
ALUM SULFATE 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTS TANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

7 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09 : 20 RUN : THURSDAY J UN192014 11:20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209433 

1 209429 

1 209745 

1 209951 

1 209723 

1 209698 

1 209945 

1 209867 

1 209724 

$80.93 
80 . 93 

$58800.00 
57800 . 00 

1000.00 

$ 1 21.60 
1 21. 60 

$539 . 72 
539 . 72 

$50 1. 00 
50 1. 00 

$989 . 89 
99.44 
13 . 60 
50 . 00 
11. 94 
40 . 00 
65.00 
20.00 
32.53 
91. 06 
89 . 00 
13 . 35 
14 . 00 
50 . 00 
19 . 03 
72.37 
36 . 00 
59.62 
14 . 10 
25.46 
30 . 00 
46 . 00 
36 . 00 
50 . 00 
11 . 39 

$250 . 00 
250 . 00 

$149.95 
1 49 . 95 

$371. 30 

CI TY OF WATSONVI LLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/ 1 1/14 - 06/24/ 1 4 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

06/11/14 02492 
150 - 410 - 7561- 00000 

06/ 11/14 65684 
210 - 610 - 7367 - 02047 
221 - 347 -7 367 - 00000 

06/ 13/14 55274 
130 - 000 - 2050- 00000 

06/24/14 65533 
150 - 620 - 7702 - 00000 

06/13/14 02560 
130 - 000 - 2050 - 00000 

06/12/14 026 1 0 
260 - 339 -7 559- 0400 1 
150 - 409 - 7359- 00000 
150 - 409 - 7232 - 00000 
150 - 410 - 7232 - 00000 
150 - 410 - 7559- 00000 
150 - 410 - 7561- 00000 
710 - 530 - 7359- 00000 
710 - 540 - 7559- 00 1 85 
710 - 540 - 7559- 00129 
710 - 540 - 7359- 00000 
710 - 540 -7 212 - 00000 
740 - 570 - 7232 - 00000 
720 - 598 - 7359- 00000 
150 - 620 - 750 1- 00000 
150 - 162 - 7232 - 00000 
150 - 160 - 7359- 00000 
730 - 560 - 751 1- 00000 
150-160- 7212 - 00000 
150 - 11 0- 7501- 00000 
150 - 160 - 7232 - 00000 
150 - 160 - 7542 - 00000 
150 - 160 - 7359- 00000 
150 - 162 - 7232 - 00000 
150 - 280 - 7232 - 00000 

06/24/14 65258 
150 - 620 - 7361- 00000 

06/24/14 54971 
150 - 419 - 7559-00000 

06/13/ 1 4 02861 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

0 CHEVRON & TEXACO CARD SERVICES 
FUEL 

0 CHICAGO TITLE CO . 
FIRS T TI ME HOME BUYER PROGRM 
FIRS T TIME HOME BUYER PROGRM 

0 CINC I NNATI LIFE I NSURANCE CO 
PAYROLL FOR - 061314 

0 CI T 
LEAS E OF COP I ERS 

0 CI TY EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION 
PAYROLL FOR - 061314 

0 CI TY OF WATSONVI LLE - CASH 
SC I ENCE W/SHOP SUPLS 
WATER FOR PD 
M SOLANO RED CROSS EVENT 
T TRAUB LUNCH LCW W/S HOP 
CALL OUT PD STAFF FOOD 
FUEL POL I CE COURT OUT OF TOWN 
CWEA TRAI NI NG B STOKE 
SUP PLI ES NATURE CTR 
SCI W/S HOP SUPPLIES 
CWEA TRIAN I NG B PIERSON 
POSTAGE M FONTES 
LUNCH SAC T BARNARD 
WATER TRMN T COURSE J PRECIADO 
REFRESHMNTS PROGRAM LIBRARY 
LUNCH FOR STAFF ELECTI ONS 
TOAS TMSTR FEE B FLORES 
AIRPORT SUPPLS 
US POS T OFFICE I ORTIZ 
I ORTIZ SUPLS CI TY CLERK 
PV CHAMBER LUNCH B FLORES 
SC CO NOTARY FI LI NG I ORTIZ 
TOAS TMAS TER FEE B FLORES 
ELECTIONS MATERIALS B FLORES 
SUPPLIES CI TY CLERK B FLORES 

0 CLEAN BU I LDI NG MAI NTENANCE COMPANY 
JANI TORI AL SERVICES 

0 COAS T PAPER & SUPPLY INC . 
RFK RECOD FI LE BOXES 

0 COLONIAL LIFE & ACCIDENT INS 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTS TAND I NG 

OUTS TANDING 

OUTSTAND I NG 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTS TANDI NG 

OUTS TANDI NG 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

8 



REPORT : CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN : THURSDAY JUN1920 1 4 11:20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

371.30 

1 209946 $5027 . 78 
4435 . 91 

591. 87 

1 209885 $500 . 00 
500.00 

1 209842 $14034 . 00 
14034.00 

1 209863 $5106.00 
5106.00 

1 209704 $6502 . 90 
6502.90 

1 209881 $150.00 
150.00 

1 209843 $1 42.24 
142 . 24 

1 209971 $100.00 
100.00 

1 209888 $75.00 
75.00 

1 209934 $175 . 00 
175.00 

1 209932 $94.94 
7 9. 4 6 

8.83 
6 . 65 

1 209773 $409.29 
174 . 67 

57.95 
75 . 95 
47.95 
52. 77 

1 209751 $3691. 82 
3691.82 

1 209756 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE : 06/11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

130 - 000-2050 - 00000 

06/24/14 65296 
720 - 598 - 7537 - 42106 
720 - 598 - 7537 - 42106 

06/24/14 58307 
120 - 279 - 5895 - 00193 

06/24/ 1 4 52455 
221 - 347 - 7361 - 00000 

06/24/14 54225 
207 - 387 - 7351 - 00000 

06/16/14 03026 
150 - 410 - 7765 - 00402 

06/24/14 57745 
150 - 450-7351- 00000 

06/24/14 52522 
720 - 596- 7770 - 00000 

06/24/14 66163 
720 - 596- 7772 - 00000 

06/24/14 59083 
150 - 419 - 7559- 00000 

06/24/14 64427 
710-530 - 7559- 00000 

06/24/14 63913 
150 - 680 - 7551 - 00000 
354 - 959 - 7551 - 00000 
354 - 958 - 755 1-00000 

06/24/ 1 4 03084 
150 - 690 - 7322 - 00000 
71 0- 540 - 7361 - 0042 1 
150 - 250-7322 - 00000 
150 - 523-7222 - 00000 
150 - 417-7533 - 00000 

06/13/14 658 1 2 
130 - 000-2050- 00000 

06/13/14 65812 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION 

PAYROLL FOR - 061314 

0 CORI X WATER PRODUCTS , INC . 
HYDRANT 
GATE VALVE 

0 CORTEZ , IRMAL I NDA 
REFUND RENTAL 

0 COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
WINTER SHELTER 13/14 

0 COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
391600 - 1159 CITY OF WATS 

INVOICE # 

0 COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ COLLECTIONS 
PKG TICKET SURCHARGE 

0 COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ HUMAN SERVICES DEPT. 
EMT - RECERTIFICATION 

0 COZZENS, LEE 
REFUND CLOSED ACCOUNT 

0 CRAWFORD, SUSAN 
WASHER REBATE 

0 CRIME SCENE CLEANERS INC 
MEDICAL WASTE DISPOSAL 

0 CRIPPEN, CRISTEL 
PLANT MAI NTENANCE 6/2014 

0 CROP PRODUCT I ON SERVICES , INC. 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

0 CRUZIO/THE INTERNET STORE I NC. 
DSL 
DSL 
DSL 
DSL 
DSL 

0 CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AUTHORI TY 
PAYROLL FOR - 061314 

0 UN I SSUED 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

UNISSUED 

9 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11:20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209940 

1 209769 

1 209774 

1 209948 

1 209775 

1 209731 

1 209776 

1 209955 

1 209777 

1 209958 

1 209942 

1 209961 

1 209891 

1 209950 

1 209778 

$1970.00 
1087.00 

883.00 

$230.00 
230.00 

$360.52 
53.42 

119. 35 
187.75 

$3000.62 
3000.62 

$2097.00 
1809.00 

288.00 

$286.15 
286.15 

$7369.20 
2156.31 
5212.89 

$3827.50 
3827.50 

$1281.14 
1281.14 

$10600.16 
10600.16 

$74.00 
74.00 

$2625.00 
975.00 
750.00 
900.00 

$267.00 
267.00 

$1200.00 
1200.00 

$138.63 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

06/24/14 64974 
150-410-7323-00000 
150-410-7232-00000 

06/24/14 01770 
720-596-7351-00000 

06/24/14 03118 
150-692-7361-00162 
710-530-7559-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 

06/24/14 65401 
150-686-7533-00000 

06/24/14 03422 
150-409-7361-00000 
150-210-7361-00000 

06/13/14 03017 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/24/14 03521 
305-923-7837-02173 
305-923-7837-02173 

06/24/14 65765 
710-530-7361-00000 

06/24/14 03911 
720-596-7324-00000 

0 CUZICK, MATT 
MOTORCYCLE REPAIRS 
MOTORCYCLE REPAIRS 

0 CWEA 
RENEWAL 

0 D&G SANITATION 
PORT TOILET 
500 CLEARWATER LN 
TOILET RENTAL 

0 DAYKIN PLAYCLOTHES 
STRAW FEST T-SHIRTS 

0 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 
FINGERPRINTS 
DOJ FINGERPRINTS 

55719 DEVIN DERHAM-BURK 
E.SANTANA 

0 DIAMOND D COMPANY 
SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROJECT 
SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL 

0 ECOPLEXUS, INC. 
RESOLUTION NO. 153-ll(CM) 

0 EDWARDS TRUCK CENTER INC 
ENGINE MAINT PARTS 

INVOICE # 

06/24/14 65931 0 EFFICIENT TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS, LLC. 
740-570-7559-00000 

06/24/14 65006 
150-450-7351-00000 

06/24/14 66026 
740-570-7361-00000 
740-570-7361-00000 
740-570-7361-00000 

06/24/14 59485 
120-279-5895-00159 

06/24/14 65447 
710-541-7315-07024 

06/24/14 04081 

HARDWARE 

0 EMT CERTIFICATION FUND 
EMT RECERTIFICATIONS 

0 ENCOMPASS COMMUNITY SERVICES 
HOURS WORKED 4/2014 
HOURS WORKED FEB 2/2014 
HOURS WORKED 5/2014 

0 ESCOTO, ANGELICA 
REFUND RENTAL 

0 EUROFINS EATON ANALYTICAL, INC. 
SAMPLES 

0 EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS, INC. 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

10 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11:20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209853 

1 209928 

1 209847 

1 209779 

1 209832 

1 209780 

1 209430 

1 209876 

1 209974 

1 209781 

1 209782 

1 209912 

1 209856 

1 209421 

138.63 

$63.59 
63.59 

$295.00 
295.00 

$1332.59 
70.81 

460.82 
800.96 

$9.50 
9.50 

$120.44 
120.44 

$140.82 
140.82 

$800.00 
800.00 

$289.00 
289.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$3321.16 
51. 31 

2825.23 
358.89 

85.73 

$262. 71 
262. 71 

$2012.00 
2012.00 

$605. 96 
27.48 

433.98 
144.50 

$3897.16 
1077.10 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
GIL ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

150-680-7533-00000 

06/24/14 53161 
720-596-7770-00000 

RAINMASTER 

0 EXECUTIVE ESTATES 
REFUND CREDIT BALANCE 

INVOICE # 

06/24/14 63787 0 FAST RESPONSE ON-SITE TESTING, INC. 
720-596-7361-00000 

06/24/14 52833 
720-596-7559-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 

06/24/14 04170 
730-560-7212-00000 

06/24/14 51710 
730-560-7357-00000 

06/24/14 04302 
710-541-7506-00000 

06/11/14 50548 
246-321-7361-00000 

06/24/14 56117 
740-572-7361-00023 

06/24/14 66166 
720-596-7771-00000 

06/24/14 04640 
720-596-7559-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 
730-560-7323-00000 
710-540-7559-00421 

06/24/14 04707 
250-935-7857-42043 

06/24/14 62049 
740-575-7361-00000 

06/24/14 53647 
150-626-7501-00000 
250-935-7857-42043 
150-620-7501-00000 

06/11/14 59846 
710-540-7559-00000 

RESPIRATOR TRANING/TESTING 

0 FASTENAL COMPANY 
PARTS 
PARTS 
PARTS 

0 FEDEX 
FRT 

0 FEDEX OFFICE 
SERVICE 

0 FISHER SCIENTIFIC 
DIPPER POLYETHYLENE 

0 FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 
CIVIC PLAZA FILING 2013 

0 FREON FREE 
RECYCL APPLIANCES 

0 FRIESELL, MARGARET 
LOW FLOW TOILET REBATE 

0 FUJITAS GARDEN,INC 
OIL 
SAW & REPAIRS 
SAW & REPAIRS 
SAW & REPAIRS 

0 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 
BOOKS 

0 GC ENVIRONMENTAL, INC. 
SEM DATA 

0 GECRB/AMAZON 
AMAZON CREDIT 
AMAZON CREDIT 
AMAZON CREDIT 

0 GLOBAL CONCEPTS 
REFURBISH OFFICE 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

11 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11 : 20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209818 

1 209911 

1 209783 

1 209850 

1 209854 

1 209922 

1 209699 

1 209941 

1 209784 

1 209785 

1 209916 

1 209786 

1 209918 

1 209970 

940.02 
940.02 
940.02 

$423.25 
423.25 

$487 . 00 
487 . 00 

$8. 4 6 
8.46 

$215741.47 
215741.47 

$435.00 
435.00 

$1655.00 
850.00 
805.00 

$125.19 
125.19 

$74.04 
74.04 

$840.50 
840.50 

$23853.36 
7773.02 

34.00 
527.00 

2673.04 
12081. 30 

765 . 00 

$1:400.00 
1400.00 

$383 . 47 
383.47 

$54 . 00 
54.00 

$100.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

710-911-7855-22300 
720-913-7855-22300 
740-912-7855-22300 

06/24/14 11442 
720-596-7559 - 00000 

06/24/14 62022 
120-279-5895-00178 

06/24/14 05030 
150-510-7559-00000 

06/24/14 53060 
730-910-7837-42121 

06/24/14 53271 
710-530-7559-00000 

06/24/14 62928 
246- 321 - 7303 - 00000 
202-367-7303-00000 

06/12/14 65001 
710-540-7559-00129 

06/24/14 65001 
150-691-7533 - 00161 

06/24/14 05137 
150-690-7361-00000 

06/24/14 05137 
150-130-7303-00000 
202-361-7307-00000 
710-530-7303-00000 
730-560-7303-00000 
150-130-7303-00000 
710-530-7303 - 00031 

06/24/14 62292 
710-540 - 7307-00000 

06/24/14 05235 
250-935 - 7857-42043 

06/24/14 62547 
150-688-7361-00000 

06/24/14 66162 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION 

REFURBISH OFFICE 
REFURBISH OFFICE 
REFURBISH OFFICE 

0 GRAINGER 
SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 

0 GRANADOS, ANA MARIA 
REFUND RENTAL 

0 GRANITE ROCK COMPANY 
ACCT 84732 

0 GRANITE ROCK COMPANY 
RESOLUTION NO. 124-13(CM) 

0 GREEN TOUCH 
LANDSCAPE MAINT 4/2014 

INVOICE # 

0 GRESHAM SAVAGE NOLAN & TILDEN APC 
LEGAL SERVICES FOR WATSONVILLE 
FORMERLY PO S004799 (C/0#4) 

0 GROCERY OUTLET 
SCIENCE W/SHOP SPLS 

0 GROCERY OUTLET 
CALLAGHAN PARK 

0 GRUNSKY EBEY FARRAR & HOWELL,INC 
FCWP 22481 

0 GRUNSKY EBEY FARRAR & HOWELL, INC 
LEGAL SERVICES 
LEGAL SERVICES 
LEGAL SERVICES 
LEGAL SERVICES 
LEGAL SERVICES 
LEGAL SERVICES 

0 GUTIERREZ CONSULTANTS, INC 
CONSULTING SERVICES FOR 

0 HAINES & COMPANY , INC 
BOOKS 

0 HCD 
REGISTRATION 

0 HOLDRIDGE, BILL 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

12 



REPORT : CHECKREG GENERATED : 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11:20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209428 

1 209917 

1 209963 

1 209733 

1 209734 

1 209788 

1 209906 

1 209836 

1 209967 

1 209697 

1 209841 

1 209954 

1 209845 

100.00 

$499.38 
499.38 

$1345 . 54 
1345 . 54 

$28 . 00 
28 . 00 

$4025 . 00 
4025.00 

$3079.31 
3079 . 31 

$898.8 1 
266 . 00 
632.8 1 

$910 . 00 
90 . 00 
90 . 00 
91. 00 
91. 00 

548 . 00 

$129 . 00 
129.00 

$200.00 
200.00 

$41.13 
41.13 

$939 . 52 
101. 78 
129 . 26 
122 . 97 
152 . 18 
433 . 33 

$8530 . 00 
8530 . 00 

$1 23 . 69 
94 . 19 
29 . 50 

CI TY OF WATSONVI LLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/ 11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

720 - 596- 7772 - 00000 

06/11/14 51675 
150 - 220 - 7324 - 00000 

06/24/ 1 4 6239 1 
740 - 570 - 7361 - 00000 

06/24/ 1 4 66073 
150 - 69 1- 7343 - 00159 

06/13/14 05813 
130 - 000 - 2050 - 00000 

06/ 13/14 058 13 
130 - 000-2050 - 00000 

06/24/14 05818 
710- 532 - 7506 - 00000 
710- 541- 7506- 00000 

06/24/14 60829 
710 - 530 - 7559 - 00000 
710 - 530 - 7559 - 00000 
720 - 596- 7361 - 00000 
710 - 531- 7361 - 00000 
720 - 597 - 7361 - 00000 

06/24/14 52052 
710 - 530 - 7091- 00000 

06/24/14 66159 
720 - 596- 777 1- 00000 

06/ 12/14 52417 
740 - 570 - 7559 - 00024 

06/24/14 52417 
150 - 690 - 7325-00000 
150- 690 - 7325 - 00000 
150 - 691-7533 - 00161 
740 - 570 - 7559 - 00024 
740 - 570 - 7559- 00024 

06/24/14 65730 
260-339 - 7361- 03310 

06/24/14 52731 
720 - 597 - 7559- 00000 
710 - 530 - 7303 - 00000 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION 

WASHER REBATE 

0 HOME DEPOT CREDI T SERVI CES 
SUPPLIES 

0 HOPE SERVI CES INC . 
RESOLUT I ON NO. 42 -1 3(CM) 

0 HORIBE, ERIC 
ZUMBA PAYMEN 

0 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 
303800 

0 ICMA RET I REMENT TRUS T 457 
303884 PTS 

0 I DEXX LABORATORI ES I NC. 
SUPPLIES/MATERI ALS 
SUPPLI ES/MATERI ALS 

INVOICE. # 

0 JERRY ALLISON LANDSCAPING I NC. 
LANDSCAPE MAINT 
LANDSCAPE MAINT ENANCE 
LANDSCAPE MAINT 
LANDSCAPE MAINT 
LANDSCAPE MAINT 

0 JOHNSON , JAMES 
BOOT REIMB 

0 JOHNSON , MARCIA 
2 LOW FLOW TOILET REBATES 

0 KELLY- MOORE PAINT COMPANY, INC. 
PAINT 

0 KELLY- MOORE PAINT COMPANY, I NC. 
PAI NT 
PAINT 
PAINT 
PAINT 
PAINT 

0 KEMA SERVICES , INC . 
RESOLUTION NO. 32 - 13(CM) 

0 KETLEY, ROBERT 
RE I MB MI LEAGE TO VAR LOCAT I ONS 
RE I MB MILEAGE TO VAR LOCATIONS 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

I NV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTS TANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTS TANDI NG 

13 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11:20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209878 

1 209790 

1 209858 

1 209926 

1 209880 

1 209879 

1 209820 

1 209706 

1 209953 

1 209975 

1 209791 

1 209792 

1 209434 

1 209959 

1 209793 

$2260.75 
2260.75 

$2311.06 
2311.06 

$1500.00 
1500.00 

$578.94 
578.94 

$2398.69 
2398.69 

$152.00 
152.00 

$193.79 
193.79 

$1525.00 
1525.00 

$59.68 
59.68 

$100.00 
100.00 

$101.69 
101.69 

$18.12 
18.12 

$1835.50 
1835.50 

$1500.00 
1500.00 

$4424.41 
184.64 
158.25 
925.07 
384.82 

19.53 
338.04 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

06/24/14 56689 
150-450-7323-00000 

06/24/14 06570 
150-450-7533-00000 

06/24/14 53868 
710-540-7361-00422 

06/24/14 63399 
740-575-7559-00000 

06/24/14 57254 
150-620-7353-00000 

06/24/14 57160 
150-410-7323-00000 

06/24/14 50064 
150-450-7359-00000 

06/17/14 06860 
150-690-7361-00000 

06/24/14 65685 
740-575-7559-00000 

06/24/14 66167 
720-596-7772-00000 

06/24/14 07063 
710-530-7324-00000 

06/24/14 07130 
710-530-7324-00000 

06/11/14 65885 
787-299-7320-00000 

06/24/14 65947 
150-510-7533-00000 

06/24/14 07170 
150-680-7504-00000 
246-321-7324-00000 
150-450-7504-00000 
150-410-7324-00000 
150-691-7533-00166 
710-530-7559-00000 

0 KME FIRE APPARATUS 
SUPPLIES 

0 L N CURTIS & SONS 
HELMETS&BOOTS 

0 LA GANGA ESPECIAL 
FULL COLOR ADS 

0 LANDTEC NORTH AMERICA 
WELL HEAT & PARTS 

0 LEARNING EXPRESS, LLC 
SUB-LEARNING EXPRESS 

0 LEXIS NEXIS RISK DATA MANAGEMENT 
MAY CONTRACT FEE 

0 LUCAS, DANNY 
MUSIC 13-A 

0 MAGGIORA BROS DRILLING CO. INC 
PUMP INSTALL&REPAIR 

0 MALDONADO, JUAN 
K.MITCHELL BUS CARDS 

0 MCCONNELL, JAMES 
WASHER REBATE 

0 MCMASTER CARR 
PARTS 

0 MERCURY METALS, INC 
REPAIR MATERIALS 

0 MES VISION 
CLAIMS CHECK RUN 5/31/14 

0 METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
STSAVER SUB RENEWAL 

0 MID VALLEY SUPPLY 
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

14 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED : 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11 : 20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209944 

1 209882 

1 209794 

1 209795 

1 209855 

1 209965 

1 209899 

1 209732 

1 209919 

356 . 98 
36.89 

149.73 
155 . 16 
137 . 14 
552 . 0 1 
168 . 57 

64 . 02 
601. 51 
192 . 05 

87.29 -
87 . 29 

$6884.25 
6884 . 25 

$217.16 
21 7 . 16 

$13365 . 00 
1598.00 
1 675 . 00 
9222 . 00 

870 . 00 

$1614 . 08 
1614 . 08 

$63671. 67 
60088 .1 2 

2870.44 
713 . 11 

$2750 . 00 
2750 . 00 

$26497.87 
22268 . 54 

4229 . 33 

$22195 . 14 
22195 . 14 

$898 . 01 
149 . 66 
149.67 
149 . 67 
149 . 67 
149 . 67 
149 . 67 

CI TY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

150 - 620 - 7504 - 00000 
150 - 688 - 7533 - 00000 
740 - 572 - 7559 - 00023 
740 - 570 - 7324 - 00000 
730 - 560 - 7504 - 00000 
150 - 220 - 7324 - 00000 
720 - 596- 7324 - 00000 
309- 521- 7324 - 00000 
150 - 690 - 7361 - 00000 
150 - 410 - 7559 - 00000 
150 - 220 - 7324 - 00000 
710 - 540 - 7559 - 00421 

06/24/14 65255 
150 - 410 - 7559 - 00000 

06/24/ 1 4 58051 
150- 690 - 7361 - 00000 

06/24/ 1 4 07367 
710 - 53 1-7361 - 00000 
710 - 53 1-7361 - 00000 
710 - 530 - 7369- 00000 
710 - 530 - 7369 - 00000 

06/24/ 1 4 07385 
740 - 570 - 7369 - 00000 

06/24/ 1 4 53542 
150 - 523 - 7562 - 00000 
740-575 - 7561- 00000 
740 - 570- 7324 - 00000 

06/24/14 66119 
150 - 409-7307 - 00000 

06/24/14 60037 
720 - 597 - 7559 - 00000 
720 - 597 - 7559-00000 

06/13/14 05078 
130 - 000 - 2050 - 00000 

06/24/14 62579 
150 - 230 - 72 12 - 00000 
710 - 530 - 72 12 - 00000 
720 - 596- 7212 - 00000 
730 - 560 - 7212 - 00000 
740 - 570 - 7212 - 00000 
150 - 620 - 7212 - 00000 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION 

JANI TORI AL SUPPL I ES 
JANI TORIAL SUPPL I ES 
JANI TORIAL SUPPL I ES 
JANI TORIAL SU PPL I ES 
JANI TORIAL SUPPL I ES 
JANI TORIAL SUPPLIES 
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
JANITORI AL SUPPLI ES 

0 MI WALL CORPORAT I ON 
AMMUNI TION 

0 MONTEREY BAY SERVI CE COMPANY 
SERV KI TCHEN EQUIP 

0 MONTEREY BAY UN I FI ED AIR 
ANNUAL OPERAT I NG PERMI T RENEW 
ANNUAL OPERAT I NG PERMIT RENEW 
PERMI T RENEWAL 
PERMI T RENEWAL 

0 MONTEREY REGIONAL WAS TE 
CHARGES 

0 MORENO PETROLEUM COMPANY· 
STATEMENT 5/3 1 / 1 4 
STAT EMENT 5/3 1 / 1 4 
STATEMENT 5/31/14 

INVOICE # 

0 MUNIC I PAL RESOURCE GROUP, LLC 
BACKGROUND CHECKS 

0 NATIONAL METER & AUTOMATION , I NC. 
BRONZE METER 
BRONZE METER 

0 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS 
PAYROLL FOR - 061314 

0 NEOPOST, INC . 
MAIL MACH MAINT 
MAIL MACH MAINT 
MAIL MACH MAINT 
MAIL MACH MAINT 
MAI L MACH MAINT 
MAIL MAC H MAINT 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

15 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED : 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11:20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209837 

1 209857 

1 209823 

1 209924 

1 209914 

1 209735 

1 209910 

1 209796 

1 209797 

1 209798 

1 209799 

1 209800 

1 209801 

$390 . 17 
390 . 17 

$4990 . 00 
4990 . 00 

$468 . 98 
468 . 98 

$4769.45 
4769.45 

$282 . 80 
282 . 80 

$6110.60 
448 . 60 
125.00 

50 . 00 
5487.00 

$118.67 
37.96 

7 . 00 
29.26 
44.45 

$44.00 
28.00 
16.00 

$28840.61 
28840.61 

$18624.66 
1217.12 
3455.24 
2169.12 

11742.79 
20.20 
20.19 

$109.26 
109.26 

$1138.84 
1138. 84 

$1558 .11 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
GIL ACCT # 

06/24/14 52102 
710 - 530 - 7324-00000 

06/24/14 53805 
150-620-7353-00000 

06/24/14 50515 
150-620-7351-00000 

06/24/14 63012 
710 - 532-7551-00000 

06/24/14 62156 
740 - 572 - 7361-00023 

06/13/14 08107 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 
130 - 000-2050 - 00000 
130-000-2050-00000 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION 

0 NEW PIG 
ABSORB PADS 

0 NEWSBANK, INC 
WORLD NEWS 

0 OCLC, INC. 
METADATA 

0 OLIN CORPORATION 
SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 

0 OMEGA INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY INC . 
MEGA POWER 

0 OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL #3 
S . CARRILLO 
O.LOPEZ 
C . SANCHEZ 
PAYROLL FOR - 06 1 314 

INVOICE # 

06/24/14 62007 
710 - 540 - 7559- 00421 
150-680-7321-00000 
150-680-7321-00000 
150-680-7533-00000 

0 OSUNA AUTO ELECTRIC & SMALL ENGINE REPAIR 
PRUNING SAW 

06/24/14 08223 
150 - 210-7361- 00000 
205-383-8415-00000 

06/24/14 08230 
246-321 - 7211- 00000 

06/24/14 08230 
150-622- 7211-00000 
150 - 450 - 721 1- 00000 
150 - 510-7211 - 00000 
150-410-7211-00000 
150-220-7211-00000 
720-596-7211-00000 

06/24/14 08230 
150-510-7211-00000 

06/24/14 08230 
720-596-7211-00000 

06/24/14 08230 

SHARPEN CHAIN SAW 
AIR FILTER 
SAFETY GLASSES 

0 PACIFIC CREDIT SERVICES INC 
CREDIT HISTORY REPORTS 
144 HOLM RD SPC 79 REHAB I LITAT 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
CIVIC PLAZA UTIL 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
2021 FREEDOM BLVD 
2021 FREEDOM BLVD 
2021 FREEDOM BLVD 
2021 FREEDOM BLVD 
2021 FREEDOM BLVD 
2021 FREEDOM BLVD 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
FREEDOM AT AIRPORT 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
350 HAMES RD 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

16 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11: 20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209907 

1 209702 

1 209872 

1 209827 

1 209802 

1 209803 

1 209749 

1 209754 

1 209893 

1 209903 

1 209869 

1 209427 

1 209939 

1 209821 

1558 .11 

$57.34 
57 . 34 

$60.00 
30.00 
30.00 

$888 . 81 
182.44 

80.00 
606.84 
19.53 

$18 . 83 
18 . 83 

$1199. 37 
87.89 

693 . 32 
418.16 

$2083.70 
2083.70 

$54.00 
54.00 

$864 . 50 
494 . 00 
370.50 

$132.93 
132. 93 

$555.00 
230.00 
125.00 
200.00 

$292.50 
292.50 

$1678.08 
1678.08 

$1225.76 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE : 06/11/ 1 4 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

710-530-7211-00000 

06/24/14 61208 
720-596- 7770 - 00000 

06/12/14 08322 
150-110-7232-00106 
150-110-7232-00103 

06/24/14 55375 
720-596-7559 - 00000 
150 - 510-7559-00000 
740-572-7324-00023 
150-680-7541-00000 

06/24/14 50744 
710 - 540-7559-00421 

06/24/14 08343 
710 - 540-7357-0042 1 
150-686- 7357-00000 
260-339 - 5890-03310 

06/24/14 08350 
710 - 540 - 7361-00420 

06/13/14 59033 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/13/14 59033 

06/24/14 59615 
150-690-7307-00196 
150-690-7307-00196 

06/24/14 60618 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/24/14 55276 
710-530-7361- 00000 
710-530-7361-00000 
710-530-7361 - 00000 

06/11/14 66168 
710-530-7361 - 00000 

06/24/14 64706 
150-450-7503- 00000 

06/24/14 50243 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION 

401 PANABAKER 

0 PAJARO HILLS RETAIL, LLC 
REFUND CREDIT BAL 

INVOICE # 

0 PAJARO VALLEY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
L HURST BUSINESS LUNCH 6/12/14 
L HURST BUSINESS LUNCH 6/12/14 

0 PAJARO VALLEY FABRICATION INC . 
REPAIRS 
REPAIRS 
REPAIRS 
HR ANGLE 

0 PAJARO VALLEY IRRIGATION INC 
COUPLERS 

0 PAJARO VALLEY PRINTING 
NATIONAL TRAILS FLYER 
STRAW FEST POSTERS 
CLIMATE ACT PLAN FORMS 

0 PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
FIELD TRIPS 

0 PAL POLICE ACTIVITIES LEAGUE 
PAYROLL FOR - 061314 

0 UNISSUED 

0 PANTHER PROTECTIVE SERVICE 
SEC VETS HALL 
SEC SERV RAMSAY PARK 

0 PAPE MATERIAL HANDLING, INC. 
PARTS 

0 PENINSULA PEST MANAGEMENT INC. 
APPLICATION OF HERBICIDE 
VERTEBRATE PEST MGMNT 
INSECTICIDE APPLICATION 

0 PEREZ-VARGAS, MARIA 
CLAIM SETTLEMENT 

0 PHYSIO-CONTROL INC. 
MAINT AGREEMENT 

0 POLLARDWATER.COM 

PAGE 

INV VEND 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

UNISSUED 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

17 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11 : 20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209868 

1 209835 

1 209804 

1 209902 

1 20989 5 

1 209750 

1 209755 

1 209420 

1 209426 

1 209705 

1 209736 

1 11112393 

1 209423 

1 209829 

1 209871 

1225.76 

$20882.13 
6849 .7 9 
2495.50 
6545.84 
2495.50 
2495.50 

$ 41. 22 
41. 22 

$146.00 
146.00 

$6507.11 
6048 . 58 
458.53 

$154 . 25 
154.25 

$518.00 
518.00 

$7630 .17 
7630.17 

$9471. 66 
9471.66 

$8740 . 01 
8740.01 

$2141. 95 
2141. 95 

$241525.03 
241525.03 

$5.10 
5.10 

$143.52 
143 . 52 

$1218.56 
1044.48 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

720-598-7559-00000 

06/24/14 55259 
710-530-7551-00000 
710-532-7551-00000 
710-530-7551-00000 
710-532-7551-00000 
710-532-7551-00000 

06/24/14 51955 
720 - 596 -7 559-00000 

06/24/14 08705 
720 -5 97-7212-00000 

06/24/14 60472 
740-572-7324-00000 
740 - 572-7324 - 00000 

06/24/14 59675 
710-530-7324-00000 

06/13/14 62976 
130-000~2050-00000 

06/13/14 62976 

06/11/14 65844 
787-299-7318-00000 

06/11/14 65844 
787 - 299-7318-00000 

06/16/14 65844 
787-299-7318-00000 

06/13/14 08790 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/13/14 08840 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/11/14 09070 
740-570-7324-00000 

06/24/14 51464 
740-570-7559-00000 

06/24/14 55365 
250-935-7857-42043 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION 

VITA-D-CHLOR 

0 POLYDYNE, INC 
CLARIFLOC 
CLARIFLOC 
CLARIFLOC 
POLYMER TOTE 
CLARIFLOC 

0 PORT SUPPLY 
SUPPLIES 

0 POSTMASTER 
BOX RENTAL 

0 POWERPLAN 
SERVICE REPAIR 
REPAIR LEAK 

0 PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION , INC 
ACETYLENE CYLINDER 

0 PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES INC. 
PAYROLL FOR - 061314 

0 UNISSUED 

0 PREFERRED BENEFIT 
CLAIMS W/END I NG 5/29/14 

0 PREFERRED BENEFIT 
CLAIMS WEEK ENDING 6/05/14 

0 PREFERRED BENEFIT 
CLAIMS 

INVOICE # 

0 PROF FIRE FIGHTERS-WATSONVILLE 
PAYROLL FOR - 061314 

0 PUBLIC EMP RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
PAYROLL FOR - 061314 

0 RAYS UPHOLSTERY 
SALES TAX 

0 RAZORBACK CONTRACTORS SUPPLY INC. 
LEATHER GLOVES 

0 RECORDE'D BOOKS, LLC 
BOOKS 

PAGE 

INV VEND 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTS TANDI NG 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTS TANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

UNISSUED 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

18 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09 : 20 RUN : THURSDAY JUN192014 11:20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209805 

1 209935 

1 209742 

1 209852 

1 209966 

1 209973 

1 209744 

1 209806 

1 209737 

1 209862 

1 209807 

174 . 08 

$1249.68 
260.25 
210.51 
278.92 
500 . 00 

$140.00 
140.00 

$175.00 
175.00 

$1735.59 
153 . 06 
361. 89 

48. 35· 
157.72 

1 9 . 92 
142 . 23 

64 . 75 
162 . 73 

63 . 23 
63.23 
42 . 16 
42 .1 6 

288.44 
38 . 68 
87 . 04 

$100.00 
100.00 

$100.00 
100 . 00 

$450.00 
450 . 00 

$98 . 58 
98 . 58 

$9629.46 
9629 . 46 

$140.00 
140.00 

$10289 . 47 

CI TY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DAT E RANGE: 06/11/ 1 4 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

250 - 935 - 7857 - 42043 

06/24/14 09140 
150 -1 60 - 7221 - 00000 
150 - 160 - 7221- 00000 
150 - 160 - 7221- 00000 
150 - 685-7361- 00000 

06/24/14 64437 
150 - 450 - 7222 - 00000 

06/13/14 51096 
130 - 000 - 2050- 00000 

06/24/14 53134 
150 - 315 - 7322 - 00000 
710 - 530 - 7322 - 00000 
150-688 - 7361 - 00000 
720 - 596- 7357 - 00000 
150 - 620 - 7357 - 00000 
710 - 540 - 7361 - 00000 
150- 230 - 7357 - 00000 
202 - 367 - 7322 - 00000 
150 -1 20 - 7322 - 00000 
150 -1 60 - 7322 - 00000 
150 - 210 - 7322 - 00000 
150 -1 30 - 7501- 00000 
150 - 690 - 7322-00000 
150-691- 7361- 00160 
150 - 691 - 7361- 00161 

06/24/14 66158 
720 - 596- 7771 - 00000 

06/24/14 66165 
720 - 596- 7772 - 00000 

06/13/ 1 4 51096 
130 - 000 - 2050 - 00000 

06/24/14 09421 
150 - 680 - 7533 - 00000 

06/13/14 09490 
130 - 000 - 2050 - 00000 

06/24/14 54172 
740 - 570 - 7361 - 00000 

06/24/14 09547 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPT I ON 

BOOKS 

0 REGIS TER PAJARONIAN 
RESOLUT I ON 43 -1 4 
RESOLUT I ON NO 41 - 14 
RESOLUTION NO 45 - 14 
AMER FLAG AD 

INVOICE # 

0 REMOTE SATELLITE SYSTEMS INT 'L 
SAT PHONE SERVICE 

51673 REQUA, DEBRA 
FL00384 1 C.JOHNSON 

0 RICOH USA, I NC. 
MONTHLY MAINT I KON COP I ERS 
MONTHLY MAINT I KON COPIERS 
MONTHLY MAI NT IKON COPIERS 
MONTHLY MAINT IKON COP I ERS 
MONTHLY MAINT IKON COPIERS 
MONTHLY MAINT IKON COPIERS 
MON THLY MAINT IKON COPIERS 
MON THLY MAI NT IKON COPIERS 
MON THLY MAI NT IKON COPIERS 
MONTHLY MAINT IKON COP I ERS 
MONTHLY MAINT IKON COPI ERS 
MON THLY MAI NT IKON COPIERS 
MONTHLY MAINT IKON COPIERS 
MONTHLY MAINT IKON COPIERS 
MONTHLY MAINT IKON COPIERS 

0 ROCHA RU I Z, JORGE 
LOW FLOW TOI LET REBATE 

0 ROCHNOWSKI , JOY & TIM 
WASHER REBATE 

62457 ROSA F. ROCH~ 
FL024318 S . ROCHA 

0 ROSS RECREATION EQUIPMENT CO. , INC . 
PLAYGROUND REPAI RS 

0 S C COUNTY EMP CREDIT UNION 
PAYROLL FOR - 061314 

0 S. MARTINELL I & COMPANY 
SCALE SERVICE 

0 SAFETY- KLEEN SYSTEMS, INC. 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDI NG 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTS TANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

19 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11:20 PAGE 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209431 

1 209877 

1 209844 

1 209826 

1 209701 

1 209808 

1 209700 

1 209930 

1 209738 

1 209746 

1 209892 

1 209887 

1 209809 

1 209834 

1 209976 

10289.47 

$87.50 
87.50 

$488 . 25 
488.25 

$146 . 80 
146.80 

$7900.00 
7900.00 

$65.00 
65.00 

$159.16 
159.16 

$268.80 
19.23 
78 . 84 
65 . 30 
87.59 
17.84 

$325 . 50 
159.00 
1 66 . 50 

$ 1226 . 62 
1226 . 62 

$2 . 00 
2 . 00 

$177 . 00 
177.00 

$84 . 45 
84.45 

$307 . 54 
307.54 

$1538 . 27 
1538.27 

$506 .13 

CI TY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE : 06/11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

740-572-7361-00023 

06/11/14 59557 
260 - 336-7 533 - 03226 

0~/24/14 56586 
150-692-7510-00162 

06/24/ 14 52655 
720 - 596 - 7091 - 00000 

06/24/14 50736 
720-596-7361-00000 

06/12/14 09749 
150 - 110-7 232 - 00 106 

06/24/14 09701 
710 -5 40 - 735 1- 00000 

06/ 12/14 62743 
150 - 315-7 559 - 00000 
740 - 570 - 7232 - 00000 
150 - 691 -75 33 - 00158 
150-626-7307-00000 
260-339 - 5890 - 033 10 

06/24/14 63827 
150-280-7232-00000 
150 - 210 -7 359- 00000 

06/13/14 09882 
130 - 000 - 2050 - 00000 

06/13/14 55327 
130 - 000 -2 050 - 00000 

06/24/14 59591 
309 - 525 -7 361 - 00000 

06/24/14 58868 
150-450-7516-00000 

06/24/ 14 09952 
740 - 570 -75 59- 00024 

06/24/14 51930 
150-419-7559-00000 

06/24/14 66 170 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION 

RECY PICK-UP 

INVOICE # 

CHECK 
STATUS 

I NV VEND 

0 SALAS, CORESTA OUTSTANDING 
PAL TRIP ADV A ' S GAME 

0 SAMPLES EMBROIDERY OUTSTANDING 
PUMAS HATS 

0 SANCHEZ, CESAR OUTSTANDING 
BOOT REIMB 

0 SANTA CRUZ COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERV. OUTSTANDING 
STREAM HABITAT MONITORING 

0 SANTA CRUZ COUNTY FARM BUREAU OUTSTANDING 
97 TH ANL MEE TING JUNE 26 2014 

0 SANTA CRUZ SENTI NEL OUTSTANDING 
SUB- SENTINEL 

0 SAVE MART SUPERMARKETS 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

0 SECOND STREET CAFE 
COUNCIL DINNER 
TRN REFRESHMENTS 

0 SEIU LOCAL 52 1 
PAYROLL FOR - 061314 

0 SEIU LOCAL 521 COPE 
PAYROLL FOR - 061314 

0 SENTRY ALARM SYSTEMS 
MONITOR ALARM 

0 SHALOM CLEANERS 
CLEAN PPE 

0 SHERWIN WILLIAMS 
PAINT 

0 SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT LABORATORIES, INC 
SUPPLIES 

0 SLOBODIAN , NICHOLAS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTS TANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

20 



----· 

REPORT : CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09 : 20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11:20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209822 

1 209865 

1 209739 

1 209900 

1 209810 

506 .13 

$140 . 07 
140.07 

$786.54 
23.84 
71. 52 
47.68 
23.84 
23.84 

119.20 
23.84 
23.84 
95.36 

119. 02 
119. 20 

47 . 68 
47.68 

$175.00 
175.00 

$959.06 
2.70 

122.26 
303.78 -

80.04 
160.81 
169.06 
727. 97 

$1134.74 
42.27 
97.62 
18.86 

122.82 
7.38 

17.4 8 
49 . 48 
31. 32 
88. 96 

194.82 
16 . 89 
19.82 

193.09 
8.61 

138. 07 
22.01 
10.38 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

740 -57 0- 7559- 00000 

06/24/14 50480 
150-409-7232-00000 

06/24/14 54553 
150-220-7222-00000 
710-530-7222-00000 
710 - 531 -72 22 - 00000 
710-540-7222-00000 
710-541-7222-00000 
740-570-7 222 - 00000 
740-571-7 222 - 00000 
740-572 - 7222 - 00000 
740-575-7222-00000 
720 - 596-7 222 - 00000 
720-597-7222-00000 
720-598 - 7222 - 00000 
150-680-7222-00000 

06/13/ 14 1 0338 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/24/14 60391 
150-620-7501-00000 
150-620-7501-00000 
150-620-7501-00000 
150 - 620 -7 501- 00000 
150-409- 7501- 00000 
150-620- 7501- 00000 
150 - 622 -7 50 1- 00000 

06/24/14 10280 
260 - 336- 7533 - 03226 
150-620-7 501 - 00000 
150-620-7501-00000 
150 - 409-75 01 - 00000 
150-409-7212-00000 
720 - 596- 7559-00000 
740 - 570 - 7559 - 00000 
260- 336- 7533 - 03235 
150-410-7533-00000 
150 - 690 -7 501 - 00000 
150 - 409 -7 501-00000 
710 - 540 -7 559- 00420 
150-691-7511-00161 
150-230-7501-00000 
·150 - 691 -7 533 - 00161 
150-691-7511-00158 
150-409-7501-00000 

PVUSD WASTE RED PROJ 

0 SOLAN.O, MANUEL 
REIMB MEALS FOR PD ON PATROL 

0 SPRINT 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 

0 ST OF CA FRANCHI SE TAX BOARD 
A.HERNANDEZ 

0 STAPLES ADVANTAGE 
OFFICE . SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
CREDIT MEMO 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
PD OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 

0 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 
STATEMENT 5/28/14 

INVOICE # 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

21 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED : 23 OCT 12 09 : 20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11 : 20 PAGE 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209811 

1 209839 

1 209933 

1 209866 

1 209812 

1 209962 

1 209813 

1 209913 

1 209787 

1 209923 

1 209814 

1 209815 

54 . 86 

$ 11 2 . 75 
112. 7 5 

$434 . 56 
434 . 56 

$314 . 29 
314 . 29 

$280.50 
1 65 . 00 
115 . 50 

$4255 . 88 
1745.01 

64 . 12 
2184. 72 

262.03 

$1478 . 20 
1478 . 20 

$430 . 00 
120 . 00 
190 . 00 
120 . 00 

$509.37 
469.76 
33.16 

6 . 45 

$362.12 
180.07 

95.65 
86.40 

$175 . 00 
175.00 

$4613 . 19 
75 . 69 . 
52 . 15 
24 . 35 
51. 30 

174 . 87 

CITY OF WATSONVI LLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/11/ 1 4 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

710 - 540 - 7221 - 00000 

06/24/14 10280 

06/24/ 1 4 52296 
740 - 570 - 7232 - 00000 

06/24/ 1 4 64040 
740 - 570 - 7559-00000 

06/24/14 54810 
150 - 410 - 7516- 00000 

06/24/14 10551 
150 - 220 - 7361-00000 
730 - 560 - 7361- 00000 

06/24/14 66044 
150 - 5 10-7559- 00000 
150-5 10- 7559- 00000 
150 - 510- 7559- 00000 
150 - 51 0- 7533 - 00000 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

STATEMENT 5/28/ 1 4 

0 UNISSUED 

0 STEELMAN, ROBERT 
REIMB MTG LUNCH SOLID WASTE 

0 STOCKTON TRI INDUSTRIES , INC. 
BOGIE WHEELS AND AXLE 

0 SUMMI T UN IFORMS 
MOTOR PANTS 

0 SUPERIOR ALARM COMPANY 
ALARM MONITORING 
MONITOR ALARM 

0 T&T PAVEMENT MARKINGS & PRODUCTS 
STREET SIGNS 
TRK WAS HING SIGNS 
SIGNS 
ST NAME SIGNS 

INV VEND 

CHECK 
STATUS 

UNISSUED 

OUTS TANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTAND I NG 

06/24/14 10699 
740 - 570 - 7559 - 00000 

0 TELECOMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS INC . OUTSTANDING 
MSC RACKMOUNT 

06/24/14 62092 
740 - 572 - 7361 - 00000 
150 - 450 - 7325 - 00000 
740 - 572 - 7361 - 00000 -

06/24/14 05675 
150 - 523 - 7505 - 00000 
150 - 523 - 7324 - 00000 
740 - 575 - 7559 - 00000 

06/24/14 63011 
150 - 450 - 7212 - 00000 
720 - 596-7212 - 00000 
720 - 597 - 7212 - 00000 

06/24/ 1 4 10771 
150 - 690 - 7325 - 00000 

06/24/ 1 4 10840 
150 - 450 - 7323 - 00000 
150 - 680 - 7533 - 00000 
720 - 598 - 7559 - 00000 
150 - 523 - 7324 - 00000 
720 - 596-7559 - 00000 

0 TERRA X PES T SERVICES , INC. 
SERVICE 
PES T CONTROL 
MAY SERVICE 

0 THE HOSE SHOP INC. 
STATEMENT 5/30/ 1 4 
STATEMENT 5/30/ 1 4 
STATEMENT 5/30/ 1 4 

0 THE UPS STORE 
SHIPPING CHARGES 
SHIPPING CHARGES 
SHIPPING CHARGES 

0 TI NO'S PLUMBING , I NC 
215 E BEACH KITCHEN DRAIN LI NE 

0 TOWNSEND AUTO PARTS 
PARTS AND SUPPLIES 
PARTS AND SUPPL I ES 
PARTS AND SUPPL I ES 
PARTS AND SUPPLI ES 
PARTS AND SUPPL I ES 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTS TANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

22 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11:20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 209956 

1 209816 

1 209894 

1 209864 

1 209937 

1 209740 

1 209817 

1 209848 

1 209936 

1 209886 

1 209972 

1 209824 

1 209748 

1 209753 

1 209741 

40.89 
4193.94 

$820.16 
820 . 16 

$148.00 
43.00 

105.00 

$225.00 
225.00 

$42.27 
42.27 

$375.90 
375.90 

$272. 00 
272. 00 

$859.00 
859.00 

$222679. 49 
7548.57 

59751.85 
3706.47 

43834.37 
107838.23 

$308.00 
308 . 00 

$267 . 00 
2 67. 00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$450.00 
450.00 

$2935.59 
2935.59 

$4666.50 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 06/11/14 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

730-560-7323-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

06/24/14 65802 
250-935-7803-42041 

06/24/14 10924 
150-450-7361- 00000 
150-450-7533-00000 

06/24/14 59642 
710-530-7324-00000 

06/24/14 54483 
720-596-7770-00000 

06/24/14 64529 
150-620-7361-00000 

06/13/14 11070 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/24/14 11070 
221-347-7307-00000 

06/24/14 52965 
740-570-7742-00000 
740-570 - 7741-00000 
710-530-7742-00000 
710-530-7741-00000 
720-596-7742-00000 

06/24/14 64465 
150-450-7516-00000 

06/24/14 58865 
120-279-5895-00159 

06/24/14 66164 
720-596- 7772-00000 

06/24/14 50681 
150-450-7359-00000 

06/13/14 58532 
130-000-2050-00000 

06/13/14 

06/13/14 

58532 

11570 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION 

PARTS AND SUPPLIES 
PARTS AND SUPPLIES 

0 TRANSOURCE COMPUTERS 
WIRELESS ACCESS 

INVOICE # 

0 TRI-COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION INC 
SERVICE 
SERVICE 

0 TRITON CONSTRUCTION 
UST MONTHLY INSPECTIONS 

0 TRUONG, CHAD 
REFUND CREDIT BAL 

0 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC. 
FEES 

0 UNITED WAY OF SANTA CRUZ CO 
PAYROLL FOR - 061314 

0 UNITED WAY OF SANTA CRUZ CO 
HOMELESS ACT PARTNERSHIP 

0 US BANK 
REVENUE BONDS 
REVENUE BONDS 
REVENUE BONDS 
REVENUE BONDS 
REVENUE BONDS 

0 VAPOR CLEANERS 
CLEANING AND REPAIRS 

0 VASQUEZ, LETICIA 
REFUND RENTAL 

0 VASQUEZ, RACHEL 
WASHER REBATE 

0 VOJVODA, KIRT 
TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 

0 WAGEWORKS INC 
AF06989 

0 UNISSUED 

0 WATSONVILLE POLICE ASSOCIATION 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

UNISSUED 

OUTSTANDING 

23 



REPORT : CHECKREG GENERATED : 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 1 1 : 20 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

4666 . 50 

1 209898 $5724 . 00 
2844.00 
2880 . 00 

1 209969 $100 . 00 
100.00 

1 209904 $548.06 
548.06 

1 209890 $3600.00 
3600.00 

1 209851 $1218.69 
929 . 98 
288.71 

1 11112395 $205343.93 
99690. 85 
75129.62 
30523.46 

1 11112394 $35973 . 10 
1 989.11 

33983 . 99 

1 209819 $500 . 00 
500 . 00 

1 209960 $46.02 
46 . 02 

1 209425 $78954.04 
78954 . 04 

TOTAL # OF ISSUED CHECKS : 

TOTAL # OF VOIDED/REISSUED CHECKS: 

TOTAL # OF ACH CHECKS: 

CITY OF WATSONVI LLE 
CHECK REGIS TER 

DATE RANGE: 06/11/ 1 4 - 06/24/14 

CHECK DAT E VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 

1 30 - 000 - 2050 - 00000 

06/24/ 1 4 59908 
710 - 540 - 7361- 00421 
710 - 540 - 7361- 00421 

06/24/14 6616 1 
720 - 596- 7772 - 00000 

06/24/14 60785 
740 - 572 - 7324 - 00000 

06/24/14 59221 
780 - 293 - 7303 - 00000 

06/24/14 53064 
710 - 530 - 7324 - 00000 
710 - 530 - 7324 - 00000 

06/ 1 3/14 11700 
130 - 000 - 2050 - 00000 
130 - 000 - 2050 - 00000 
130 - 000 - 2050 - 00000 

06/13/14 10334 
130 - 000 - 2050 - 00000 
130 - 000 - 2050 - 00000 

06/24/14 11915 
1 50-410 - 7559 - 00000 

06/24/ 14 66020 
730 - 560 - 7561 - 00000 

06/11/14 64245 
780 - 291 -7 712 - 00000 

269 

0 

0 

TOTAL AMOUNT : 

TOTAL AMOUNT : 

TOTAL AMOUNT : 

DESCRIPTION 

PAYROLL FOR - 061314 

0 WATSONVI LLE WETLANDS WATCH 
CONDUCT SLOUGH TRAIL MAI NTENAN 
CONDUCT SLOUGH TRAIL MAINTENAN 

0 WELLS , MAX D. JR 
WASHER REBATE 

INVOICE # 

0 WESTERN BALER & CONVEYOR, I NC. 
THERMOSTAT 

0 WILMES, LLC 
PLAYGROUND INSPECT I ONS 

0 WINZER CORPORATION 
POWERBALL DEGREASER 
LIME REMOVER 

0 WIRE TRANSFER-IRS 
FEDERAL 
SOCIAL SECURITY 
MEDICARE 

0 WI RE TRANSFER- STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
SDI 77651115 
PIT 80038870 

0 WI TMER-TYSON IMPORTS , INC 
K- 9 TRAIN I NG 

0 WORLD FUEL SERVICES 
FUEL TICKETS 

0 YORK INSURANCE SERVICES GROUP, I NC . 
TRUS T DEPOSI T MAY 2014 

1786844. 1 8 

0 . 00 

0.00 

TOTAL # OF UN I SSUED CHECKS : 7 

PAGE 

INV VEND 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

24 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

FUND TOTALS 

FUND 

120 
130 
150 
202 
205 
207 
210 
221 
246 
250 
260 
305 
309 
354 
710 
720 
730 
740 
780 
787 

GENERATED : 23 OCT 12 09:20 

FUND NAME 

TRUST FUND 
EMPLOYEE CASH DEDUCTIONS FUND 
GENERAL FUND 
REDEVELOPMENT OBLIG RETIREMENT 
COMMUNITY DEV BLOCK GRANT 
RENTAL REHAB FUND 
CAL HOME GRANT FUNDS 
INCLUSIONARY HOUSING 
CI VIC CENTER COMMON AREA 
LIBRARY FUND 
SPECIAL GRANTS 
GAS TAX 
PARKING GARAGE FUND 
SPECIAL DISTRICT FUNDS 
SEWER SERVICE FUND 
WATER OPERATING FUND 
AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND 
WASTE DISPOSAL FUND 
WORKERS COMP/L I ABILI TY FUND 
HEALTH INSURANCE FUND - POOL 

TOTAL -

'\ 

ISSUED TOTAL 

1,788.00 
554 , 008.88 
195 , 779.74 

1,001.73 
16.00 

9 , 006 . 00 
57,800.00 
1 5 , 893.00 
31,560.10 

9 , 547.23 
11 , 555.53 
13,831.92 

2,006 . 02 
107.07 

147 , 672 . 54 
164,242.46 
322 , 960 . 11 
131 , 626 . 97 

88 , 763 . 54 
27 , 677 . 34 

1, 786, 844 . 18 

RUN: THURSDAY JUN192014 11:20 

VOIDED/REISSUED TOTAL 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0 . 00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0 . 00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0 . 00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

PAGE 25 



REPORT : A:PEDIT 

Batch # 1872 

Account # 

130-000-2050-00000 

GENERATED: 12 AUG 13 07 : 53 

Account Name 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
GL Offsetting Entries 

Expenditure Summary 

PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS PAYABLE 

RUN : THURSDAY JUN122014 11 : 39 PAGE 11 

Amount Acct Mth Date Acct Mth Total 

$554,008 . 88 2014/06 06/13/14 $554,008 . 88 



INFORMATION ITEMS 
June 24, 2014

1.0 MINUTES 

--Planning Commission 
   April 1, 2014 

2.0 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION 

--Volunteer Infrastructure Program Volunteers 
--FoodCorps Volunteers 
--Life Lab Volunteers 
--CAFF Volunteers 
--Oakland Unified Volunteers 
--HealthCorps Volunteers 
--AmeriCorps VISTA- Davenport Resource Center Volunteers 
--Santa Cruz Reading Corps Volunteers 
--Watershed Stewards Project 
--Notre Dame Mission Volunteers 

June 8, 2014 
 All files are available for viewing at the City Clerk’s office 

CITY COUNCIL 10.2b



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\04-01-14\Minutes 040114.doc 

1 

M I N U T E S 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE 

 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

275 MAIN STREET, 4th FLOOR, WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 
  
 Tuesday, April 1, 2014 6:05 P.M. 
 
In accordance with City policy, all Planning Commission meetings are recorded on audio and videotapes 
in their entirety, and the tapes are available for review in the Community Development Department 
(CDD). These minutes are a brief summary of action taken. 

 
1.0 ROLL CALL OF COMMISSIONERS   
 

Present were Commissioners Pedro Castillo Rick Danna, Dobie Jenkins, Jenny 
Sarmiento, Vice-Chair Mireya Gomez-Contreras and Chair Marty Corley.   
Commissioner Aurelio Gonzalez was absent. 
 
Staff members present were Secretary Marcela Tavantzis, Principal Planner Keith Boyle, 
Senior Planner Suzi Merriam, Lieutenant David McCartney, Lieutenant Michael 
McKinley, Recording Secretary Deborah Muniz and City Interpreter Sofia Vazquez-
Quintero. 
 

2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Commissioner Gomez-Contreras led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3.0 PETITIONS AND ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 Public:  
 
 Gina Cole, of Pajaro Valley Prevention & Student Assistance Inc., stated she works with 

tobacco and tobacco policy.  A state wide media event was held on March 5 regarding 
tobacco, healthy foods and alcohol.  This was the state’s first event of this type.  She 
indicated that E-cigarettes are on the rise.  They are being sold in 246 stores in Santa 
Cruz County and 37% of these stores are located very close to schools.  E-cigarettes 
can be purchased for a price of a candy bar and marketing of this product is targeting 
children.  Ms. Cole wanted to bring awareness of this issue to the Commission and 
community.  She will be doing a presentation to City Council at a future meeting. 

 
 Commissioner Castillo asked if the sale of E-cigarettes can be regulated by the State 

and City. 
 
 Ms. Cole replied that the Santa Cruz City Council made a decision to treat E-cigarettes 

as regular cigarettes.  They cannot prohibit the sale but it is being regulated.  
Discussions are occurring at State level to increase the cost of E-cigarettes. 

 
 Secretary Tavantzis stated the issue of E-cigarettes will be on the City Council agenda in 

the near future. 
 
 Commission: 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\04-01-14\Minutes 040114.doc 

2 

 
 Commissioner Corley announced there will be a 4th District Supervisor candidate forum 

on Tuesday, April 29 from 6:00 to 8:00 p.m. at the First United Methodist Church at 229 
Stanford Street in Watsonville. 

 
4.0 CONSENT AGENDA   

 
4.1 MOTION APPROVING MINUTES FOR THE MARCH 4, 2014 REGULAR MEETING 
 
 MOTION: It was moved by Commissioner Castillo, seconded by Commissioner 

Danna, and carried by unanimous voice vote to approve the Consent Agenda: 
  
5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS  

  

5.1 A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER REVIEW AND REVOCATION OF 
ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMIT (PP2011-259), FOR THE SALE OF BEER AND 
WINE (TYPE 41 LICENSE) IN CONJUNCTION WITH A RESTAURANT (POPO’S), AT 
1047 FREEDOM BOULEVARD (APN: 016-121-09), BASED ON CONTINUED 
NONCOMPLIANCE WITH THE PERMIT’S CONDITIONS. 

 
a) Staff Presentation  

 
The staff report was given by Senior Planner Suzi Merriam.  She explained the 
process to modify or revoke an Administrative Use Permit based on public 
nuisance.  She spoke about the compliance checks performed by the Police 
Department on October 18, 2013 and March 14, 2014.   
 
Commissioner Danna asked besides the two compliance checks performed by 
the Police Department have there have been a lot of calls for service for this 
establishment.   
 
Lt. Michael McKlinley replied recently the Police Department is limited on patrol 
officers and have not received that many calls for service.  The issues are mainly 
the underage drinking and the presence of gang members.  
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked how many other instances regarding sales of 
alcohol to minors have been discovered in the City since the grant from ABC 
became effective in July 2013. 
 
Lt. McKinley replied 16 employees out of 14 establishments have been cited. 
 
Commissioner Corley asked if Popo’s has conducted the LEAD training. 
 
Lt. McKinley replied Mr. Zuniga was at the October 2013 training. 
 
Commissioner Sarmiento asked if the 14 establishments that were cited were 
restaurants. 
 
Lt. McKinley replied that it was a mixture of both restaurants and convenience 
stores. 
 
Secretary Tavantzis stated that other problematic establishments will be coming 
to the Planning Commission in the future. 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\04-01-14\Minutes 040114.doc 

3 

 
Commissioner Corley asked if the owner decides to sell the business, will the 
new owner have to wait a year before applying for a Special Use Permit. 
 
Ms. Merriam replied new owner will be able to apply any time. 

 
b) Applicant Presentation  

 
Rodolfo Rodriquez Zuniga, applicant and owner, stated he has only been 
operating for one and half years and it took four months to open.  He explained 
that food is served first, then the alcohol.  After the customers finish eating the 
plates are removed for hygiene reasons. He feels that it is his bad luck or it is a 
trap by another restaurant that is jealous because the same gang members were 
present both times Lt. McKinley came by.  He acknowledged that it is his 
responsibility to check for ID.  If his alcohol license is revoked, he will be forced 
to close his business. 
 
Commissioner Danna stated one of the minors that were questioned by the 
Police stated he had been there multiple times and was never carded. He asked 
Mr. Zuniga if they are actually asking for ID. 
 
Mr. Zuniga replied that they ask for ID all the time.  It is a requirement. 

 
c) Public Hearing 

 
Chairperson Corley opened the Public Hearing 
 
Rudy Zuniga, son of Rodolfo Zuniga, stated the restaurant is a family 
establishment and lots of kids are present.  He stated they cannot control the 
type of patrons that come in but they do as much as we can.  Patrons felt 
harassed when the Police came by on October 18, 2013. 
 
Commissioner Corley asked Rudy Zuniga if he knew he needed an 
Entertainment Permit for the karoke. 
 
He replied that he has been to the City to get a permit for the karaoke when 
needed. 
 
Hearing no further public comments, Chairperson Corley closed the Public 
Hearing. 

 
d) Commission Discussion 

 
Commissioner Danna asked how does a restaurant owner distinguished when to 
stop serving an extra beer to patrons after they have finished their meal and how 
do they monitor a bucket of beers at a table with minors. 
 
Ms. Merriam’s response to the first questions is that it is up to the discretion of 
the management.  The bigger issue is that minors are not being carded and there 
were a lot of minors drinking without food and without no family or parents 
present at Popos.  Her response to the second question is if it was her restaurant 
she would only serve one beer at a time and would not put out a bucket of beer. 
Under ABC law, it is the owner’s responsibility. 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\04-01-14\Minutes 040114.doc 

4 

 
e) Motion: 

 
It was moved by Commissioner Castillo, seconded by Commissioner Jenkins, 
and carried by the following vote to adopt a resolution approving the Revocation 
of Administrative Use Permit (PP2011-259):  

 
AYES:  COMMISSIONERS: Castillo, Danna, Jenkins, Sarmiento,  
                                                           Gomez-Contreras, Corley  
NOES:  COMMISSIONERS: None 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS:   Gonzalez 
 

Mr. Boyle stated the applicant can appeal the Planning Commission’s decision to the 
City Council.  The appeal period is 14 days from the meeting date and the appeal is filed 
with the City Clerk. The applicant can continue to operate until the appeal is heard by the 
City Council.  
 
Secretary Tavantzis asked City Interpreter Sofia Vazquez-Quintero to interpret in 
Spanish to Mr. Rodolfo Zuniga what Mr. Boyle stated about the appeal process.  

  

6.0 REPORT OF SECRETARY 
 
6.1 SPECIAL PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING ON MAY 20, 2014 
 
 Secretary Tavantzis explained to the Commission that there are several agenda items 

proposed for the May 6 meeting.  She asked the Commission if they would prefer to 
have one or two meetings in May.  The consensus of the Commission is to have two 
meetings with the second meeting tentatively scheduled for May 20. 

 
 The expansion of Salud Para La Gente is going through plan check.  It is a huge 

expansion and there will be a separate entrance for women’s services.  They are trying 
to address the community’s needs. 

 
 The new Dollar Tree Store is almost ready to be finaled and they are hiring. 
 
 The parcel at the corner of Lee Road and Beach Street is under contract for purchase 

for development. 
 
 Commissioner Castillo stated when the Police Department conducts a decoy for the sale 

of alcohol to minors sometimes it is reported in the newspaper but the names of the 
establishments are never listed.  Can we request to have the names published? 

 
 Secretary Tavantzis stated she can ask the Police Department. 
 
 Commissioner Corley asked about the work being done at Ohlone and Beach Street. 
 
 Secretary Tavantzis replied that the intersection is being signalized and they need to 

move some of their equipment in order for the curb, gutter and sidewalk to fit.   The 
project had been delayed for a very long time due to a lack of funding. 

 
 
 
 




	Agenda
	Item 4.1 Minutes
	Item 4.2 Reject Claim of Maria M. Ramirez
	Item 4.3 Signal Upgrades & Pedestrian Improvements Report
	Item 4.3 Signal Upgrades & Pedestrian Improvements Resolution
	Item 4.4 CalRecycle Grant Applications Report
	Item 4.4 CalRecycle Grant Applications Resolution
	Item 4.5 ERP System Report
	Item 4.5 ERP System Resolution
	Item 4.6 Grizzly Flats Harvest Contract Report
	Item 4.6 Grizzly Flats Harvest Contract Resolution
	Item 4.7 Zone 7 Budget Report
	Item 4.7 Zone 7 Budget Resolution
	Item 4.8 League of Cities Voting Delegate Letter
	Item 8.1 Buena Vista Sale Report
	Item 6.1a 56 Atkinson Reports
	Item 6.1d 56 Atkinson EIR Resolution
	Item 6.1e 56 Atkinson SUP Resolution
	Item 6.1f 56 Atkinson MOU Resolution
	Item 6.1g 56 Atkinson Rezoning Ordinance
	Item 6.1h Atkinson Loan Commitment Resolution
	Item 6.2a Appeal 55 Brennan Report
	Item 6.2h Appeal 55 Brennan Resolution
	Item 6.2h Appeal 55 Brennan Resolution
	Item 6.3a Changes to City Fees Report
	Item 6.3e Buidling & Safety Fees Resolution
	Item 6.3f Density Bonus Fee Resolution
	Item 6.3g Citywide Traffic Impact Fees Ordinance
	Item 10.2a Report of Disbursements
	Item 10.2b Information Items

	Claim No: 14-16
	CM: Off
	CA: Off
	Fin: Off
	PD: Off
	PW: Off
	Safety Officer: Off
	Dept: Off
	Distribution Other: 
	Name of Claimant: Maria M. Ramirez
	Date of Birth of Claimant: 
	Home Address of Claimant: 
	Home Address of Claimant CSZ: Watsonville, CA  95076
	Claimant Home Area Code: 831
	Claimant Home Telephone: 
	Business Address of Claimant: 
	Business Address of Claimant CSZ: 
	Claimant Business Area Code: 831
	Claimant Business Telephone: 
	Claimant Notification Address: 
	Date of Occurrence: 5/8/14
	Time of Occurrence: 1:00
	Time of Occurrence AM/PM: PM
	Place of Occurrence: City Hall parking lot - first parking space.
	Method of Occurrence: A big tree branch fell on the car causing some damage - the extent of damage is yet to be fully determined. Car will need to be inspected.
	Police At Scene: No
	Paramedics At Scene: No
	Act Or Omission: It was the wind and tree, perhaps with tree branches being too heavy.
	Total Amount of Claim: 
	To Date Item/Date 1: 
	To Date Amount 1: 5129.13
	To Date Item/Date 2: 
	To Date Amount 2: 
	To Date Total: 5129.13
	Estimated Item Date 1: 
	Estimated Amount 1: 3309.78
	Estimated Item Date 2: 
	Estimated Amount 2: 
	Estimated Total: 3309.78
	Witness 1 Name: Marcela Tavantzis
	Witness 1 Address: 250 Main Street
	Witness 1 Area Code: 831
	Witness 1 Telephone: 768-3071
	Witness 2 Name: 
	Witness 2 Address: 
	Witness 2 Area Code: 
	Witness 2 Telephone: 
	Doctor: 
	Doctor Telephone Area: 
	Doctor Telephone: 
	Doctor Address: 
	Doctor Date/Time: 
	Hospital: 
	Hospital Telephone Area: 
	Hospital Telephone: 
	Hospital Address: 
	Hospital Date/Time: 
	Other Information: 
	Signature of Claimant or Agent: s/Maria M. Ramos
	Type or Print Name: Maria M. Ramirez
	Signature Date: 6/3/14
	Relationship to Claimant: 


